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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on
the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing
in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there
is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility
than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid
market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange take no responsibility for
the contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the
whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the board (the “Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of Celebrate International
Holdings Limited (“Company”, and together with its subsidiaries “Group”) collectively and
individually accepts full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (“GEM Listing Rules”)
for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all
reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or
deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein
this report misleading.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
R

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of the Company, I hereby present
to our shareholders (the “Shareholders”) the annual
report of the Company for the financial year ended 30
June 2019.

This year, the Group experienced an unprecedented
transformation. First of all, a licensed money lending
company operated by the past management team was
inferior in its operation and performance. Secondly, the
Group's hot stone spa and related health services basically
do not bring the income it deserves to the Group. Instead,
it only expands its expenditure. Other businesses,
including logistics services and food trade, have not yet
reached expectations, and those businesses have been
sluggish. Regarding the acquisition of food companies,
the seller failed to guarantee the development of its
business. And its property investment basically did not
bring rental income in the past two years. The
management has then decided to hand over those
unhealthy businesses to the liquidator. The management is
convinced that the liquidator has sufficient resources,
professionalism, qualifications to deal with those
businesses that are not doing well.

During the year, the management intends to strengthen the
development of financial services and has since reinvested
in the lending business, including operating and investing.
The Group’s securities investment and trading operates as
usual. The Company was intended to enhance the
provision of financing services of the Company.

Unfortunately, on 28 June 2019, the Stock Exchange
has decided to proceed with the cancellation of the
Company’s listing status (the “Delisting Decision”).
For the benefit of the Company and its stakeholders,
the Company has applied to the Listing Committee for
a review. However, the Stock Exchange has decided to
uphold their Delisting Decision.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

It was noted from the local news that Southwest
Securities International Securities Limited, a Hong
Kong listed company, filed a lawsuit against Nieumarkt
Investments Ltd and guarantors in relation to a loan on
8 July 2019 (the “Lawsuit”). Nieumarkt Investment
Ltd is the substantial shareholder of the Company.

The present situation of the Company is depicted by the
Delisting Decision and the Lawsuit. Shareholders and
potential investors of the company are advised to
exercise caution with dealing in the shares of the
Company and to obtain latest information from the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Facing the harsh environment, the Group will keep
moving forward with caution.

I would like to thank my fellow Board members for

their support and all staff members for their dedication
and hard work.

Mr. Woo Eddie
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 November 2019
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(2% ) (In Receivership)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B B i B 3 B

The Group is principally engaged in the following
business activities:

Money lending

Securities investment and trading
Logistic services

Property investment

Food and beverage trading
Healthcare services

REVIEW AND PROSPECT

1.

Money Lending

During the year, the money lending business was
temporarily suspended for ten months after the
commencement of liquidation of Grand Faith
Finance Limited (“Grand Faith”). The Company
has received certain status updates from the
liquidator. Several progress meetings have been
held accordingly. As at 30 June 2019, a total
amount of approximately HK$22.73 million
(including approximately HK$10.72 million cash
in bank of Grand Faith) has been realised and
transferred to the client’s liquidation account
managed by the liquidator, and the total amount of
dividend received from the client’s liquidation
account was HK$8.0 million. Investigations may
be conducted by the liquidator. The following is
the summary of the status:
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(In Receivership) (445 #)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Summary of loan accounts of Grand Faith (as of 4
June 2019 — the latest reporting date during the
year ended 30 June 2019 (“FY2019”).
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Principle amount
HKS$°000 % rounded ~ No. of account
AEH
Category Ahl T %(EXE) a4
I On-going debt collection action 1 7E fFRIUL(EAT 5,195 % 3
2. Making monthly repayment IETEAETT R HIg K 777 1% 1
3. Fully settled o 10,400 13% 5
4, Statutory Demand - serving  EEERMEEE - EAEEE 10,752 13% 4
5. Statutory Demand served - O E kRS-
in bankruptey proceedings AR 40,791 49% 10
6. Statutory Demand served - CEh T kRS-
in winding-up proceedings TR T 10,000 12% 3
7. Wite off % 4,000 5% 2
Total 5t 82,515 100% 28

With the new management team arrived in May
2019, the new management team has reviewed the
operation of the Group’s money lending business
with the aim of creating a new vision for the
Group and elevating its money lending business to
be fully integrated in its financial services
business. In June 2019, the Group acquired a
money lending company at with a cash
consideration of HK$0.5 million. Such acquisition
was funded by internal resources. As at 30 June
2019, the loan portfolio amounted to HK$13.5
million. The interest generated from the new
money lending business will be utilised for its
operation. During the year, the Group did not
record any doubtful or bad debt for the new money
lending business.

BEE A BN —E— LF R
H AT > 0% B B O T AR 4
TR ZEH5 O KR8 R T 2o A 42 ] o]
SE BT R A HOE R A
WA B SMREER R T
S H o ASE i B — O
Al B4 RE £500,000 IC © 7%
AT DA A S S VR A5 o A B — L
ERNA=Z+TH BERAER
13,500,000%5 JG 58 U 375 i AR
4 M) B R A LR o 4R IR AR AR
) S I A S S Bk A AT AT 2R R

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 4£#




B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B B i B 3 B

10

Securities Investment and Trading

For FY2019, the stock market was still unstable and
fluctuant. Subsequent to the boom in the bullish
trading of listed securities in April 2019, the stock
market has not resumed its momentum, the
management therefore took a more cautious approach
on the investment. As a result, the Group managed to
generate a turnover of approximately HK$94.1
million during FY2019 (For the financial year ended
30 June 2018 (“FY2018”): approximately 104.4
million) from securities trading.

As at 30 June 2019, the securities investment
portfolio amounted to approximately HK$112.6
million (As at 30 June 2018: HK$164.5 million).
The Group intends to diversify its investment
portfolio so as to reduce the relevant concentration
and investment risk. Considering the business
nature of securities investment and trading, it is
crucial for the Group to maintain a readily
available source of funding, for capturing suitable
investment opportunities in a timely manner as
they arise, which will contribute investment return
to the Group.

The financial market in Hong Kong is now
relatively uncertain. It is due to the trade tariffs
discussions between various countries persisted for
a certain period of time, the trend of global interest
rates, and the recent incidents in Hong Kong. The
above reasons may cause fluctuation of financial
market, and may affect the securities investment
and trading business of the Group. Therefore, the
Group will continue to adopt a cautious approach
in making investment decision in securities
investment and trading business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B B i B 3 B

Details of the listed securities held by the Group are as  AEEFA 2 L2 FEHBUT
follows:

Percentage of Percentage to Gain/(loss) on change in
Stock ~ Name of investee company and its share capital owned by the Investment cost the Group’s fair value for
name  principal business Number of shares held Group (note) Fair value net assets the year ended
REDT LR
Teb WAREREF (L WHE
RS BBEATARRAEERH it b AEMBEHZRATA I SRR () W iRl g0/ (BH)

30 June 2019 30 June 2018 30 June 2019 30 June 2018 30 June 2019 30 June 2018 30 June 2019 30 June 2018 30 June 2019 30 June 2018 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
“BOpE CENE ZRNE SRR ZBONE CTAF ZFBOAE CTAF ZEBAE CTF ZRR ST
AREFH AASER AHERE AASHE AASER AAZHE AASER AAZTRE AASER AAZTR AASER AASTH

’000 000 % %  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 % %  HKS$'000  HKS$'000
Th TH % % T Tt Tk Tt % % Fibs Tk

0005 HSBC Holdings plc (Provision of 200 - 0.001 - 13,000 - 12,91 - 10.24 - (39 -
banking and other related financial
services)
TR R R (RISRIT R
HE2RRE)

0064 Get Nice Holdings Limited (Money 21,59 - 0.223 - 5,605 - 5,13 - 452 - 118 -

lending, property development and
holding and investment in financial
instruments, real estate agency and
provision of financial services)

GFRRARAT (it TR R
HURRASRIE HEfE
Rtk R

0136 HengTen Networks Group Limited 21,032 - 0.028 - 3870 - 3912 - 3.09 - 4 -

(Internet Community services and
related businesses, manufacture
and sales of accessories,
investments, loan financing and
property investment)

R EEARAR (LREHE
TRHE RMBERS BE R ER
8 BHRARERE)

0530 Goldin Financial Holdings Limited - 1,000 - 0.014 - 3,548 - - - 1.00 - (138)
(Provision of factoring service,
investment, winery business;
property development and
investment)
AR EE) ARAR (HERE
IRHE 8 T R R R
%)

0613 Planetrec International Development 10,734 - 0.115 - 1,848 - 1,760 - 139 - (88) -
Limited (Property investment,
property leasing and treasury
management)
HRERRRARAR (G
ERERERER)
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% #) (In Receivership)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B B i B 3 B

Gain/(loss)
Percentage of on change in
Stock ~ Name of investee company and its share capital owned by the Investment cost Percentage to the Group’s fair value for
name  principal business Number of shares held Group (note) Fair value et assets the year ended
RENT R
e Tk M WHER#Z
RoE - BEATARRAEERH A AEMBEH L RATR I SRR (k) AF(E ZHi Wi/ ()

30 June 2019 30 June 2018 30 June 2019, 30 June 2018 30 June 2019 30 June 2018 30 June 2019 30 June 2018 30 June 2019 30 June 2018 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
SROME RN ZROME CFO0F CROAE CRONE CROME CTOAF ZFAR R SROUE CRoNE
AREER AAZEH AREER AA=TE RAEER AR=tR O AASER AR=TH O ORASER AA=tH O ARSER AR=TH
00 000 % % HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000 % % HKS000  HKS000
Th Th % % T#x  TEx  TEm TiEx % % T#x  TiEx

0622 Oshidori International Holdings 28,608 - 0492 - 25,003 - 28,036 - 2.16 - 3,033 -
Limited (Brokerage services, money
lending, placing and underwriting
services, corporate finance,
investment)
WA RA R (B
i RERGHES CERE
%)

0718 Tai United Holdings Limited 51,480 50,000 0.981 0.952 1341 46,000 11,326 38,000 8.95 1110 (1,021) (8,000)
(Investment and assets management
and holding the mining right and
exploration and evaluation assets)

KRERARLE RAREEER
TR RBRAE R P16 )

0943 cForce Holdings Limited (Manufacture 53437 56,605 0.498 0.644 10,687 3750 9,191 1,321 7.26 331 (1,496) 151
and sale of healthcare and household
products, and coal mining)
EHARARAT (MERAERRE
RERER - WRARER)

1166 Solartech International Holdings - 66,500 - 2847 - 36,023 - 83,790 - 2447 - 41,767

Limited (Manufacture and trading
of cable and wires, copper rods,
metallurgical grade bauxite, holding
of mining right and exploration
and evaluation assets)

EFRRARAT (MEREETE
RES WE - ReRELH
HERRERGRRFYRE)

1224 CC Land Holdings Limited (Property 14 - 0.003 - m - m - 0.18 - 2 -
development and investment; and
treasury investment)
i BN RA R (EERR
§% REHRE)

1293 Grand Baoxin Auto Group Limited 8,665 - 0.305 - 26,629 - 27,901 - .05 - 121 -
(Sale and service of motor vehicles)
TR RAEMARAT (REH
EREH)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B B i B 3 B

Gain/(loss)
Percentage of on change in
Stock ~ Name of investee company and its share capital owned by the Investment cost Percentage to the Group’s fair value for
name  principal business Number of shares held Group (note) Fair value et assets the year ended
REUT AAILERL
et Tk M WHER#Z
RoE - BEATARRAEERH it b8 MBS 2 RATA g (k) AP TR Wi /()
30 June 2019 30 June 2018 30 June 2019 30 June 2018 30 June 2019 30 June 2018 30 June 2019 30 June 2018 30 June 2019 30 June 2018 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
e 2 1 e SyIU T S/ Siee Sy S0 1 Siliee SyiUS: S 1 Siiee SyIC e S Siee S e 2 Siee St 2
MEFR AAETE AREER AAZHE ARERR AASHE AAEER AASHE AAERR ARETE AASHR ARETH
000 000 % %  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 % %  HKS'000  HKS'000
Th T % % Tk TEx Tl TER % % Ti#x  TET
1332 China Touyun Tech Group Limited 1,440 - 0.015 - 132 - 98 - 0.08 - (34) -
(manufacturing of packing products
and treasury investment)
TREEREMARAT (R
REDRUHRE)
1387 China Dili Group (Operation of 863 - 0.015 - 1,940 - 2,054 - 1.62 - 114 -
agriculture wholesale markets)
R LR REAETAES)
1570 Xin Point Holdings Limited (Sale of 511 - 0.057 - 1,239 - 959 - 0.76 - (280) -
automotive decorative components
and non-automotive components)
[EARRARAR (B ERENER
FHEM
1800 China Communications Construction 20 - 0.005 - 1453 - 1,468 - 1.16 - 15 -
Company Limited (Infrastructure
Construction, infrastructure design,
dredging and port machinery
manufacturing businesses)
TRCERR DA RAT (g
S fEaN iyl e
£
8103 hmvod Limited (Systems development, 7020 7,020 4935 4935 14251 13449 7020 14251 555 416 (7,31) 800
professional services, proprietary
trading and money lending)
hmvod AR (RERE 5%
TR LRe s RS
8153 Code Agriculture (Holdings) Limited - 60,185 - 3.167 - 17483 - 6,380 - 186 - (11,103)
(Provision of digital television
services, provision of car beauty
services and money lending)
FHURERRARAT (GREUTE
BRI RO AR k)
8202 Inno-Tech Holdings Limited (Buses - 49122 - 4,665 - 33,164 - 9,726 - 284 - (23,438)

and bus stations advertising business

in the People’s Republic of China)
EARRARAR (REARSH

BERELRELHIEE)
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% #) (In Receivership)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B B i B 3 B

Gain/(loss)
Percentage of on change in
Stock ~ Name of investee company and its share capital owned by the Investment cost Percentage to the Group’s fair value for
name  principal business Number of shares held Group (note) Fair value et assets the year ended
RENT R
e Tk M WHER#Z
RoE - BEATARRAEERH A AEMBEH L RATR I SRR (k) AF(E ZHi Wi/ ()

30 June 2019 30 June 2018 30 June 2019, 30 June 2018 30 June 2019 30 June 2018 30 June 2019 30 June 2018 30 June 2019 30 June 2018 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
SROME RN ZROME CFO0F CROAE CRONE CROME CTOAF ZFAR R SROUE CRoNE
AREER AAZEH AREER AA=TE RAEER AR=tR O AASER AR=TH O ORASER AA=tH O ARSER AR=TH

’000 000 % %  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 % %  HK$'000  HKS'000
Fh TR % % T#x  T#r  Fi#m TEx % % TEE  T#x
8228 National Arts Entertainment and - 2,840 - 0.063 - 633 - 1,008 - 029 - 375

Culture Group Limited (Film
production and distribution,
provision of management services
for artists and operations of film
studio and hotels)
RERELEMARAT (EHY
{ERET RUEEERHTEN
RETRRRIA)

118,226 154,050 112,633 164476 89.01 49.03 (5,593) 13,834

Note: Investment cost represents average acquisition costs for the sk« BB AR TR S5 T B A4S - it -

listed securities. Some of the investments in the listed securities TR I7 Z A4 B A SR I A LAAE AR BE A
were made by the Group in prior years. For those parts of o R LAAEAR BE Y ETTRE SRR 2 T4
investment in listed securities which were made in prior years, M5 > A7 BB ZEAE AP 3R R0 2R AR
they were subject to fair value adjustments and gain/(loss) on BH 47 JIE 2 B BOAF FE 4557 F il RR A T (B 52 )
change in fair value were recognised at the financial year end ZUzs, (tR) o EissEinEE —F—
of the respective years. The gain/(loss) on change in fair value ERNAZTHEFE - /NFENH=ZTHIE
of the listed securities for the year ended 30 June 2019 and 30 HEREZ AN EE B 2 s 18) A
June 2018 excluded those amounts being recognised in prior MR B R 2 45 -

years.
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A

(Tn Receivership) ( #% %% )

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B B i B 3 B

Details of the listed securities disposed of are as C HE FTaEHZFEHWT
follows:
FY2019 FY2018
B UM B ZE— N\ BUEE
Number of Number of
shares Profit/(Loss) shares  Profit/(Loss)
disposed of on disposal disposed of  on disposal
itk gz
cHi & wH, & A
Jie 43 e H (548) liiqlig 4z (5 1H)
’000 HK$°000 000 HK$°000
T i T T % T#T
0279  Freeman FinTech Corporation Limited - - 100,000 (2,000)
B AP 4 Rl R 422 B A B )
0530 Goldin Financial Holdings Limited 1,000 2,317 6,056 1,748
R Rl (SR A R A F
0718 Tai United Holdings Limited 50,000 (13,000) - -
AN AT PR ]
0943  eForce Holdings Limited 3,168 (270) - -
BRI A R H
1116 ~ Mayer Holdings Limited 6,000 1,140 - -
FE R OR PR A
1130  China Environmental Resources Group Limited - - 2,260 195
o [ R B U R A PR
1166  Solartech International Holdings Limited 66,500 (79,283) 28,220 5,812
B IR A BR A A
2112 CAA Resources Limited - — 1,700 18
88 R IR AT PR )
6060 ZhongAn Online P&C Insurance Co., Ltd 1,187 2,565 - -
ST 7 T E DR B B 003 A KR 2 )
8103 hmvod Limited hmvod - - 1,500 (90)

hmvod B4 AT FR 2 7]
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% ) (In Receivership)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B B i B 3 B

FY2019 FY2018
R R BUEE TR\
Number Number of
of shares Profit/(Loss) shares  Profit/(Loss)
disposed of on disposal disposed of  on disposal
itk gz
[E%iiE: wwH, & ik
JBe 3y % H (548) gl A qc| (5 1H)
’000 HK$°000 000 HKS$’000
T B T#u T % T#T
8153  Code Agriculture (Holdings) Limited 60,185 (4,089) 10,120 (824)
Pl ZE 2B A BR A ]
8202 Inno-Tech Holdings Limited 49,122 (5,514) 14,200 (9,248)
AN A R AT

8228 National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group
Limited 2,840 (83) 1,360 (12)
IR 4 442 4 S A B T A PR

8621 Metropolis Capital Holdings Limited 2,040 841 - -

8356 CNC Holdings Limited - - 19,900 (780)
r B A TR AL AT PR )

(95,376) (5,181)

As at 30 June 2019, the Group held an unlisted I _F—JLHFESNH =+ H » AREEEF
convertible bond with a principal amount of FHH MBI AEERARAF ([HEHE],
US$7,000,000 (the “CB”) issued by Union Asia M U595 :8173) BT M A& % 5
Enterprise Holdings Limited (“Union Asia”, stock  7,000,0003% G Z 3 b 1 A] 4 JIk f& 7%
code: 8173). As the trading in the shares of Union Asia ([ W fE 2% |) - h it @ 5n 2 K 2
has been suspended since 20 March 2017 and resumed H —~ZF—LHFE=H T HEEIFEH
of trading on 14 November 2019, the Group expects Mf A ~ZF— L4+ —H V0 HIKE H
that the fair value of the CB would be substantially B > A< 4 [8] 76 {0 o] #f i & 5% 2 & °F(H
reduced. Hence, a full provision of approximately & & K W& i 2 > [K UL B 3 i vl 2 3% &
HK$37.3 million on the carrying value of the CB as at F#jit ~E—LHFANH =1+ H ZRHHE
30 June 2017 was made. YEH1%937,300,0009 7T 2 4 B -
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A

(In Receivership) (445 #)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Logistic services

The Group started participating in the logistic
industry during the financial year ended 30 June
2017 (“FY2017”) through the acquisition of 100%
equity interest in ACC Logistics Limited (“ACC”)
at a consideration of HK$23.8 million, which was
satisfied as follow: (i) HK$2.0 million in cash; and
(i1) HK$21.8 million by the issue of a promissory
note of the Company. ACC is engaged in the
provision of general services in palletization,
receiving and delivery, custom clearance for both
the air and ocean cargoes, and warehousing.
Details of this transaction were set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 24 February
2017.

ACC provides logistic services. Since last year, the
lack of inventory warehouses led to devastating
impact on its operations associated with customer
abandonment. In the first and second quarters of the
year, its operating income was approximately
HK$2.9 million. During the third and fourth quarters
of the year thereafter, its operating income was close
to zero. Last year, the revenue from logistic services
segment was approximately HK$16.8 million. In
addition, an impairment of approximately HK$0.3
million (2018: approximately HK$nil) has also been
made on those receivables that have been overdue for
over 365 days.

In order to find a suitable solution, the Company
has sought for liquidators. Subsequently, on 12
August 2019, Ernst & Young was appointed as the
liquidator to handle the matter as soon as
practicable. The excerpts are contained under the
section headed “Material events after the reporting
period — liquidation of Power Elite Group” on
pages 52 to 53 of this annual report.

o PR W B o M

o i AR 5

AEFEHHKBRE ~F—-LEANH
=T HIEMEAEE( R —LH
BUAE B |) 375 408 i i e 3 4 ) ik A
B 28 ) (T AR 1) 100% M HE T B
w2 mY AT ¥ RE A
23,800,000% 7 > B2 LA FFI 5 K X
£} 1 (1)2,000,000% 7T LA B 4 S £
K (i1)21,800,000%5 JC i #4 ¥ 17 A<
N ) RAS SRR A o IR E
PR — W U RS - R AR A B 2
WA ZE A > A R 2 8 0 g R 5 ) 1Y
15 BA BB Aot o 5228 7 B AT Ui A
ANFHME T — L4 A
VO HZ A e

TR 78 R L P T RS o B S AR AR
D fE R RE SR Pk s W
KRR B T B o N AR AR A —
K ZFE HEESIKRAL
2,900,000%5 JG » MA% » ARAEBEES =
R I 2 R BB IR AR R o K
o W) R B o BT IR & A
16,800,000%5 JC » M 4h > 7R B 5k 41
W 365 H A RE UK IEAF B WA
#1300,000% 70 ( & — )\4F /%
Wt) °

LR B GBIy % AAFR
W EBN - BEfR > I ZF— U
NATZH BAKERIELHEBR
N o DA PR B 5% 5 H - 0 Bk A
AR 52 2 53 [ i W M 4%
& K& F-Power ElitedE [ 7 i |

#kpo
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% ) (In Receivership)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B B i B 3 B

18

Property investment
The property located at Beijing

On 18 January 2018, the Company completed the
acquisition of Ample Talent Holdings Limited
(“Ample Talent”) for the consideration of
HK$34.2 million, which shall be satisfied as
follow: (i) HK$24.0 million by cash; and (ii)
HK$10.2 million by cash within twelve months
after completion. Ample Talent, through its
wholly-owned subsidiary, owns a residential
property located at 48 Liangmaqiao Road, the
Chaoyang District, Beijing (the “Beijing
Property”). Details of the acquisition were set out
in the Company’s announcement dated 23 June
2017.

The Beijing Property, which was originally a self-
owned property of the Vendor (unless specified
otherwise, terms used herein shall have the same
meanings as defined in the Company’s
announcement dated 23 June 2017), was
subsequently sold to the Company on 23 June
2017. According to the supplemental agreement
dated 18 January 2018, the sum of balance of
HK$10.2 million will be paid by cash within
twelve months upon the Completion. The
Company has paid HK$2.0 million within such
twelve-months period. Thereafter, the Company
suspected that the Beijing property has been
occupied by unknown occupant without the
authorisation of the Group.

The Company has sought a legal opinion from a
PRC lawyer regarding the right to use the property.
The summary of the legal opinion is as following:

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 4 #

WL E
(09 9230k7ES

e AN Sl = I VAN B N/
56 B ULl Ample Talent Holdings
Limited ([ Ample Talent]) > f{ {&
/%534,200,000%5 7C - 16925 8 DL T U7
L FAT 1 (1)24,000,0009 7T LABL 4>
A5 J(ii)10,200,000 85 JC i 58
BAE | A N RL B A S A
Ample Talent’Z it H 4> & [} 8§ 2\ v
B A O bt 7 58 By I ST TS A
485 —HAEEWET AR D
%) o WU IEAY RN WA AL
AAMAE - —-LtHEANA T =

HZ Ao

e mER BTN HAME)
(Bk 59 A 36 W1 & 41 A i fir A el 42
HAANRHM A ~F—LHEANH
T =Rz AR e E B A
R BN —F—LENH
T EHBETANA A
WA —F— ) F—H+ /B ZH
7 b ik > £ %H10,200,000%5 0 % 7
SERLAR T AR N AB 4 AT e AR
N A A RZ T AR T B S AT
2,000,000%% 7T © It 1% - A 2% 7] 4
BE > L) B E R A E R AR
AR S A RETIAG D o

AN B T % S 4 HE A )
— AR R R R o ik
AT




Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A

(Tn Receivership) ( #% %% )

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(a) A domestic subsidiary may communicate and
negotiate with a third party, requesting that it
shall immediately end the occupation, move
out within the specified time limit, deliver the
subject property in the original condition, and
pay the rent for its use of the property during
the period of encroachment (the rental price
shall be determined by reference to the
prevailing market rent level of the same
region at that time) and overdue interest on
the amount of any overdue monthly rental
payments to the territory;

(b) If the negotiation fails, the domestic
subsidiary may hire a lawyer to send a formal
lawyer’s letter to the third party, reiterating
the appeal;

(c) If the third party refuses to cooperate, the
domestic subsidiary may make proceedings to
the local court and require the third party to
bear the tort liability; and after obtaining a
valid successful judgment, apply to the court
for enforcement by the judgment;

(d) If the third party maliciously destroys the door
lock and seizes the Beijing Property, the
domestic subsidiary may report the case to the
local public security authorities.

The property located at Hainan

Reference is made to the Company’s announcement
dated 14 September 2016, the Group acquired a
residential property located in Hainan in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) through (i fikits &
BEAAREBOEIN)) (W kW ] ) at the cash
consideration of RMBS&.5 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$9,860,000).

o PR W B o M

(a) 5 1A B JB 2> ) AT BELER = U7
A e BE T o BESR L SE R IR AL
FH > A S W BR A 3 H > S A
i W 24 IR LA AT > I ST AR
it 10 1] ok ) % 0 S ) L (AL
&M IHS 5 E W] — Mo [
AT I 5 A oK 2 ) I
AF: A7 3 39 45 A AH 4 A5 K0 2
WA

(b) ANEERE B B2 N BB A F] ]
L A T 1) 56 = 5 8% OE oC
Rl ER > B REOR

(c) W =HIEEAE > BEA S
) AT ) M R 0 N
REE = AR RE AT 5 FEHR
1A O s H AR > 13 B
HI SR BT ke

(d) Gnss = 7 R 1 P 8 A
A2 - BN B 2 R AT
] ¥ b A B R -

SR AN T H WA T — 754
A H Z 4 2 52 18375 4 s ik
BEREGEE (FEID (SRR
Wi 7 S R 2N R S R (T
Bl ) igrmEn—HETYE B
A8 B N R H8,500,0000C (FH 3 i
#79,860,000% 7T ) °

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 4£#

19




B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% ) (In Receivership)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B B i B 3 B
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During the year, as the property right certificate
has not yet been provided by the developer, the
Company has sought for a legal opinion from a
PRC lawyer. The summary of the legal opinion is
as follows:

(a) There is no substantive obstacle to the
property right.

(b) As at 16 September 2019, the developer has
completed the first registration and has
obtained the property ownership certificate of
the whole project. It is expected that the
Company will be able to deal with the
property right individually after two to three
months.

(c) The Company was not able to register the
ownership of the property before 20
November 2019. From 21 November 2019,
the Company has the right to legally cancel
the contract for the sale of the property and
request the developer to refund the paid
amount to the Company. The Company also
has the right to request the developer to repay
the Company for any liquidated damages.

No rental income was generated from both Beijing
Property and Hainan property during the years
(2018: nil).

Due to the abovementioned deficiency, the
Company has sought for liquidators during the
year. Subsequently, on 12 August 2019, Ernst &
Young was appointed as the liquidator to facilitate
proper handling as soon as possible. The excerpts
are contained under the section headed “Material
events after the reporting period — liquidation of
Power Elite Group” on pages 52 to 53 of this
annual report.
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A

(Tn Receivership) ( #% %% )

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Food and Beverage Trading

On 7 July 2017, the Company announced that the
Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement for
the acquisition of the entire equity interest in Volk
Favor Food Group limited (“Volk Favor”) at a
consideration of HK$20 million, which shall be
satisfied as follow: (i) HK$1 million in cash upon
signing of the memorandum dated 29 June 2017 as
earnest money; and (ii) HK$19 million by the issue
of a promissory note of the Company. Volk Favor
and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in feed
production, pig breeding, pig slaughtering and pig
farming, as well as production and sale of pork
products and processed meat products. Completion of
the acquisition took place upon signing of the sales
and purchase agreement. Details of the transaction
are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 7
July 2017.

Due to the unfavorable economic condition in the
PRC, Volk Favor Food Group Limited and its
subsidiaries (“Volk Favor Group”) ceased their
operation during the year ended 30 June 2018. As
a result, no revenue was recorded for FY2019 (FY
2018: approximately HK$8.2 million). It also
represented 100% decrease in revenue of this
business segment as compared to that of FY2018.
In addition, no revenue was generated from trading
of wine and spirits (2018: approximately HK$0.5
million) as the operation has been suspended.
Accordingly, an impairment of approximately
HK$2.6 million (2018: approximately HK$1.0
million) has been made on those receivables which
have been overdue for over 365 days.

During the year, the Company has sought for
liquidators. Subsequently, on 12 August 2019,
Ernst & Young was appointed as the liquidator to
facilitate proper handling as soon as possible. The
excerpts are contained under the section headed
“Material events after the reporting period —
liquidation of Power Elite Group” on pages 52 to
53 of this annual report.

o PR W B o M

i KK E 5

R LA LEH RAFE
i > AR EHE U Volk Favor Food
GroupLimited ([ Volk Favor|) 2 %
TR ICRERT S — TEE ek AE S
20,000,000% 7 » A% LA T 51 5 2 L
f5F 1 (i)1,000,000%5 7T 174 %% & H 1A 2
ZER—LFSNH T IUH 2 S Bk
BUB XM ELMES: X
(i)19,000,000%5 JT. 375 # #5474 2 A
AR ST S A - Volk Favor [ H: b
Ji§ o8 ) BB SRR E - RS
T ERBEEREEERS UK
G TR SR AR T R SR ) A R
B o i = T R R R B R T
B o 7% 58 5 W FE G R A A 7 H
BhoZ—bLFELALAZ A

B 7 R B 28 SR AN R > Volk Favor
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s ( —FE— NMHHAERE : 4
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1,000,000%57T) °

ARAEFEN > KAFCYEEEAN-

BEfZ - i —F—SLEAH+ZH >
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Health Care Services

The operation of healthcare services, which mainly
include hot stone spa and health related services,
has been commenced in February 2015. For
FY2019, revenue generated from this business
segment amounted to approximately HK$0.3
million, representing a decrease of approximately
70.0% from that of approximately HK$1.0 million
recorded in FY 2018.

Save as disclosed in the Company’s announcement
dated 19 December 2018, the Company decided to
cease the operation of both Sharp Elegant Limited
and its subsidiary in Shanghai (collectively, the
“Sharp Elegant Group”). As a result of the
cessation of operation, loss on cessation of
healthcare service operation incurred for FY2019
amounted to approximately HK$1.0 million (FY
2018: nil).

A huge amount was invested in hot stone spa
business. From 2017 to the current year, a total
investment amount of approximately HK$55.6
million was invested in the company established in
Hong Kong, and a total investment amount of
approximately HK$25.0 million was invested in the
Shanghai branch. Considering that the hot stone spa
business was stagnant while huge amount of capital
had been invested, the Company conducted a
comprehensive provision and concluded that Sharp
Elegant Group had been mismanaged by the former
directors and/or management team (including Ms. Su
Ying-Hsi (previous name: Ms. Su Tsu Hsien)).
Therefore, the Company has engaged Ernst & Young
as the liquidator to voluntarily wind up the Sharp
Elegant Group, so as to investigate the huge amount
of capital investment, transactions and to recoup its
losses as much as possible from all parties related to
Sharp Elegant Group. The excerpts are contained
under the section headed “Material events after the
reporting period — liquidation of Power Elite Group”
on pages 52 to 53 of this annual report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Fund investment

PAM Real Estate Opportunities Fund LP (“the Fund”)

Save as disclosed in the Company’s announcement
dated 27 June 2017, the investment objective and scope
of the Fund is to generate considerable streams of
income and achieve long-term capital appreciation
through, (i) a balanced and diversified portfolio of
global, high quality, commercial and residential real
properties, and (ii) investing, directly or indirectly, in
debt, equity or debt-or equity-related securities issued
by private and listed companies globally. The Company
believed that the Fund Investment would provide the
Group a steady stream of income and thus, improve the
overall financial performance of the Group. The
Company was also of the view that the Fund
Investment would enable the Group to invest in
different form of securities in the real estate sector and
diversify the market coverage and risk exposure of the
Group.

The Fund is managed by DBS Bank Limited (the
“Fund Administrator”) with a capital contribution of
approximately US$2,561,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$20,000,000).

On a regular basis, a statement of the Fund was
provided by the Fund Administrator. According to the
report dated 30 June 2019, the net asset value (after
valuation fees) of the Fund was approximately
USD519,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$4,055,000) (2018: approximately USD486,000,
equivalent to approximately HK$3,815,000), and
accumulated losses as at 30 June 2019 was
approximately US$2,042,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$15,927,000) (2018: approximately
US$2,075,000, equivalent to approximately
HK$16,185,000).

o PR W B o M

Refe

PAM Real Estate Opportunities Fund LP
([ %)
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B H AR M RS A - ()Y i £ oot
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

o BRI W B o M

On 20 June 2019, the General Partner of the
Partnership served a notice, pursuant to which, the
Partnership will be wound up and dissolved in
accordance with the provision of the Exempted Limited
Partnership Agreement dated 12 December 2016 and
Exempted Limited Partnership Law (2018 Revision) (as
amended) of the Cayman Islands. Based on the net
asset value, the final distribution was approximately
US$519,000 and the exchange rate was 7.8107. On 20
September 2019, the Company received a transaction
advice from the Fund Administrator and the final
distribution was approximately HK$4,055,000. The
final distribution was intended to be used as the
working capital of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not acquire
other funds during FY2019.

The General Offer

On 23 November 2017, through a wholly-owned
vehicle Nieumarkt Investments Ltd, Mr. Ng Kwok
Wing, Michael purchased a total of 912,082,400 shares,
representing approximately 59.47% of the total issued
capital of the Company at HK$0.170 each, for a total
consideration of HK$155,054,008. Nieumarkt
Investments Ltd then made a general offer at the same
price for acquiring all the other remaining outstanding
shares. On 17 January 2018, Nieumarkt Investments
Ltd received valid acceptances for 79,607,059 Shares,
representing approximately 5.19% of the Company’s
issued share capital. As a result, the interest in the
Company owned by Nieumarkt Investment Ltd boosted
to 64.66% upon completion of the general offer.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES

For FY2019, the Company did not conduct any fund
raising activities.

Rights Issue

On 4 January 2017, the Company announced that the
Company proposed to raise a gross proceed of
approximately HK$193.2 million by way of rights issue
of 1,150,241,091 rights shares at a subscription price of
HK$0.168 per rights share on the basis of 3 rights
shares for every 1 share held on 25 May 2017.

The rights issue became unconditional on 13 June 2017
and the rights shares were all allotted on 20 June 2017.
The net proceeds of approximately HK$186.3 million
from the rights issue was used as to: (i) HK$50 million
for granting of loans under the money lending business;
(ii) HK$50 million for the acquisition of listed
securities; (iii) HK$20 million for investment in
property fund; (iv) HK$16.3 million for partial
payment of the consideration for the acquisition of
Ample Talent; (v) approximately HK$29.7 million was
used as general working capital to finance the daily
operations of the Group pursuant to the announcement
for the change in use of proceeds from rights issue
dated 7 September 2017; and (vi) the remaining
balance of approximately HK$20.3 million was fully
utilised in securities investment during the first quarter
of FY2018.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group posted a consolidated revenue of
approximately HK$19.4 million for FY 2019,
representing a substantial decrease of approximately
HK$22.0 million or 53.1% as compared to that of
FY2018. The decrease in revenue was primarily
attributable to the logistics services and interest income
from money lending business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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For FY2019, the Group’s gross profit margin had an
increase from profit margin of 29.3% to gross profit
margin of 59.3%. The increase in gross profit margin
was primarily due to the gross profit margin generated
from the securities trading.

Other income in FY2019 decreased to approximately
HK$13.6 million from approximately HK$24.1 million
in FY2018. It was mainly due to the absence of fair
value gain on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss.

The administrative expenses have decreased by
approximately HK$23.8 million, a 45.2% decrease to
approximately HK$28.9 million in FY2019 from
approximately HK$52.7 million in FY2018. The
decrease was mainly attributed to decrease in staff
costs and professional fees incurred in FY2019.

Other operating expenses in FY2019 have increased to
approximately HK$145.2 million from approximately
HK$138.1 million. It was mainly resulted from increase
in loss on disposal of financial assets at FVTPL of
approximately HK$95.4 million.

Finance costs increased by approximately HK$1.1
million to approximately HK$3.3 million in FY2019
from approximately HK$2.2 million in FY2018. The
increase was mainly due to the increase in the interest
payments for borrowing and margin financing.

Share of loss of an associate was amounted to
approximately HK$0.7 million in FY2018 which
represents share of results of the Group’s 49% interest in
Baron’s School of Music Limited (“Baron”). Baron was
acquired by the Group in August 2012. The carrying
amount of Baron became nil in FY2018. Since then, the
Group will not share any loss of Baron. Baron was
founded and is currently operated by a famous producer in
Hong Kong, Mr. Ronald Ng. It is principally engaged in
providing high quality programmes and courses in both
classical and contemporary music.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group recorded a net loss of approximately
HK$152.3 million for the year ended 30 June 2019,
representing a decrease of approximately 2.0% as
compared to the net loss of approximately HK$155.2
million for the same period last year. Other than
operating expenses, the net loss was attributed to the
loss on disposal of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, impairment loss on trade and other
receivables, and loss on loss of control of a liquidating
subsidiary.

FINANCIAL POSITION AND LIQUIDITY

As at 30 June 2019, the Group held total assets of
approximately HK$281.0 million (As at 30 June 2018:
approximately HK$327.6 million), including cash and
bank balances of approximately HK$9.9 million (As at
30 June 2018: approximately HK$22.0 million).

On 24 January 2019, the Company and a creditor
entered into a revolving loan facility of HK$100.0
million which has been secured by debentures.
Debentures were issued by the Company and Long
Peace Group limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company). The revolving loan facility carried floating
interest rates as quoted by the Hong Kong and
Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited from time to
time plus two and three-quarter percent per annum.
Interest is payable on a monthly basis in arrears. In
addition, the Company shall pay a commitment fee on
the undrawn portion of the facility from time to time
during the available period at the rate of 0.25% per
annum and such commitment fee shall be payable on
the last day of every 6 months in arrears commencing
from the date of the facility. The facility is intended for
working capital of the Group.

As at 30 June 2019, the Group has a margin facility
which provided by a broker company, and the margin
facility was approximately HK$38.5 million in which
approximately HK$30.1 million has been utilised. The
margin facility has been secured by the financial assets
at fair value through profit and loss with a total market
value of approximately HK$112.6 million. It carried a
floating interest rate of 12.5% per annum.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

o BRI W B o M

The Group’s current ratio (current assets/current
liabilities) was 0.9 (30 June 2018: 4.6). Gearing ratio,
calculated on the basis of the Group’s interest-bearing
borrowing divided by the equity attributable to owners
of the Company, was 185.6% (30 June 2018: 9.3%).
The Board will closely monitor the status.

IMPAIRMENTS - FY2019
1. Impairment loss on other receivable

Save as disclosed in the Company’s announcement
dated 7 July 2017, the Group completed the
acquisition of 100% equity interest in Volk Favor
Group for a cash consideration of HK$1.0 million
(the “Cash Consideration”) and an issuance of
promissory note of HK$19.0 million (the “PN”).
Last year, the Group has settled approximately
HK$15.2 million of Volk Favor’s PN as to HK$4.5
million in cash and approximately HK $10.7
million by way of assignment of loan receivables
(the “Settlements”).

According to the sale and purchase agreement, if
the actual audited consolidated net profit after tax
of the Volk Favor for the period within 12 months
from the completion date was less than the Profit
Guarantee, Cosmic Lane Limited (the “Vendor”)
shall compensate the Company with an amount in
respect of the shortfall calculated according to the
formula. As Volk Favor failed to meet the profit
guarantee, the Vendor shall compensate the
Company with a total amount of HK$16.2 million
(the “Shortfall”) which represents the sum of Cash
Consideration and the Settlements. The Vendor is a
private company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands, and it appears remote for the Vendor to
repay or refund the Shortfall. Therefore, an
impairment loss of HK$16.2 million has been
made for the year ended 30 June 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Although the impairment loss has been made, the
Company has proactively sought for an efficient
way to deal with the Vendor and collect the
Shortfall from the Vendor and/or the natural person
who is the one to receive the cash considerations.
In order to facilitate proper handling as soon as
possible, the Company has sought for liquidators
during the year. On 12 August 2019, the Company
has placed Power Elite Group, including Volk
Favor and Volk Favor Group, into voluntary
liquidation. Ernst & Young has been appointed as
the liquidator to voluntarily wind up the Volk
Favor and Volk Favor Group and to investigate the
acquisition, the transaction and recoup its losses as
best as possible, including the profit guarantee.
The excerpts are contained under the section
headed “Material events after the reporting period
— liquidation of Power Elite Group” on pages 52 to
53 of this annual report.

Impairment loss on intangible assets and
goodwill

As a full provision was made in respect of all
intangible assets and goodwill during the FY2018,
therefore, no assessment on impairment was
conducted during the FY2019.

Others

Save as disclosed above, no material impairment
has been made during the FY2019.
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IMPAIRMENTS - FY2018

1.

Impairment loss on investment in an associate

For the year ended 30 June 2018 (the “Year
2018”), the Company reviewed the financial
results of Baron which is operated by Mr. Ng Lok
Shing Ronald (a composer in Hong Kong) and the
Company noted that the business operation of
Baron is continuously making losses which is
reflected by endless sharing of losses from Baron
since the completion of the acquisition of 49% of
equity interest in Baron. The Company has also
considered the possibility of Baron to generate
sufficient working capital for its music business.
However, no new plan was available for its music
business. In addition, the sharing of loss of each
financial year has clearly indicated that Baron is
not capable to enlarge its business scale.
Moreover, another major factor leading to an
impairment loss recognised for the Year 2018 was
mainly attributed to the significant decrease in
income resulted from the poor performance of its
music consultancy services and the unsuccessful
launch of the corporation’s education programmes.

Based on the business valuation report, three
valuation approaches including the market
approach, the income approach and the asset
approach are taken into account to assess the fair
value of Baron. The valuation was based on the
fair value in accordance with the Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standard 13 — Fair Value
Measurement. The major assumptions adopted in
the valuation are, among others, as follows:

« the information provided regarding Baron’s
financial and business affairs are accurate and
reliable;

*  there are, or will have, adequate human capital
and capacity required for the provision of the
services of Baron, and the required human
capital and capacity will be acquired in a
timely manner that will not affect its
operation;
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

* there are no undisclosed actual or contingent
assets or liabilities, no unusual obligations or
substantial commitments, other than in the
ordinary course of business as reflected in the
financials, nor any litigation pending or
threatened, which would have a material
impact on the value of Baron as the date of
valuation;

* the policy on tax rate applicable will not
materially change; and

e apart from the figures shown in the financial
statements available to the valuer, Baron has
no material asset and liability as of the date of
the valuation.

According to HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”,
the reporting entity should compare the carrying
amount of the assets with its recoverable amount,
being the higher of value in use and fair value less
cost of disposal.

The asset approach was the method adopted by
Access Partner Consultancy & Appraisals Limited
(the “Valuer”) to determine the fair value of the
business unit so that the Company can figure the fair
value of the business unit, the recoverable amount
that stated in the HKAS.

On the basis that the summation of market value of
the individual assets represents the total value of
Baron, the value of the equity interest can be
derived by subtracting the market value of the total
liabilities from the total assets. In addition, as
advised by the management of Baron, Baron does
not have any intangible asset.

Baron recorded continuous losses since 2016, and
recorded net liabilities of approximately
HK$9,800,000 as of 30 June 2018. The management
of Baron had no future business plan to improve its
performance. It was concluded that no foreseeable
profit could be made by Baron. Therefore, the Valuer
decided to use asset approach instead of income
approach.
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The valuation report concluded that as the
continuous losses since 2016 and negative net
asset value of Baron was recorded, the market
approach may not be an appropriate valuation
method. Moreover, Baron did not establish any
development plan for improving its performance.
Hence, the income approach may not be an
appropriate valuation method. Lastly, taking into
account the asset approach, given that Baron has a
negative net asset value, it is considered that
Baron has no commercial value.

Therefore, the impairment loss of HK$3,525,000
was made against the carrying value of the entire

equity interest in Baron for the year ended 30 June
2018.

Impairment loss on trade and other receivables

As at 30 June 2018, the Group’s trade and other
receivables amounted to approximately
HK$36,324,000. The Group recorded an impairment
loss on trade and other receivables of approximately
HK$8,880,000.

(a) Trade Receivable — HK$993,000

Reference is made to the Company’s
announcement dated 9 August 2018, upon the
change of control of the Company at the
beginning of last year, the Company’s board
composition has been changed accordingly.
The Company has reviewed the financial
position and the operations of the Group. For
the financial year ended 30 June 2017, the
Company noted a reduction in revenue from
the food and beverage trading business of
approximately 29.4% as compared to that of
the financial year ended 30 June 2016. The
reduction was mainly due to the decrease in
trading of wine and spirits.

During the Year 2018, the revenue generated
from trading of wine and spirits remains
minor. It is expected that the revenue growth
will be stagnant. Therefore, the impairment
was made on those receivables that have been
overdue for over 365 days on a prudent basis.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 4 #

FEAE R o 8 2 > ol A 4 3 4R B B
H R NG ER &
JEE T L2 B > PR Tl 359 T e
I A (D7 % - BLAh - A4S
48 B2 I8 O Wil A2 AE AT ol o 2R B0 Bk
JERFE] - R WAL AT RE AR JF
B IS E DT I5 - R > KEGET A
> B 48 R B e Y L N
E7 AR A% BB B BGEE A A
HA T EEE -

H > e —F—/\FH=1TH
1F 4F B O A0 48 & 92 2 e 1 2
i RE BR O ME OB E s R
3,525,000%5 JC °

R M B sk e Ll W WGk L 2 AP s
1

RoE—ENH=1TH AEH
1) JE Wi AR K e L Ath B i 3k TH &
36,324,000 70 » A< 5 [ &% 15 ME Uk
% T e EC At JREE i R TE A T (E s 1R
#18,880,000%% T

(a) MENCHRZK — 993,000 T
Zh Rl B A - — VAE N
AILH Z A% - A ZEARRN

& A BTN A ESE B o AN R E
7 [ A A [ Y B RS IR I K £
oM E T -LENA=ZT
HE B BUF s AR Al ER
2> B KK ) SEE I
HEBEE F - NENH
= H kB RS
29.4% o ¥/ 3 B i i 4
W X E 5 W e

TE )\ AT S B
E 5 B IR g AT SR A - H
WA g 14 TE T A 45 o (R
2y E R WL B gt 365 H
DL b ) FE O TR AR HIRE o




Celebrate International Holdings Limited % it 13 B ( 4% Jit )

AR 2

(Tn Receivership) ( #% %% )

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(b) Other Receivables — Loan Interest Receivable

Reference is made to the Company’s
announcements of the Company dated 24 July
2018 and 9 August 2018, it was noted that
Grand Faith Finance Limited (“Grand Faith”)
was placed into voluntary liquidation (the
“Liquidation”). The Company has considered
that:

(1) due to the financial position and the
operations of the Grand Faith and given
the recent decline in the profitability of
Grand Faith, the directors become more
cautious about the prospect of money
lending;

(ii) it is more prudent for the Group to
liquidate Grand Faith and reallocate its
resources to set up a new vehicle which
is principally engaged in money lending
business;

(iii) the poor financial performance of Grand
Faith would adversely affect its reputation
and thus its business development ability;

(iv) the Company has also considered the
view of insolvency of Grand Faith as of
31 March 2018 and 30 June 2017; and

(v) although Grand Faith was placed into the
Liquidation after the Year 2018, the
Company believed that the controls over
the operation and management of Grand
Faith have passed to the liquidator on 24
July 2018.

Therefore, the impairment of HK$7,791,000
was made against the entire loan interest
receivable for the Year 2018 on the basis as if
Grand Faith is liquidated.

For more information regarding the poor
performance and insolvency of Grand Faith,
please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 24 July 2018 regarding the
voluntary winding-up of a subsidiary and
business update.

(b)
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(c¢) Other Receivables

The impairment represents other receivables
of Volk Favor. Volk Favor has suspended its
operation due to the unfavorable economic
conditions in the PRC. The Company also
believed that it was very difficult for Volk
Favor to collect such outstanding amount in
the PRC. Therefore, an impairment of
approximately HK$96,000 was made for the
Year 2018 on a prudent basis. The current
management of the Company has engaged
liquidators to voluntarily wind up the Volk
Favour Group to recoup its losses as best as
possible, including the profit guarantee.

Impairment loss on loan receivable

During the Year 2018, the impairment of
HKS$72,680,000 was made for the entire loan
receivable as result of the Liquidation. For more
information, please refer to the above section
headed “Other Receivables — Loan Interest
Receivable” on page 33 of this annual report.

Impairment loss on intangible assets and goodwill

The intangible assets and goodwill arose from the
acquisition of the ACC and Volk Favor. Such
intangible assets are comprised of the relevant
customer relationship and brand name.

(a) ACC

Save as disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 24 February 2017, the
valuation of the ACC was based on the market
approach. The brand name, customer
relationship and goodwill were formed upon
the acquisition of ACC (including the ACC’s
customers).

Save as disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 28 September 2018, the
competition of the logistics industry was very
intensive in Hong Kong. The operation of
logistics was suspended due to the lack of
place of storage. In addition, the management
of ACC did not have any feasible plan to re-
activate the operation. As a result, the
turnover significantly dropped during the last
quarter of the Year 2018. The Company also
noted that a significant number of ACC’s
customers has been lost.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Moreover, the Company noted the attrition rate
and growth rate for the valuation of customer
relationship was 15% and 2% respectively based
on the historical customer list. As there has been
a significant loss in customers during the last
quarter of the Year 2018, the historical attrition
rate and growth rate are no longer relevant, no
valuation report on customer relationship for the
Year 2018 can be properly conducted.
Therefore, impairment loss of HK$6,233,000 in
relation to the customer relationship has been
made. Furthermore, regarding the loss of ACC’s
customers and absence of feasible plan to re-
activate the operation for cash flow forecast,
impairment losses of HK$11,183,000 in relation
to goodwill has also been made.

Volk Favor

The assets of Volk Favor are mainly
comprised of account receivables, cash and
office equipment, without any intangible
assets. Since the liabilities cannot be
forfeited, no adjustment of net asset value is
to be expected (e.g., increase total assets
amount or decrease total liabilities amount)
with negative net asset value.

Volk Favor has ceased its operation since
April 2018 due to the unfavorable economic
conditions in the PRC. Upon the termination
of its operation, no revenue generated from its
customer is recorded. The intangible assets
stemming from its customer relationship
should be impaired to zero in order to reflect
the absence of economic inflow to the Group.
Therefore, no business valuation on the
customer relationship and goodwill for the
year end was conducted.

However, a valuation report was prepared by the
valuer to access on whether the value of Volk
Favor can be quantified. The valuation is based
on fair value in accordance with the Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standard 13 — Fair Value
Measurement. The valuer considered three
generally accepted approaches and has adopted
the asset-based approach in valuing the fair
value of Volk Favor. The major assumptions
adopted by in the valuation are, among others,
as follows:

(b)
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* the information provided with regards to
Volk Favor’s financial and business
affairs are accurate and reliable;

* there are, or will have, adequate human
capital and capacity required for the
provision of the services of Volk Favor,
and the required human capital and
capacity will be acquired in a timely
manner that will not affect its operation;

* there are no undisclosed actual or
contingent assets or liabilities, no unusual
obligations or substantial commitments,
other than in the ordinary course of
business as reflected in the financials, nor
any litigation pending or threatened,
which would have a material impact on
the value of Volk Favor as of the date of
the valuation;

+ the policy on tax rate applicable will not
materially change; and

* apart from the figures shown in the
financial statements available to the
valuer, Volk Favor group has no material
asset and liability as of the date of the
valuation.

The acquisition of Volk Favor was completed on 7
July 2017 (the “Completion”). At the Completion,
the Company was required to assess the fair value
of the brand name and customer relationship
according to the Financial Reporting Standard
“Business Combinations” with reference to the
information of Volk Favor as at 7 July 2017. In the
valuation report, the valuer only applied two
methods under the income approach on the basis
that the brand name and the customer relationship
could possibly bring economic inflow to Volk
Favor in the future. Therefore, the initial valuation
for both brand name and customer relationship
were recognised based on the final valuation report
dated 28 September 2018 as of the Completion.
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On the other hand, the performance of Volk Favor
did not meet expectation in the second-half of
2017/2018, and the Company believed that the fair
value of the brand name and customer relationship
have to be reassessed as of 30 June 2018.
Therefore, a valuation report was conducted by the
Valuer as of 30 June 2018. In short, the valuer
considered three general valuation approaches and
decided that both the income approach and market
approach were inappropriate, considering that Volk
Favor Group did not generate any revenue since
April 2018 and has negative net asset value.
Hence, the valuer applied the asset approach to
determine the commercial value.

The subsequent change of the valuation method
adopted was based on the on-going assessments on
Volk Favor during the year.

Given that Volk Favor has not generated any
revenue since April 2018 and has negative net asset
value, the market approach may not be an
appropriate valuation method. Moreover, as Volk
Favor has ceased its operation and did not generate
any revenue after April 2018, the income approach
may not be an appropriate valuation method either.
The valuer, having considered the abovementioned,
determined that Volk Favor group would have no
commercial value according to its current financial
performance and position. On the basis that the
summation of market values of the individual assets
represents the total value of Volk Favor, the value of
the equity interest can be derived by subtracting the
market value of the total liabilities from the total
assets. As such, no adjustment would be made to the
net asset value of Volk Favor, and with no
intangible asset since the business operation has
been ceased, Volk Favor would have no commercial
value under the asset-based approach. Base on the
valuation report, impairment loss of HK$976,000
and HK$2,883,000 and HK$2,693,000 in relation to
the customer relationship, brand name and goodwill
have been made respectively for the year ended 30
June 2018.
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o BRI W B o M

CASH FLOWS

The Group reported net cash flows of approximately
HKS$45.4 million (2018: approximately HK$75.3
million) used in operating activities for FY2019. The
reduction in net cash used was primarily due to the
reduction in proceeds from disposal of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss.

Net cash used in investing activities was approximately
HK$51.5 million for FY2019 (2018: approximately
HK$6.8 million). The increase of net cash used in
investing activities was mainly attributable to deposits
paid for acquisition of property, plant and equipment
and acquisition of a subsidiary.

Net cash generated from financing activities was
approximately HK$81.8 million for FY2019 (2018:
approximately HKS$3.4 million used in financing
activities). This turnaround in financing activities was
mainly attributable to proceeds from borrowing.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 30 June 2019, the Group had no contingent
liabilities (2018: Nil).

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN
EXCHANGE RATES AND ANY RELATED
HEDGES

The Group’s exposure to foreign currencies is limited
to its investment in a subsidiary established in the
People’s Republic of China. As the Group’s investment
in this subsidiary is not material, the Group had neither
foreign currency hedging activities nor any financial
instruments for hedging purposes in FY2019.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 30 June 2019, the Company and its wholly-
owned subsidiary, Long Peace Group Limited, have
been secured by debentures issued by them and pledged
with all assets and property for the revolving loan
facility of HK$100 million provided by a creditor.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 30 June 2019, the total number of issued shares
of the Company was 1,533,654,788 shares of
HK$0.0001 each (30 June 2018: 1,533,654,788 shares
of HK$0.0001 each).

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a
dividend for the year ended 30 June 2019 (2018: Nil).

EMPLOYEES, REMUNERATION
POLICIES AND SHARE OPTION SCHEME

As at 30 June 2019, the Group had about 19 employees
(30 June 2018: 75). The total staff costs including
Directors’ remuneration for the year were
approximately HK$8.0 million (2018: approximately
HK$15.9 million). The Group’s remuneration policy is
formulated on the basis of the performance and
experience of individual employee and is in line with
the market practices. The Group offers to its employees
other fringe benefits, including mandatory provident
fund and medical benefits. Share options may be
granted to employees based on their performance
evaluation in order to provide them incentives and
rewards.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HAHRE

As at 30 June 2019, the Group also had significant A =& — JLAE N
investments in the following: HLLFERERE

Percentage of shareholding
30 June 2019 30 June 2018

A="1H> KL

Investment cost (note)
30 June 2019 30 June 2018

Note % %  (HKS'000)  (HKS'000)
JECHE T 2 b B WA (W k)
ZEFOME OZFNE OZFUE ZFAE
Name of investee Fir e & A w4 1 Wik ARZHH ARZEER ARAZER ARZETH
% % (T#7) (T#7)
Financial assets at FVTOCI AR M2
AR BB E
Co-Lead Holdings Limited Co-Lead Holdings
Limited 1 1477 1.497 44817 44 817
Financial assets at FVTPL A FEARZ AR &
AEE
HSBC Holdings ple ELR A RA 2 0.001 - 13,000 -
Oshidori International Holdings AP R A
Limited 3 0.492 - 25,003 -
Tai United Holdings Limited KRR A RA 4 0.981 0.952 12,347 46,000
eForce Holdings Limited ERHERA R A 5 0.498 0.644 10,687 3,750
Grand Baoxin Auto Group Limited ~ FEEE 51 EE AR
R 6 030 - 26,629 -
Solartech International Holdings BTRARA
Limited - 2.847 - 36,023
hmvod Limited hmvod L FR/A 7l - 4935 - 13,449
Tnno-Tech Holdings Limited WA MR A PR 2 ) - 4.605 - 33,164
Note: Investment cost represents average acquisition costs for the FRGE - BB AR BRSSP A © i
listed securities. Some of the investments in the listed TR J7 Z A4 AR B I A LAAE AR BE A
securities were made by the Group in prior years. For those o BELATEAR BE A ETTRE SRR 2 TR 4
part of investments in listed securities which were made in M5 > A7 BACE R 21 (B3R R AR
prior years, they were subject to fair value adjustments and AR 2 BA BT BE 45 0T HERR AT 58 )
gain/(loss) on change in fair value were recognised at the g (E18) - LA R E 2 —JLF
financial year end of the respective years. The gain/(loss) on ANHZTH R ZF—)\FNH =+ HIEFE
change in fair value of the listed securities for the year ended 2N TEEE) 2 s (ktE) A ELAE R LA
30 June 2019 and 30 June 2018 excluded those amounts being FRECTER 2 &R

recognised in prior years.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 4 #




Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A

(In Receivership) (445 #)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B B i B 3 B

Fair value Net gain or (loss)
30 June 2019 30 June 2018 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Note  (HKS$’000) (HK$’000) (HK$000) (HK$°000)
MFE Wi o Ol ) 0
“EME OCENE CEE CER R
Name of investee Fir i vl 4 1 Wi AAZFH AAZFR ARZEFR ARETH
(T#7) (T#7) (T#7) (T#7t)
Financial assets at FVTOCI AT EEA M2
m A2 & RAE
Co-Lead Holdings Limited Co-Lead Holdings
Limited 1 42,525 44817 (2,292) -
Financial assets at FVTPL WATEAER AR &
AEE
HSBC Holdings ple L R A A 2 12,961 - (39) -
Oshidori International Holdings B R A
Limited 3 28,036 - 3,033 -
Tai United Holdings Limited KA RA A 4 11,326 38,000 (1,021) (8,000)
eForce Holdings Limited BRHERARA 5 9,191 11,321 (1,496) 7,571
Grand Baoxin Auto Group Limited ~ MEMEE 5 EEMAR
/sl 6 27,901 - 1272 -
Solartech International Holdings RHTRA WA
Limited - 83,790 47,767
hmvod Limited hmvod LA R ) - 14251 800
Inno-Tech Holdings Limited W A PR ) - 9,726 (23,438)
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Approximate% to

the Group’s total assets Dividend received
30 June 2019 30 June 2018 2019 2018
Note % %  (HKS'000)  (HKS'000)
A S5 M A A A A T 40 B clkE
“EE OCEE
Name of investee Fir e & A w4 18 Wi ARZFR AREER ZFRWE SFRAE
% % (Fitiz) (Fit)
Financial assets at FVTOCI AR M2
W Az 2MAE
Co-Lead Holdings Limited Co-Lead Holdings
Limited 1 15.13 13.68 - -
Financial assets at FVTPL HAFEARR AR %
& E
HSBC Holdings ple EL A RA 2 461 - - -
Oshidori International Holdings B R A
Limited 3 9.97 - 204 -
Tai United Holdings Limited KRR A A 4 4.03 11.60 14,90 -
eForce Holdings Limited ERHERA R A 5 307 3.45 - -
Grand Baoxin Auto Group Limited ~ EIEE (5 {HEH AR
R 6 9.92 - - -
Solartech International Holdings BT RARA
Limited - 25.58 - -
hmvod Limited hmvod LA R/ 7l - 435 - -
Tnno-Tech Holdings Limited R IR A PR A ) - 2.97 - -

42 ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 4%




Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A

(In Receivership) (445 #)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FA at FYTOCI”)

Co-Lead Holdings Limited (“Co-Lead”)

Co-Lead is principally engaged in securities trading
and investment holding businesses. Its investment
portfolio consists of listed and unlisted securities.

Co-Lead recorded revenue and net loss of
approximately HK$10.9 million and HK$14.9
million respectively for the period from 1 January
2019 to 30 June 2019. During the period, a
significant part of revenue arose from fair value
gain on listed securities.

The Board is of the view that investment in Co-
Lead would enable the Group to invest in different
sectors and diversify the market coverage and risk
exposure of the Group. The Board is optimistic to
the future returns for the investment in Co-Lead.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FA at FVTPL”)

2.

HSBC Holdings Plc (“HSBC”) (Stock Code: 5)

HSBC is an integrated financial institution which
is engaged i n retail banking and wealth
management, commercial banking, global banking
and markets, and global private banking.

HSBC recorded revenue and net profit of
approximately HK$38,032 million and HK$9,937
million for the period from 1 January 2019 to 30
June 2019. During the period, a significant part of
revenue arose from insurance businesses.

The Board is of the view that investment in HSBC
would enable the Group to diversify its investment
portfolio and receive dividend quarterly as the
return.
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Oshidori International Holdings Limited
(“Oshidori”) (Stock code: 622)

Oshidori International Holdings Limited, formerly
known as Enerchina Holdings Limited, is an
investment holding company principally engaged
in securities trading and investments, financial
services and money lending business.

Oshidori recorded revenue and net loss of
approximately HK$205.64 million and HK$198.7
million for the period from 1 January 2019 to 30
June 2019. The loss was mainly attributed to the
unrealised fair value loss on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss.

Oshidori will continue to maintain a balanced
approach of asset allocation with appropriate risk
and potential reward. In the meantime, the
management will maintain strict oversight of
operation costs in view of the volatile business
environment. Their financial services arm will
continue to adopt prudent capital management and
liquidity risk management to meet the challenges
ahead, as well as the increasing regulatory and
supervisory requirements.

Tai United Holdings Limited (“Tai United”) (Stock
code: 718)

The major businesses of the Tai United and its
subsidiaries include investment and asset
management, financial services, and mining and
exploitation of natural resources.

Pursuant to the interim report of Tai United for the
period ended 30 June 2019, Tai United recorded
the revenue and net loss of approximately
HK$16.0 million and HK$4.8 million respectively.
As at 30 June 2019, the total assets of Tai United
were HK$3,258 million, representing a decrease of
25.5% as compared to approximately HK$4,373
million as at 31 December 2018.
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Looking into the future, Tai United will maintain a
positive view on future global economic
development as conflicts may eventually resolved
by diplomatic means. During this period of
decelerating economic growth, Tai United will
continue to consolidate resources and streamline
our operations, and by maintaining a healthy
gearing ratio and solid financial position to
facilitate ourselves for potential market rebound.

eForce Holdings Limited (“eForce”) (Stock code:
943)

eForce Holdings Limited is principally engaged in
information technology related businesses, in
particular, e-business and e-business consultancy
services.

eForce record revenue and profit of HK$102.5
million and 40.8 million for the period from 1
January 2019 to 30 June 2019. The results for the
period slightly decreased by approximately
HK$39.3 million comparing to the corresponding
period in 2018 and the decrease mainly attributed
to the decrease in revenue and the increase in other
operating expenses.

Since the sales showed a decrease in the first half
of 2019, eForce is cautious about the outlook of
the global consumer market in the second half of
2019 as escalating trade war between the USA and
the PRC shows no signs of easing. On the other
hand, eForce will continue to improve productivity
and operational efficiency to lower production
costs.
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6.  Grand Baoxin Auto Group Limited (“Grand 6. J b BT {5 PRHAE [ A R 2 A (] ) hE

Baoxin”) (Stock code: 1293)
Grand Baoxin is principally engaged in sales and
service of motor vehicles.

Grand Baoxin recorded revenue and net profit of
approximately Renminbi (“RMB”) 17.35 million
and RMBO0.32 million for the period from 1
January 2019 to 30 June 2019. The net profit
slightly decreased by RMB0.04 million comparing
to the corresponding period in 2018.

Though there is intensive competition within the
automobile industry, Grand Baoxin will continue
to leverage its reasonable regional distribution and
brand portfolio to consolidate the strengths of its
core brands while optimising its business structure
continuously, and focusing on its automobile
aftersales market business to further enhance the
scale effects of the after-sales and derivative
business, thereby maintaining a healthy business
growth.

The Board is optimistic about the future returns for
the investment in Grand Baoxin due to its strong
edge in the industry.
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Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any  F& b SCHE#8 & 4b > REEFH K —F—JL
significant investments as at 30 June 2019. HFERNA =T AT TR E -
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MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

1.

Acquisition of a licensed corporation

Reference is made to the announcement and
circular of the Company dated 29 January 2019
and 26 April 2019, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with an independent third
party to acquire 100% equity interest in Hope
Capital Limited (“Hope Capital”) at a
consideration of HK$40,740,000 which is to be
fully satisfied by cash. Hope Capital and its
subsidiary are principally engaged in provision of
securities brokerage services. Capitalised terms
used herein shall have the same meanings as
defined in the announcement and circular of the
Company unless the context requires otherwise.

Money lending and securities investment and
trading are the two principal businesses of the
Group. The acquisition of Hope Capital and its
subsidiary with its SFO license to carry out Type 1
(dealing in securities) regulated activity and its
brokerage operations will complement the
Company’s aforementioned businesses and allow
the Company to develop a fully integrated
financial services business.

As no Shareholder is materially interested in the
transactions contemplated under the Agreement and
is required to abstain from voting at a general
meeting of the Company approving the same, the
Company has, pursuant to Rule 19.44 of the GEM
Listing Rules, obtained written approval of the
Agreements from Nieumarkt Investments Ltd, a
Sharcholder holding 991,689,459 issued ordinary
shares of the Company (representing approximately
64.66% of its entire issued share capital). As such,
the Company is exempted from convening a general
meeting to approve the transactions contemplated
under the Agreement.
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A circular containing, among other things, further
information of the Acquisition has been
despatched to the Shareholders on 26 April 2019.

The acquisition of Hope Capital was subsequently
terminated on 23 August 2019. The excerpts are
contained section headed “Material events after
reporting period - Termination of the acquisition of
Hope Capital” on page 53 of this annual report.

Acquisition of a money lending company

On 17 June 2019, the Group acquired the entire
equity interests in Dragonite Resources Limited
from an independent third party at a cash
consideration of HK$0.5 million. Since the new
management on board in May 2019, the Company
was looking for a money lending company which
can be engaged in money lending business
immediately. Dragonite Resources Limited was not
carrying on any money lending business and its
sole major asset is cash at bank. Hence, the
Company believed that it would be a good
opportunity to take immediate action. The money
lending company is principally engaged in money
lending business and is able to lend money in
Hong Kong.

At the date of the acquisition, the unaudited total
current assets was amounted to approximately
HKS$0.46 million, in which cash at bank was
amounted to approximately HK$0.40 million. The
money lending company did not have any liability.
Based on the management account as at the date of
acquisition, the unaudited net assets was
approximately amounted to HK$0.46 million.
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3. Liquidation of Grand Faith

Reference is made to the announcements of the
Company dated 24 July 2018 and 9 August 2018,
Grand Faith was placed into voluntary liquidation.
As Grand Faith was under a liquidation process,
the total amount loan receivables of HK$82.5
million was in doubt. Accordingly, the total
amount of loan receivables and related interest
receivables amounting to approximately HK$81.8
million has been fully impaired in FY2018.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other
material acquisition and disposal by the Group in
FY2019.

COMMENCEMENT OF DELISTING
PROCEDURES

Reference is made to the announcements dated 28 June
2019, 10 July 2019, 3 October 2019, 11 October 2019,
18 October 2019, 31 October 2019 and 7 November
2019 (the “Announcements”) in relation to, among
others, the suspension in trading in the shares of the
Company (the “Shares”) on Stock Exchange since 6
June 2019 and the update on the listing status of the
Company. Terms defined in the Announcements shall
have the same meaning herein unless otherwise defined
or the context otherwise required.

On 28 June 2019, the Company has received a letter
from the Stock Exchange, which served as a notice
pursuant to Rule 9.15 of the GEM Listing Rules. The
Stock Exchange has decided to suspend trading of the
Company’s shares under Rule 9.04 of the GEM Listing
Rules and proceed with the cancellation of the
Company’s listing under Rule 9.14 of the GEM Listing
Rules (the “Decision”). The Stock Exchange requires
the Company to re-comply with Rule 17.26 of the
GEM Listing Rules. If the Company fails to do so by
the expiry of the twelve-month period, the Stock
Exchange will proceed with cancellation of the
Company’s listing.
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On 10 July 2019, the Company filed an application for
a review by the GEM Listing Committee in relation to
the Decision (the “Review”).

The GEM Review Hearing was heard on 2 October
2019 by the Committee to review the Decision.

On 3 October 2019, the Company received a letter
from the Stock Exchange, in which the Stock Exchange
sets out the following resumption guidance (the
“Resumption Guidance”) for the Company: (a) to
publish the inside information announcement in
relation to the possible subscription of the Company’s
new shares; (b) to publish all outstanding financial
results required under the GEM Listing Rules and
address any audit modifications; and (c) to announce
all material information for the Company’s
shareholders and investors to appraise its position. For
this purpose, the Company has the primary
responsibility to devise its action plan for resumption.
In addition, under Rule 9.14(A)(1) of the GEM Listing
Rules, the Stock Exchange may cancel the listing of
any securities that have been suspended from trading
for a continuous period of twelve-months. For the
Company, the twelve-month period will be expired on 5
June 2020.

On 11 October 2019, the first quarterly update was
published in relation to the resumption. The Company
is taking appropriate steps to fulfil the Resumption
Guidance and will keep the shareholders of the
Company and the public on, among others the progress,
when appropriate as and.

On 18 October 2019, the Company received a decision
letter from the Stock Exchange which mentioned, inter
alia, that after considering all the submissions (both
written and oral) made by the Company and the Listing
Department, the Committee was of the view that the
Company has failed to maintain a sufficient level of
operations or have tangible assets of sufficient value
and/or intangible assets for which a sufficient potential
value can be demonstrated under Rule 17.26 of the
GEM Listing Rules to warrant the continued listing of
the Shares and the Committee therefore decided to

uphold the Listing Department’s Decision.
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A Subscription Agreement was entered by the Company
and Subscriber on 5 June 2019 (after trading hours) to
which the Company has conditionally agreed to issue,
and the Subscriber has conditionally agreed to subscribe
for 766,827,394 new shares in the Company for an
aggregate subscription price of HK$19,170,684.85 (the
“Subscription Agreement”). The Subscriber has
confirmed that immediately before entering into the
Subscription Agreement, it and its beneficial owners
are third parties independent of the Company and its
connected persons. The Company announced on 18
October 2019, the Company has been unable to obtain
all the necessary approvals as per the conditions
precedent as at Long Stop Date. Therefore, the
Subscription Agreement has lapsed and the parties shall
have no further obligation to each other in accordance
with the terms of the Subscription Agreement.

On 31 October 2019, after considering legal and
professional advice, the Company does not intend to
submit a request for the Decision to be referred to the
GEM Listing Review Committee of the Stock
Exchange for a further and final review pursuant to
Rule 4.06(2) of the GEM Listing Rules.

As such, the Company is required to re-comply with
the Rule 17.26 of the GEM Listing Rules, i.e. to carry
out a business with sufficient level of operations and
assets of sufficient value to support its operations to
warrant the continued listing of the Company’s Shares.

On 7 November 2019, the Company received another
letter from the Stock Exchange. The Stock Exchange
sets out the additional resumption guidance, to
demonstrate the Company’s compliance with GEM
Rule 17.26.

To publish the inside information announcement in
relation to the possible subscription of the Company’s
new shares, one of the Resumption Guidance, has been
fulfilled as an announcement of the Company in respect
of, among others, the lapse of Subscription Agreement
in relation to the proposed subscription for new Shares
was published on 18 October 2019.

The Company is taking appropriate steps to fulfil all
the resumption conditions/guidance.
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MATERIAL EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

1.

Appointment of Receiver

Reference is made to the announcement of the
Company dated 4 July 2019, the Company
received a notice from its Creditor that events of
default have occurred under the debentures, and
thereby the Creditor has appointed a Receiver to
all of the property and assets of the Company on 3
July 2019. The Receiver is appointed by the
Creditor to enforce and preserve the assets charged
under the Debenture. Capitalised terms used herein
shall have the same meanings as defined in the
announcement unless the context requires
otherwise.

Application for a review by the GEM Listing
Committee

Subsequent to the reporting period, the Company
filed an application for a review by the GEM
Listing Committee. For further details, please refer
to the section headed “Commencement of
Delisting Procedures” on pages 49 to 51 of this
annual report and the Company’s announcement
dated 10 July 2019.

Liquidation of Power Elite Group

Reference is made to the announcement of the
Company dated 12 August 2019, Power Elite
Group has been placed into voluntary liquidation.
Capitalised terms used herein shall have the same
meanings as defined in the announcement unless
the context requires otherwise.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Board has reviewed the operations of the
Group and resolved to voluntarily wind up Power
Elite Group. Power Elite Group is a group of
subsidiaries with disappointing financial
performance. The Board concerns that Power Elite
Group had been mismanaged by former directors
and/or management of the Company. In order to
reduce the Company’s exposures over the matters
relating to Power Elite Group, the Directors
consider that it is in the best interests of the
Company and the Sharcholders to engage
professionals with relevant experience to be the
joint and several liquidators of Power Elite Group
for liquidating and recovering the value of Power
Elite Group, and making further review for the
company records including the previous
transactions of Power Elite Group. Following the
commencement of the voluntary liquidation, Power
Elite Group will cease to be a subsidiary of the
Company and will be effectively carved out from
the Group.

As at the date of this report, there is no material
update from the liquidator.

Termination of the acquisition of Hope Capital

Reference is made to the announcement of the
Company dated 23 August 2019, pursuant to the
Agreement, completion of the Acquisition is
conditional upon certain conditions being satisfied
or waived. As the parties to the Agreement were of
the view that those conditions in the Agreement
could not be fully satisfied on or before 31 August
2019 (which being the long stop date for
satisfaction of the conditions as per the parties’
latest agreement) or in the near future, it has been
mutually agreed to terminate the Agreement
effective on 23 August 2019. The Deposit
previously paid pursuant to the Agreement has
been returned to the Group. Capitalised terms used
herein shall have the same meanings as defined in
the announcement unless the context requires
otherwise.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Supplemental information for the financial year
ended 30 June 2018

Reference is made to the Company’s announcement
dated 3 October 2019 (the “Supplemental
Announcement”), the Company would like to
provide shareholders of the Company and potential
investors with further information for the annual
results announcement of the Group for the year
ended 30 June 2018 published on 28 September 2018
and the annual report of the Company for the year
ended 30 June 2018. Unless otherwise defined,
capitalised terms used herein shall have the same
meanings as defined in the Supplemental
Announcement.

The Supplemental Announcement provide further
information and analysis in relation to impairments
on (i) investment in an associate; (ii) trade and
other receivables; (iii) loan receivable; and (iv)
others.

In addition, a further analysis is provided for
impairments on intangible and goodwill which
arisen from acquisitions of Volk Favor and ACC
Logistic.

The Company also provide a further discussion on
the performance and prospects of the Group’s
significant investments in relation to available-for-
sales investments and financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss.

Shareholders of the Company and potential
investors are recommended to read the 2018
Annual Results Announcement and 2018 Annual
Report in conjunction with the Supplemental
Announcement.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Listing status and relevant updates

Subsequent to the reporting period, the Company’s
announcements were published in relation to the
following delisting procedures, details of which are
disclosed in the section headed “Commencement of
Delisting Procedures” on pages 49 to 51 of this annual
report:—

® Resumption Guidance

® Quarterly update on status of resumption

* Lapse of subscription and decision of the GEM
Listing Committee

e Update on the listing status

® Additional Resumption Guidance
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DIRECTORS
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Woo Eddie (“Mr. Woo”), aged 48, was appointed
the executive director on 24 May 2019 and re-
designated as the Chairman on 28 May 2019. He
received his master of Business Administration from
the University of San Francisco and his bachelor of
Arts from the University of California, Santa Cruz. Mr.
Woo has extensive corporate finance and direct
investment experience in the Greater China region. He
was previously an executive director in the Asia
investment banking group of Oppenheimer & Co. Inc.,
a North American investment bank with extensive
operations and experience in the Greater China region,
and its predecessor, CIBC World Markets. His
responsibilities included significant financing activities
for Chinese companies including initial public
offerings, mergers and acquisitions, private placements
and other related advisory work. Mr. Woo joined CIBC
World Markets in 2000 as a research analyst. In 2003,
Mr. Woo helped start Mekong Airlines in Cambodia,
serving as a board director and chief financial officer
before returning to CIBC World Markets during early
2004 as a director within the equity research group.
Save as disclosed above, Mr. Woo has not held any
directorship in other listed public companies in the last
three years in Hong Kong or overseas.
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Mr. Suen Yick Lun Philip (“Mr. Suen”), aged 51, was
appointed as the executive director on 30 April 2018.
He was appointed as the Company Secretary of the
Company on 18 April 2018. He a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and is a fellow member of the CPA Australia. He holds
a Bachelor’s degree in Accountancy from Queensland
University of Technology and Master’s degree in
Corporate Finance from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. Mr. Suen has over 17 years of experience in
corporate management and finance, accounting and
company secretarial practice. He was an executive
director of GT Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
263) from 31 August 2016 to 18 September 2017; an
executive director of Imagi International Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 585) from 28 January 2016 to 16
August 2016 and its company secretary from 18 April
2016 to 16 August 2016; and a company secretary of
CMBC Capital Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1141)
from 2 July 2014 to 29 February 2016, and also its
chief executive officer from 31 October 2014 to 3
March 2015 and later its acting chairman, executive
director and managing director from 3 March 2015 to
29 February 2016. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Suen
has not held any directorship in other listed public
companies in the last three years in Hong Kong or
overseas.
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Mr. Au Wai June (“Mr. Au”), aged 55, was appointed
as the executive director on 24 May 2019. Mr. Au
received his Bachelor degree in Arts in Major from
University of Windsor, Canada. He was the managing
director of a telecommunication equipment
manufacturing and trading company with more than 16
years of experience and extensive knowledge in
product development, purchasing, production, business
administration and merchandising of both The People’s
Republic of China and overseas market. Mr. Au was an
executive director of Life Healthcare Group Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock
Code:928) (“Life Healthcare”) for the period from 15
August 2011 to 6 September 2013. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Au focused on his family’s business after
his resignation as an executive director of Life
Healthcare. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Au has not
held any directorship in other listed public companies
in the last three years in Hong Kong or overseas.

Mr. Ng Kwok Wing Michael (“Mr. Ng”), aged 53, was
appointed as the executive director and chairman on 26
March 2018 and resigned on 28 May 2019. He is an
experienced investor with more than 20 years of
experience in investing in real properties and stocks.
Mr. Ng is also a philanthropist serving as a member on
numerous boards and committees of the Government of
Hong Kong including, amongst others, the Tsuen Wan
District Fire Safety Committee and Advisory
Committee of Opportunities for Elderly Project of the
Social Welfare Department. Mr. Ng has also been a
member on numerous boards and committees of
community services organisations including, amongst
others, the Tung Wah Group of Hospitals, the Yan Chai
Hospital, chairman of The Hong Kong Wan Chai
District Association Ltd, vice chairman of The Hong
Kong Island Social Service Charitable Foundation, vice
president of the Wan Chai and Central and Western
District Industries and Commerce Association and
member of Investigation Panel A of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Chow Chi Wah Vincent (“Mr. Chow”), aged 50,
has been appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 31 August 2018. He
obtained a Master’s degree in Professional Accounting
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Chow
is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and an associate member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Chow has over 20 years’ experience in the finance
and accounting fields in Hong Kong. Mr. Chow was
appointed as an executive director of Tai United
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 718), a company listed
on the Stock Exchange on 30 October 2019. Mr. Chow
was appointed as an executive director and managing
director of Code Agriculture (Holdings) Limited (Stock
Code: 8153), a company listed on the Stock Exchange
on 25 June 2019. Mr. Chow was appointed as executive
director, managing director and company secretary of
Enerchina Holdings Limited, now renamed as Oshidori
International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 622), on 1
June 2016, 5 April 2017 and 12 July 2016 respectively
and resigned as executive director, managing director
and company secretary on 29 October 2019. Mr. Chow
was an independent non-executive director of Imagi
International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 585), a
company listed on the Stock Exchange for the period
from 28 January 2016 to 10 April 2017. Mr. Chow was
an executive director of Mascotte Holdings Limited,
now renamed HengTen Networks Group Limited (Stock
Code: 136), a company listed on the Stock Exchange,
for the period from 3 November 2014 to 26 October
2015. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Chow has not held
any directorship in other listed public companies in the
last three years in Hong Kong or overseas.
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Ms. Chow Mun Yee (“Ms. Chow”), aged 44, was
appointed as an independent non-executive director on
31 August 2018. Ms. Chow is a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and holds a Bachelor (Hons)
degree in Business Administration from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. Ms. Chow has over 13 years
of experience in accounting and auditing at an
international accounting firm and has extensive
experience in financial services, investment and
property development. She was appointed as executive
director of Freeman FinTech Corporation Limited
(“Freeman FinTech”) in February 2011 and retired as
executive director on 10 September 2019. Ms. Chow
was also appointed as Company Secretary of Freeman
FinTech in March 2011 and resigned on 8 October
2019. Save as disclosed above, Ms. Chow has not held
any directorship in other listed public companies in the
last three years in Hong Kong or overseas.

Mr. Ma Ka Ki (“Mr. Ma”), aged 39, was appointed as
the independent non-executive director on 26 March
2018. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in Accounting and
Information System with merit from the University of
New South Wales, Australia. Mr. Ma is a member of
both the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England & Wales. He is also a member of both the
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.
He has over 10 years of experience in auditing and
accounting sectors and has extensive experience in
financial and corporate secretarial services. Mr. Ma was
an independent non-executive director of Oshidori
International Holdings Limited (formerly named as
Enerchina Holdings Limited) (Stock Code: 622), the
shares of which are listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange, for the period from 1 June 2016 to 4
June 2018. Previously, Mr. Ma was a director of a
private investment company, which is principally
engaged in securities investment in Hong Kong and the
United States. He was also a director of a sizable
money lender from 2013 to 2015 and supervised the
whole money lending business. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Ma has not held any directorship in other
listed public companies in the last three years in Hong
Kong or overseas.
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Ms. Wong Lai Na (“Ms. Wong”), aged 32, was
appointed as independent non-executive director on 27
July 2015 and resigned on 31 August 2018. Ms. Wong
graduated from Jinan University in China with a
Bachelor Degree of Business Administration. She
obtained valuable experience in the professional field
of accounting and provided services in the areas of
financial analysis, tax planning, internal control and
financial audit for small and medium-sized enterprises.

Mr. Tse Yuen Ming (“Mr. Tse”), aged 51, was
appointed as independent non-executive director on 16
November 2015 and resigned on 31 August 2018. Mr.
Tse is a partner of Messrs. Tung, Ng, Tse & Heung. He
holds a Bachelor of Laws degree with honour from the
University of Hong Kong and admitted to The Supreme
Court of Hong Kong as a solicitor in 1993. Mr. Tse has
been an independent non-executive director of Daido
Group Limited (Stock Code: 0544) and Inno-Tech
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8202) since August
2003 and November 2014 respectively. Mr. Tse is the
executive vice president of Hong Kong Guangxi
Chamber of Commerce Limited, the vice-chairman of
The Hong Kong Chamber of Small and Medium
Business and the legal adviser of Life Underwriters &
Sales Executives Board (HK) Ltd.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

B E

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to promoting good
standards of corporate governance to safeguard
interests of the Shareholders as well as to the
stakeholders.

The Company has adopted the Code Provisions (the
“Code Provisions”) of the Corporate Governance Code
(the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 15 of the GEM
Listing Rules as its own code on corporate governance
practices.

The Company has complied with the Code Provisions
as set out in the Code and there have been no material
deviations from the Code during the year, except for
the following deviation:

(1) the Code Provision A.4.1 — the independent non-
executive Directors of the Company are not all
appointed for a specific term. They are, however,
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with Article 87 of the articles of
association of the Company.

(i1) the Code Provision A.2 — the candidate for the
position of chief executive officer has not yet been
identified. The Board believed that all executive
Directors continue to assume and share the roles
and responsibilities of the chief executive officer
until the suitable candidate come on board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the rules set out in Rules
5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as the code for
dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors.
Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the
Company was not aware of any non-compliance with
the required standard as set out in the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors
throughout the year ended 30 June 2019.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

The Board currently comprises six Directors, of whom
three are executive Directors and three are independent
non-executive Directors. Director’s biographical details
are set out in the biographical details of Directors on
pages 56 to 61.

The Board

The Board is responsible for leadership, business
strategies, policies, internal control and operations of
the Group. The day-to-day management has been
delegated to the executive Directors.

The participation of independent non-executive
Directors in the Board bring a diverse range of
expertise, skills and independent judgment on issues
relating to the Group’s strategies, performance,
conflicts of interests and management process to ensure
that the interests of all Shareholders of the Company
and the stakeholders have been duly considered.
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Our Directors are kept informed from time to time on
the latest development of any changes to the regulatory
requirements and the progress of compliance of
applicable rules and regulations by the Company. Our
Directors will also be updated from time to time on the
business development and operation plans of the
Company. All our Directors are encouraged to
participate in continuing professional development
seminars and/or courses to update their skills and
knowledge on the latest development or changes in the
relevant statutes, GEM Listing Rules and corporate
governance practices.

Independence of Directors

During the year ended 30 June 2019 and up to the date
of this annual report, the Company has three
independent non-executive Directors, representing
more than one-third of the number of the Board. All of
them has the appropriate professional accounting
qualifications or/and related financial management
expertise. All the independent non-executive Directors
of the Company are not appointed for a specific term.
They are, however, subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with Article 87 of the articles
of association of the Company. None of the
independent non-executive Directors has served the
Company for nine years or more.

The Board considers that all the independent non-
executive Directors are independent and each of the
independent non-executive Directors has made an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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Induction and Continuing Professional Development
for Directors

Each newly appointed Director is provided with a
package of materials setting out the required duties and
responsibilities of Directors under the GEM Listing
Rules and other relevant statutory requirements of
Hong Kong. An introduction as to Director’s duties and
obligations under the GEM Listing Rules and relevant
legislations will be arranged for all newly appointed
Directors. Newly appointed Directors will also receive
an introduction on the Company’s operation and
business.

During the year ended 30 June 2019, the continuous
professional development taken by respective Directors
are as follows:
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Type
of trainings

IS A

Name

"4

Executive Directors PiTES
Mr. Woo Eddie ik e

(appointed on 24 May 2019)
Mr. Au Wai June

(appointed on 24 May 2019)
Mr. Suen Yick Lun Philip
Mr. Ng Kwok Wing Michael

(resigned on 28 May 2019)

T {8 5 1

e
B S e

Independent Non-executive Directors R - JEH 4T & F
Mr. Chow Chi Wah Vincent JREHE SR

(appointed on 31 August 2018)
Ms. Chow Mun Yee
(appointed on 31 August 2018)

Mr. Ma Ka Ki

£ RN |

BRI

I:  in-house training
II: attending seminars and/or forums and/or reading
relevant materials

II
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I
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Board Meetings and General Meeting

The Board conducts meetings on a regular basis and on
an ad hoc basis. Reasonable notice for regular and non-
regular meetings are given to all Directors in order that
they can attend the meetings and include documents for
discussion if necessary. During the year 2019, only one
general meeting was held. The Directors may attend
Board meetings in person or by means of a conference
telephone, electronic or other communication.

During the year 2019, the Board held a total of 24 Board
meetings in which 4 were regular board meetings (within
the meaning of the Code), the remaining of 20 Board
meetings were convened as necessary. During the year
2019, only one general meeting was held. The
attendance of individual Directors at the Board meetings
and annual general meeting are set out below:

E S A VTN

EHRGEMEAENET GRS 2R
R ) R OF E e ek 5 B
TR > DA A0 A5 AT ek o 3 AR A 2
RF A SCAE ik iy o Y — % — JU4F > fiE
BAT R & - A B A 808
TR G Ak R A AR T U
FREREER-

AE U R R A 24K
ERGER HT4RAEMESGE
ik (EFLFHD - R F20REFEE
e E A B A B o A % — JUAF > fH R
AT — UK & - {8 il 2 5 o B
B S B AUR AR R Al Bk s
T

Regular Other Annual General
Board Meetings Board Meetings Meetings
g
fEd | ] T
ik ERAEE BERE
Executive Directors WhEs
Mr. Woo Eddie MRREE - 515 NA
(appointed on 24 May 2019) (R=F=NELA =B EE)
Mr. Suen Yick Lun Philip Bl 4/4 20120 A
Mir. Au Wai June Mt - 515 N/A
(appointed on 24 May 2019) (RZF— ML= AEE)
Mr. Ng Kwok Wing Michael REREE 4/4 1515 A
(resigned on 28 May 2019) (R=F-MELA =/ HHE)
Independent Non-exccutive Directors B FB 1% H
Mr. Chow Chi Wai Vincent AL 414 16/18 A
(appointed on 31 August 2018) (R=F-NENf=1—HEEH)
Ms. Chow Mun Yee S 34 15/18 A
(appointed on 31 August 2018) (H=F= N/ =1—HEZ(E)
Mr. Ma Ka Ki SRAEL 414 1920 A
Ms. Wong Lai Na HEMLT - 1n N/A
(resigned on 31 August 2018) (F—NENF=—HRHT)
Mr. Tse Yuen Ming AR - 112 N/A
(resigned on 31 August 2018) (R=F— /N =+—HEHE)

Note: A — Attended N/A — Not Applicable
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that’s the roles of
chairman (the “Chairman”) and chief executive officer
should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. The position of Chairman is currently
held by Mr. Woo Eddie. The Chairman provides overall
leadership and is responsible for effective functioning
and leadership of the Board. And the candidate for the
position of chief executive officer has not yet been
identified. The Board believed that all the executive
Directors continue to assume and share the roles and
responsibilities of the chief executive officer until the
suitable candidate come on board.

Responsibilities of Directors

In the course of discharging their duties, the Directors
act in good faith, with due diligence and care, and in
the best interests of the Group. Their responsibilities
include:

»  attending regular Board meetings and focusing on
business strategy, operational issues and financial
performance;

* active participation on the respective boards of
directors of the subsidiaries and associated
companies of the Company;

* monitoring and managing potential conflicts of
interest of senior management, Board and
Shareholders of the Company;

*  consideration of misuse of corporate assets and
abuse in transactions; and

e ensuring processes are in place to maintain the
overall integrity of the Company, including
financial statements, relationships with suppliers,
customers and other stakeholders, and compliance
with all laws and ethics.
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COMMITTEES
Composition

During the year, the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”), the nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) and the remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) are all
comprised of three members, and all members of each
committee are the independent non-executive Directors
of the Company.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the following
corporate governance duties as required under the
Code:

*  to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

e to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

*  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

e to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual applicable to employees
and Directors; and

* to review the Company’s compliance with the

Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.
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During the year, the Board considered the following
corporate governance matters:

* review of the policies and practices adopted by the
Company, trainings for Directors and senior
management, and code of conduct and compliance
manual, etc.;

e review of the compliance with the Code and the
disclosure of this report;

* review of the effectiveness of the internal controls
and risk management systems of the Company
through the Audit Committee; and

* adoption of revised corporate governance practices
relating to risk management system and internal
audit function as well as amendments to the terms
of reference of the Audit Committee to reflect the
new requirement of risk management system.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee with
written terms of reference based on the guidelines
recommended by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the provisions set out in the
Code in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules. As at
the date of this report, the members of the Audit
Committee are Mr. Chow Chi Wah Vincent (“Mr.
Chow”), Ms. Chow Mun Yee and Mr. Ma Ka Ki. Mr.
Chow is the Chairman of the Audit Committee.
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The Audit Committee is principally responsible for the
monitoring of the integrity of periodical financial
statements of the Company, the review of significant
financial reporting judgements contained in them
before submission to the Board for approval, the review
of the Company’s financial controls, risk management
and internal control systems, and the review and
monitoring of the auditors’ independence and
objectivity as well as the effectiveness of the audit
process. The Audit Committee is also responsible for
performing corporate governance functions which
include (a) to develop and review the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance; (b) to
review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management; (c) to review and monitor the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements; (d) to review and monitor the
code of conduct and compliance applicable to
employees and the Directors; and (e) to review the
Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in
the corporate governance report.

During the year 2019, the Audit Committee:

* reviewed the financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2018, the first quarterly report of
2019, the interim report of 2019, and the third
quarterly report of 2019;

¢« reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control
system and risk management;

* reviewed the external auditor’s audit findings;
*  reviewed the adoption of new accounting standard;

e reviewed and approved remuneration of auditor;
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¢ recommended the reappointment of auditor; and

* reviewed the implementation of policy for
employees of the Group to raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters and the
whistleblowing policy.

The terms of reference setting out the Audit
Committee’s authorities, duties and responsibilities are
available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee held six meetings during the year
ended 30 June 2019.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee is responsible for making
recommendation to the Board for selection and
nomination of directors and senior management. The
Nomination Committee also reviews the structure and
composition of the Board and assesses the independence
of independence non-executive Directors. As at the date
of this report, the members of the Nomination
Committee are Mr. Chow, Ms. Chow Mun Yee and Mr.
Ma Ka Ki. Mr. Chow is the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

During the year 2019, the Nomination Committee:

* reviewed the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board;

* reviewed the Board diversity policy;

¢ reviewed and nominated executive Directors and
chairman;

» assessed the independence of independent non-
executive Directors; and
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* reviewed and made recommendations to the Board
on re-clection of retiring Directors at the 2018
annual general meeting.

The terms of reference setting out the Nomination
Committee’s authorities, duties and responsibilities are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

The Nomination Committee held three meetings during
the year ended 30 June 2019.

Remuneration Committee

The role of the Remuneration Committee is to
recommend to the Board a framework for remunerating
the Board and key executives and to determine specific
remuneration packages for each executive and
independence non-executive Director of the Company.
In carrying out the above, the Remuneration Committee
may obtain independent external legal and other
professional advice as deemed necessary. The expenses
of such advice shall be borne by the Company. As at
the date of this report, the members of the
Remuneration Committee are Mr. Chow, Ms. Chow
Mun Yee and Mr. Ma Ka Ki. Mr. Chow is the Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee.

The remuneration package for the executive Directors
of the Company comprises a basic salary. The
independent non-executive Directors receive a basic fee
for their services. All revisions to the remuneration
packages of the Directors are subject to the review and
approval of the Board. Details of directors’
remuneration for each Director are set out in note 14 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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The terms of reference setting out the Remuneration # A #iilZ 8 & 2 #E )~ Bk & K& =T
Committee’s authorities, duties and responsibilities are 2 ik i &l [E w] j A 28 &) K 5 22 Fir 44 o
available on the websites of the Company and the L[

Stock Exchange.

During the year 2019, the Remuneration Committee: NFE—IUE BEEEC
* reviewed the remuneration policy; . K E H I EOR

«  reviewed the remuneration of executive Directors, * Migf#ITHESF B IERITEFN
independent non-executive Directors; and B ke

¢ made recommendation to the Board on the above - A 0 T ) e R o

matters.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings HMZ B R EHE - F—JLFEASH
during the year ended 30 June 2019. = BB E SRR IR

Committee’s Meetings ZEHE®

The attendance of the Audit Committee, Nomination HHEE G LT EGNFMEER
Committee and Remuneration Committee are set out & HJHErCEF ST -
below:

Audit Nomination  Remuneration
Committee Committee Committee

HFRERE RAZAT HMZR &

Independent Non-executive Bor ks E

Directors
Mr. Chow Chi Wai Vincent RS 6/6 33 22
(appointed on 31 August 2018) (R =F—NFENH=1+—H
#EZHT)
Ms. Chow Mun Yee i/ 506 33 22
(appointed on 31 August 2018) (R =F—NFENH=1+—H
#EZHT)
Mr. Ma Ka Ki HRAEE 6/6 33 22
Ms. Wong Lai Na B+ - - -
(resigned on 31 August 2018) (R =F—=NFENH=F—H
AHE)
Mr. Tse Yuen Ming Eipetibies - - -
(resigned on 31 August 2018) (R =F—=NFENH=F—H
AHE)
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BOARD DIVERSITY

The Company has adopted the practice as laid down by
the Code Provision which sets out the approach to
achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in order to
enhance the effectiveness of the Board. The Company
has considered a number of factors, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. From time to time,
the Company will review those factors and the
composition of the Board. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board. The Company will
also take into consideration its own business model and
specific needs from time to time in determining the
optimum composition of the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises six
Directors. Three of the Directors are independent non-
executive Directors and are independent of the
management, thereby promoting critical review and
control of the management process.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for
monitoring the achievement of the measurable
objectives.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary supports the Board by ensuring
good information flow within the Board and that the
Board policy and procedures are followed. The
company secretary is responsible for advising the
Board on the corporate governance matters and
facilitating induction and professional development of
the Directors. All Directors have access to the advice
and services of the company secretary to ensure that
the Board procedures and all applicable laws, rules and
regulations, are followed. The company secretary has
complied with all the required qualifications,
experiences and training requirements under the GEM
Listing Rules.
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RESPONSIBILITY FOR PREPARATION
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the consolidated financial statements of the
Group. The Directors ensure that the preparation of the
financial statements of the Group is in accordance with
statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The statement by the independent auditor
about their reporting responsibilities for the financial
statements is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s
Report” contained in this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for establishing
and maintaining appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems of the Group.
The Group’s systems of risk management and internal
control, which include a defined management structure
with limits of authority, are designed to achieve
business objectives, safeguard assets against
unauthorised use or disposition, ensure the maintenance
of proper accounting records for the provision of
reliable financial information for internal use or for
publication, and ensure compliance with relevant
legislation and regulations. The systems are designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss and to manage rather than
eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and
achievement of the Group’s objectives.

BB

B BT B Wk 2 WAL

O D A A U SRR SR 2 AR
o 5 R o S R AR AR 1 I
i R AR PR E L E L g st e R
A B o g ST A B A VB R 2 H
i B AT 2 W B SR A AF R A 8 S A%
S A o

JE\ B 4 BE e Py il B 4

R WA R KA RS
A 2 L B A R R v 4
JBE o A S5 ] A L o B A% oA S B A
JE B 458 — 1R L A i R R A By S A B
ZUME > BRI MRS H AR - RIEEE A
WA [ T B L EOR A A R
Bt ac Bk DA (I nT {4t o 3 08 ) a4 5%
s B AT S SV B BB DL KR R T AR
R 2k T i ML o o I B AE A Bl i EE R
R BB B4R 2 4 A3 5 2 (E JF A6 )
1 P e - Sl A8 RO JF 31 B ) 7 8 ) 2
IR 8 A SR T R B 2 A H AR B LB o

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 4£#

75




B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited

(2% ) (In Receivership)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

B E

An organisational structure with operating policies and
procedures, lines of responsibility and delegated
authority has been established. The division/department
head of each core business segment is accountable for
the conduct and performance of such segment within
the agreed strategies, which are set by themselves and
the Board together, and reports directly to the Board.

In the course of conducting the business of the Group,
it is exposed to various types of risks, including
business risks, financial risks, operation and other
risks. The Board is ultimately responsible for the risk
management of the Group and it has delegated to
executive management to carry out the risk
identification and monitoring procedures. The
objectives of the risk management are to enhance the
governance and corporate management processes as
well as to safeguard the Group against unacceptable
levels of risks and losses.

The risk management process of the Group will
involve, among others, (i) an annual risk identification
and analysis exercise which involves assessment of the
consequence and likelihood of risks and the
development of risk management plans for mitigating
such risks; and (ii) an annual review of the
implementation of the risk management plans and fine
tuning of the implementation plan when necessary.

Although the Group does not maintain an internal audit
function, the Board has overall responsibility for the
systems of risk management and internal control and for
reviewing their effectiveness. Throughout the year under
review, the Company complied with the Code Provisions
on internal control and risk management. In particular, the
Company has conducted a review of the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control system, covering financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions during the year under review. The Directors are
satisfied that the prevailing internal control systems as
appropriate to the Group are in place and have been
implemented properly and that no significant areas of
improvements which are required to be brought to the
attention to the Board are revealed.
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The Board has delegated to executive management the
design, implementation and ongoing monitoring of
such system of internal controls covering financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk
management procedures.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year, remuneration paid/payable to auditors
for audit services is approximately HK$660,000 (2018:
HK$600,000) and HK$290,000 (2018: HKS$nil) for
non-audit service performed.

CONSTITUTIONAL DCOUMENTS

There was no change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Board puts great emphasis on investor relationship
in particular fair disclosure and comprehensive report
of the Company’s performance and activities.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend the general
meetings of the Company and the Directors always
make efforts to fully address any questions raised by
the Shareholders at the annual general meetings (the
“AGM”) and the extraordinary general meetings (the
“EGM”) of the Company. In addition, Shareholders
have the right to nominate a person to stand for
election as a director at any general meeting by lodging
a written notice to the Company.

The Company provides information about the Group in
its website (www.ciholdings.com.hk) to investors and
potential investors. Hard copies of the annual reports,
half-yearly report, quarterly reports and circulars are all
sent to Shareholders and they are all available at the
Company’s website.
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Shareholder(s) holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company having the right of voting at
general meetings can make a requisition to convene an
extraordinary general meeting pursuant to article 58 of
the Company’s Bye-laws. The procedures for
Shareholders to put forward proposals at general
meetings are stated as follows:

(a) The written requisition must state the purposes of
the meeting, and must be signed by all the
Shareholders concerned and may consist of several
documents in like form each signed by one or
more Shareholders concerned.

(b) The written requisition must be stated with the
head office of the Company at Room 1503-1511,
15/F., China United Centre, 28 Marble Road,
North Point, Hong Kong, for the attention of the
Directors or the company secretary.

(c) The written requisition will be verified with the
Company’s branch share registrar and upon their
confirmation that the request is proper and in
order, the company secretary will ask the Board to
include the relevant resolution in the agenda for
such general meeting. Such general meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition.
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REPORTING OBJECTIVE

Global warming has become an undisputed fact about our
current livelihoods and is a serious issue in the world, the
goals of Celebrate International Holdings Limited (the
“Group”) are not only profit maximization but also to
protect the environment against the climate changes in the
best interest of stakeholders. The Company strives
continuously to incorporate sustainability initiatives into
daily operations and management. While sharing the
vision of becoming the preferred choice of our
stakeholders, the Company is committed to improving our
Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”)
performance by upholding good corporate governance
standards, protecting our environment, engaging the
community and promoting social integration.

REPORTING SCOPE AND PERIOD

This report aims to share our key sustainability
performances and outline our milestones on our
sustainability journey during the reporting period from
1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019 (the “Reporting Period”).

The ESG report of the Group has been presented into
two subject areas, namely environmental arca and
social area, and each subject area has various aspects to
disclose the relevant policies and the status of
compliance with relevant laws and regulations as
addressed by the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Guide”).

The Group has prepared ESG report of the Group in
accordance with the ESG Guide as set out in Appendix
20 to the GEM Listing Rules. The Board has reviewed
and approved the report and is pleased to present the
performance and progress on the ESG aspects of the
Group for the year ended 30 June 2019.
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INFORMATION ABOUT THE GROUP

During the Reporting Period, the Group has ceased the
business of money lending, health care services, and
trading of food and beverage.

The Group provides logistic services and dedicates to
assist its customers by simplifying their supply-chain
management to reduce the logistic costs and raise
efficiency during the Reporting Period. The Group
assists customers in reducing the logistic costs and
shortening the time for cargo flow into the market. The
Group is used to centralise and deliver products to the
location nearby, in order to use less transportation to
reduce the carbon dioxide emissions. The Group
considers using less packaging material to reduce waste
of resources and recycles all the useful resources.

In order to reduce environmental impact and create
value in the community, the Group seeks every
opportunity to incorporate sustainability standards and
practices into all aspects of its business. In addition,
social responsibility is the fundamental duty of the
Group to contribute to the society in which it is
brought up. The Group believes that active
participation in social activities would help the
underprivileged.

A. ENVIRONMENTAL

Environmental protection is embedded in our
culture, communities and values. The Group
recognise and accept the responsibility to the
community and environment both now and in the
future. The Group is committed to maintaining and
improving upon our environmental performance,
and ensuring that environmental considerations are
an integral part of our decision-making,
management and culture. The Group always keeps
itself up-to-date on developments in local
legislations and standards for environmental
protection. The Group actively encourages staff to
protect the environment through training,
education and communication.
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The Group has policies for the reduction of energy
consumption and efficient use of resources so as to
reduce the emission of greenhouse gas (“GHG”)
and other pollutants in relation to its operations
carried out in all its business units’ office,
including switching off idle lightings, computers
and electrical appliances, deployment of energy-
saving lightings, using of recycled paper,
monitoring water consumption, encouraging the
use of public transport for local travelling to
meetings and using tele or video conferencing as
an alternative to business travels.

A.1 Emissions

The Group has strived to minimize the
environmental impact of its logistic activities
and health care services. The Group sticks to
the principle of active participation and
environmental responsibilities to manage the
immediate and long-term environmental
impacts of an organisation’s services and
processes. The Group can fulfill not only its
market mandate but also greatly support green
activities and actively implement effective
policies aimed at emission reduction.

Pollutants Emissions

The major pollutants emissions of the Group
are due to the use of vehicles. During the year
ended 30 June 2019, the Group has disposed
all goods vehicles. The passenger car has
consumed about 18,266 litres of unleaded
petrol and lead to the emission of 0.3 kg of

sulphur oxides (SOx), 24 kg of nitrogen
oxides (NOx) and 1.8 kg of particulate
matters (PM).
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GHG Emissions

The Group consumes electricity and fuels for
the operations of its various business such as
logistic services and health care services. The
emission of carbon dioxide (CO,) has been
calculated by the quantity of energy consumed
multiple by the emission factors. The
emissions of CO, are broadly classified into
three scopes:

Scope 1 — Direct emissions from combustion
of fuels,

Scope 2 — Energy indirect emissions; and

Scope 3 — Other indirect emissions.

The combustion of unleaded petrol and diesel
leads to the production of 49 tonnes of CO,
(Scope 1). Further, the consumption of 76,014
kWh of electricity contributed to 60 tonnes of
CO, (Scope 2). 1 tonnes of CO, have been
produced from other indirect emissions
(Scope 3), which are mainly attributed to the
use of paper. To sum up, 462 tonnes of CO,
has been produced by the Group for the year
ended 30 June 2019.

Sewage management
The major issue concern of sewage is the use

shower room facilities provided for customers
before and after the spa treatment. The Group
ensures that sewage is properly connected to
municipal sewage system in accordance with
relevant regulations.

Waste management
The major land waste is the paper used to

prepare office documents. The Group has also
established policies to reduce and handle the
land waste. The Group encourages staff to
reuse singled-side used paper and doubled-
side printing.
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Emission reduction management WA EPE

The Group has established emission reduction AR B C O DT s HE R
management policy in order to save energy B > DAER A RE VR ~ 3D g IR
resources, reduce energy waste and consume TR KA RfsE I RE IR -

energy efficiently as follows:

Business segment Environmental Policies

E3Vig BRAR B

All member *  maintaining the room temperature at 25C ;
EX N A AR IE2S R IR 5

e choosing environmentally friendly materials and energy
saving lightings and electrical appliances;
IEARER R AR L2 B RE BB LA S = 4

* idle electrical appliances are switched off;
Il PA ] B TR A

e paper saving initiatives including the use of electronic
documents to minimize unnecessary printing, duplex
printing and reuse single-sided printed paper;
B 4 AROR A 1 - B35 6T 58 7 SR WD AN AT ED -
HEATEN > 3 548 6 B 3T Ep AR

* avoiding the use of disposable items which might include
paper cups and bottled water;

G (S P — UM > T RE LA AP RO K

logistic segment *  using energy efficient motor vehicles;
Yy o il I i REVRE

e route planning to shorten the route;
HLB B AR > LAAE T B AR 5

e inspecting the exhaust system and muffler and keep up
with engine maintenance regularly to reduce CO,
emissions; and
IR PR SRR A ST & e o S AT 51 SRR D
> AL PR K&

e priority use recyclable materials for its package.
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It is the Group’s policy to maintain the
operation in an efficient and effective manner
so as to continue minimizing environmental
impact. The Group has constantly updated
with the local legislation and standards for
environmental protection and assessed
whether these legislations and standards are
related to the business of the Group and the
Group’ s compliance status. During the year
ended 30 June 2019, the Group did not notice
any non-compliance with laws and regulations
relating to the environment. The Group will
continue looking for ways to reduce CO,
emissions and land contamination.

Use of Resources

Environmental policy and performance, and
environmental conservation is always one of
the Group’s concerns. With respect to the
business, the Group understands that materials
used could have direct impact on the
surrounding environment, as such, it sources
and selects environmentally friendly
materials. The Group utilises resources
effectively and responsibly to achieve
sustainable development. The Group
encourages staff to adopt environmentally
responsible habits to measure and reduce the
use of waste, minimize waste and recycle
materials.

The Group closely monitors the use of resources
to ensure their maximum use and avoid wasting
in order to protect natural resources and increase
operation efficiency. Each department of the
Group has to report on the use of resources
regularly and response to issues arisen in a
timely manner. In addition, the Group promotes
various measures on resources saving for
enhancing the awareness of energy conservation
and emission reduction, so as to use the
resources effectively.
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With respect to administration office, our
employees are provided with energy-efficient
laptops, and energy-efficient lights are
installed in the office. In addition, the Group
enhances employees’ awareness of energy
efficiency through channels such as e-mail
and on-line bulletins, encourage employees to
turn off lights and air-conditioners after work.

The Group’s resources consumption during
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the year ended 30 June 2019 are listed in the =+ HIEFENE IR
below table: W

Resources consumed Unit Consumptions
ik<el A &
Water tonnes 19
K L

Electricity kWh 76,014
EW)) T FLIRE

Paper used kg 250
T I Ak T

Environment and Natural Resources

According to the Group’s environmental
philosophy, all the group companies are
committed to a positive impact to the
environment while providing services to
customers. There is no doubt that energy
efficiency and environmental protections are
great concerns and difficult long-term tasks
for the Group and the society. The Group
encourages all staff to participate in different
kinds of recycling activities and minimize the
use of natural resources.

The Group strictly monitors and reviews the
data from time to time, minimizing the
negative effect to the environment and
maximizing its business development and
operation at the same time.
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR
PRACTICES

The Group always respects employees and treats
them as the enterprise’s foundation. The Group
attaches great importance to employees’ rights and
interests, and strictly complies with operating
labour laws and regulations and strives to
construct a fair, safe and healthy working
environment. During the Reporting Period, the
Group had not yet received any violations of laws
or regulations in its operating locations relating to
employment, occupational health and safety; and it
also had not yet received cases of employees
applying for work injury insurance claims.

B.1 Employment

Human resources are a valuable asset to the
Group. The Group provides a safe and healthy
working environment and takes reasonable
steps to safeguard the health and safety of
staff. The Group also encourages career
development and training, and promotes a
healthy living style with work-life balance.

The Group provides overtime compensation
for staff working on non-office hour. Social
activities such as birthday parties, annual
dinners and other social events are organised
for employees to participate to increase their
work-life balance and enhance the
relationship with employees.

The Group reviews employment policy
annually and strikes a balance between
employee remuneration and business growth,
which can benefit the development of the
Group. The Group has established a rigorous
performance appraisal mechanism to maintain
the effectiveness and efficiency of the
business operation. The performance of the
Group’s employees is reviewed regularly on a
related basis within the general framework of
the Group.
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As at the end of the year of 2019, the Group has
19 employees. The male/female composition
ratio of the Group is approximately 1:1.

WELT R AREA
9% BT -ALMBETZH &
AR f51:1 -

Staff Distribution by Age Group
RERARIE T NEE D

Equal Opportunities

As equal opportunity employer, the Group is
committed to providing a working environment
that is free from discrimination on the basis of
ethnic, gender, age, religion, nationality, or
disability. This includes employment practices,
such as recruitment, training, promotion, rates of
pay and benefits, in order to ensure employees and
job applicants enjoy equal opportunities and fair
treatment. We are committed to creating a
corporate culture and a working atmosphere of
equality, respect, diversity and mutual support. The
Group had no reported incidents of non-
compliance with regulations concerning
employment during the year ended 30 June 2019.

Health and Safety

The Group takes the “Occupational Safety
and Health Regulation” of the Labour
Department as reference to set up “five-
routine working practice” (5S) in
establishing a safe and healthy working
environment. The elements of 5S are:
Structurise, Systematise, Sanitise, Standardise
and Self-discipline. The Group believes
applying such guideline can reduce job-
related accidents, improve the efficiency of
work and create a good working culture
within the Group. Furthermore, the Group
reviews and evaluates potential occupational
hazards regularly.
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Moreover, the Group provides medical
insurance for employees. The Group has taken
up responsibilities to improve the working
environment and created a safe and
comfortable workplace for employees. For the
year ended 30 June 2019, the Group reported
zero work related fatalities and injuries.

Development and Training

The Group understands that training is the
most sustainable way for long-term
development, which is beneficial for both the
Group and the employees. Besides arranging
training programs on-going basis for different
levels of staff, the Group also encourages stall
to attend external training.

Management development

The Group encourages directors to attend
trainings regarding development and essential
skills, in order to have a better understanding
about development potential and direction for
enhancing their management skills.

Staff training

Induction program is arranged for all new
joiners in order to have a better understanding
of the Group’s culture and the working
environment. Besides, various internal
trainings are organised for operational staff,
such as technical skills, operation of heavy
machines and safety trainings.

External training

Further, the Group encourages the staff to
keep continuing education and life-long
learning, and enhance vocational retraining.
The Group offers sponsorship and
examination time off for permanent full-time
staff.
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B.4 Labour Standards B.4 %5 TH:H|

The Group is in strict compliance with all
laws and regulations relating to the
prohibition of employment of child labour and
forced labour. Human resource department
performs identification check during
recruitment process and before official
employment.

Upon discovery of any child labour and use of
forced labour, the person will be dismissed
immediately and the discovered issue will be
reviewed and discussed with the Board to
prevent it from happening again. The Group
also has policies to protect staff’s labour
rights with a complaint system for staffs to
report their concerns and any violations of
labour rights. For the year ended 2019, the
Group did not aware of any material violation
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of the relevant laws and regulations relating to 55 T2 A BRI 8 J i M -
the prohibition the employment of child
labour or forced labour.

Operating practices BEEM

B.5 {LHESE P

B.5 Supply chain management

The Group aims to deepen the collaborative
relationship with the strategic suppliers and
create competitive advantages in the value
chain. The Group also establish a
comprehensive vertical supply chain
management system through resource
integration and supplier screening and
management. The Group reviews the
performance of suppliers regularly and
disqualify suppliers with significant
deterioration in the quality of services and/or
products being provided.
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The policies which the Group has adopted to
ensure customer satisfaction and product quality
include the ability to return any defect products
to the customers. The Group strives to provide
clients with quality and safe products so as to
establish good credibility and reputation.

For logistic segment, the Group tries to
connect its office with the warehouse so as to
provide a convenient and efficient way for
tracking the status of goods, ensuring the
timing and quality of logistic services
between other warehouses, logistic centers
and air cargo terminals. With the most up to
date tracking information and efficient
administration support, the Group can
expedite consolidation, distribution, loading,
unloading and warehouse operations.

Privacy and customer data protection

The Group implements a strict policy to
manage and protect customer data in
compliance with privacy policies. The Group
provides hot-stone spa and other health
related services to customers. Personal
information collected through the health
condition questionnaire and membership
system are only for internal use and not
allowed to disclose to third party.

Customer satisfaction

The personal information and health condition
questionnaire collected from customer are used
to ensure the physical condition of customers
are the prevention from accidents and providing
the most suitable services to meet the clients’
needs, such as relaxation and detoxification.
When the Group receives a complaint, the
management would understand the situation and
investigate. After investigation, management
would put on necessary mediate actions and
measures to prevent the similar occurrence
happening again.
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The health care center is dedicated to
providing a great atmosphere for clients to
enjoy spa treatment. The interior design is
luxurious and elegant. The Group also keeps
the place clean and hygienic. Employees
would clean the equipment thoroughly after
use. The Group provides spacious bathrooms
and changing rooms for clients to clean up
after a hot-stone spa treatment.

Anti-corruption

Any events of corruption would bring
irreparable damage to the Group, therefore the
Group upholds a high standard of business
integrity throughout its operations. A system
with good moral integrity and anti-corruption
mechanism are seen to be the cornerstone of the
sustainable and healthy development of the
Group.

The Group has established a comprehensive
mechanism in reporting and investigation
procedures of related issues. Employees are
asked to notify their respective division head
for any suspicious transactions or any benefits
received from customers and suppliers. Any
confirmed misconduct behavior after
investigation, the Group will penalise the
employee involved, including the termination
of labour contracts with immediate effect. Any
suspected criminal offence will be promptly
whistle-blown and reported to relevant
authorities.

During the year ended 30 June 2019, the
Group did not receive any complaints nor
aware of any occurrence of unlawful practices
in relation to bribery, extortion, fraud or
money laundering.
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The Group is actively giving back to society
on various fronts, looking forward to bringing
benefits for both corporate and the
community. Constructing community is the
mission of the Group for comprehensively
enhancing the development of the community.
Through active participation of public service
activities, the Group keeps abreast of the
demands and views of the communities in
which it operates, provides appropriate
feedback and builds a positive image for the
Group.

The Group encourages employees to
participate in volunteer activities and
environmental protection activities actively.
The Group would seek opportunities to work
with charitable organisations by participating
in various community activities.
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The Directors present their annual report with the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2019 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the performance of the Group for the
Year by operating segments are set out in note § to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 121 to 122 of this
report and in the accompanying notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

No interim or final dividend was declared for the Year
(2018: Nil).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the five financial years is set
out on page 266 of the annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Company as well as
a discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance
during the Year and the material factors underlying its
results and financial position can be found in the
"Management Discussion and Analysis" set out on
pages 8 to 55 of this annual report. These discussions
form part of this report.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations,
businesses and prospects would be affected by a
number of risks and uncertainties including market
risk, credit risk, and liquidity risk. The risks and
uncertainties of the Group are shown in note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group commits to the long term sustainability of
the environment and communities in which it operates.
Acting in an environmentally responsible manner, the
Group endeavours to comply with laws and regulations
regarding environmental protection and adopt effective
measures to achieve efficient use of resources, energy
saving and waste reduction. For the Year, the Group
was not subject to any environmental penalty.

The environmental, social and governance report of the
Company is set out in the titled "Environmental, Social
and Governance Report" on pages 79 to 92 of this
annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, sales to the Group’s five customers
accounted for 13.5% (2018: 32.7%) of the revenue from
food and beverage, money lending, logistic services and
health care services for the year and sales to the largest
customer included therein accounted for 4.4% (2018:
8.6%). In respect of food and beverage, purchases from
the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted 7.5% (2018:
62.4%) of the total purchases for the year and purchases
from the largest supplier included therein accounted for
5.1% (2018: 34.9%).

None of the Directors of the Company, or any of their
associates or any other shareholders, which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital, had any beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers during the year.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS,
CUSTOMERS AND OTHER
STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a
good relationship with its supplies, customers and other
stakeholders to meet its immediate and long-term
goals.

During the year, there was no material and significant
dispute between the Group and its suppliers, customers
and/or other stakeholders except the litigations shown
in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the
Directors were indemnified out of the assets and profits
of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they
might incur in connection with the execution of their
duties. The Company has arranged directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance policy of the Company in
the Year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the Year are set out in
note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of the borrowings of the Group are set out
in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the share capital and share
options of the Company during the Year are set out in
notes 35 and 37 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

Details of the use of proceeds of the Company for the
year ended 30 June 2018 are set out in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 8 to 55 of this annual report.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group
during the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 125 of the
annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30 June 2019, the Company had no retained
profits available for cash distribution and/or
distribution in specie. Under the Companies Law (2018
Revision) of the Cayman Islands, the Company’s share
premium account and capital reserve of approximately
HK$1,589,573,000 (2018: HK$1,589,573,000) and
HK$15,826,000 (2018: HK$15,826,000) respectively,
may be distributed to the shareholders, provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business. The share premium
account may also be distributed in the form of fully
paid bonus shares.

DONATIONS

No charitable donations was made by the Group during
the Year (2018: Nil).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s articles of association or the laws of the
Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Woo Eddie (Chairman)
(appointed on 24 May 2019 and
re-designated as Chairman on 28 May 2019)

Mr. Suen Yick Lun Philip

Mr. Au Wai June
(appointed on 24 May 2019)

Mr. Ng Kwok Wing Michael (Chairman)
(resigned on 28 May 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chow Chi Wah Vincent

(appointed on 31 August 2018)
Ms. Chow Mun Yee

(appointed on 31 August 2018)
Mr. Ma Ka Ki
Ms. Wong Lai Na

(resigned on 31 August 2018)
Mr. Tse Yuen Ming

(resigned on 31 August 2018)

Pursuant to article 86(3) of the articles of association of
the Company, Mr. Woo Eddie and Mr. Au Wai June shall
retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offers himself for re-election.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules. The Company considers all the independent non-
executive Directors are independent.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHY

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company
are set out on pages 56 to 61 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has entered into any service
contract with the Company or any other member of the
Group which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND THE
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and of the five
highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in note
14 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER’S
INTEREST

Save as disclosed in the Annual Report, no contracts of
significance between the Company or any of its
subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries or any contracts of
any significance for the provision of services to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling
shareholder of the company or any of its subsidiaries
subsisted at any time during the Year or as at the end of
the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangement, and contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company’s subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries
or its parent company was a party and in which a
Director and the Director’s connected person (as
defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the Year review or at any time during the Year.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option share scheme on
20 November 2012 for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to the eligible participants
including the Directors, who have contributed or may
contribute to the Group. Details of the share option
scheme are set out in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements.

No share option have been granted to the eligible
participants under the share option scheme during the
Year, and no share option have been exercised during
the Year. There is no outstanding share option as at the
Year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 30 June 2019, none of the Directors nor the chief
executives of the Company and their respective
associates had any interests and short positions in any
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”))
which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
required to be recorded in the register kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings
by directors as set out in Rule 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules.
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DIRECTOR’S RIGHTS TO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “SHARE
OPTION SCHEME”, at no time during the Year was
the Company or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors and chief
executives of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or anybody corporate, and none of the
Directors and chief executives or their spouses or
children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe
for the securities of the Company, or had exercised any
such right during the Year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 30 June 2019, so far as is known to the Directors and
the chief executives of the Company, the interests and short
positions of the persons or corporations in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which have been
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO or, were, directly or indirectly, interested in
5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share
capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meetings of the Company were as follows:
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N 8 2 e A A o T A O
EVER Ty UNE T E =
BRI 183 2 T 28R A AT e I AR A
A AE R 2 HE A R AN AR R AT AT
il a% S RER] -

2 BB A A 4\ B Ay~ A B B A
Beftigr 2 M2 A

W oE—NEANH=EZTH o AL
HHENFETBANE A LN AL
/NI AN/ e g it s
WA CARIE RS I BB E X VIR
2 ]34 A A6 SC ) AR N T R 2 RE A
FORE 5 REC AL AR 48 38 7 & )
B2 336 ZE A7 B 2 B i i A 2 RE
T MR A > BKOHE 4 5 4 A B A
F A AATAT I LN 72 AR 2N A RO &
b A B 2 AT AAT S R B AR T 2 5% Bk LA
T

Number of Approximate

Capacity in which ordinary percentage of

Name of shareholders interests are held shares held shareholding

A A B Fi A 5 2 5y FifilEREE  BEARRE

Nieumarkt Investments Ltd (Note) Beneficial owner 991,689,459 64.66%
Nieumarkt Investments Ltd ( ff i) ot/ N

Mr. Ng Kwok Wing Michael (Note) Interest of controlled corporation 991,689,459 64.66%

SRS (HE3E) ZAEH AT 2 e

Note: Mr. Ng Kwok Wing Michael is deemed to be interested in
share of the Company through his interests in Nieumarkt
Investment Ltd.
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SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 30 June 2019
are set out in note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Group did not enter into any
transactions which need to be disclosed as connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions
pursuant to Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Details of the material related party transactions are set
out in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements
of this annual report. These related party transactions
did not constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions pursuant to Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or the management shareholders
of the Company or any of their respective associates
(as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any business
that competed or might compete with the business of
the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SHARES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, at
least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital
was held by the public as at the date of this report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Subject to the deviation as disclosed in the Corporate
Governance Report set out on pages 62 to 78 of the
Company's annual report, the Company has complied
with the Code on Corporate Governance Practice set
out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules and there
were no material deviation from the code during the
Year under review.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 30 June 2019, the Group employed a total of 19
employees (including Directors) (2018: about 75), and
the total remuneration (including Directors’
remuneration) for the Year was approximately HKS$
7,953,000 (2018: HK$15,912,000). The Group
remunerates its employees based on their individual
performance, working experience, qualification and the
prevailing market price. Other benefits provided by the
Group to the employee include mandatory provident
fund, insurance and medical coverage, training
programs and share option scheme.

The Company adopted the share option schemes where
share options to subscribe for shares of the Company
may be granted to the eligible participants of the
Group. No share options have been granted to the
employees under the share option scheme during the
Year (2018: Nil).

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

Other than operating the statutory mandatory provident
fund scheme for Hong Kong employees, the Group has
not operated any other retirement benefits schemes for
the Group’s employees.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Details of the significant events of the Group after the
reporting period are set out in note 46 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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DISCLAIMER OF OPINION - THE ARRBR-—EFGNBE

BOARD’S VIEW

—IJE BB E 2 AP E R

(i) Fair value measurement of an unlisted investment (i)

During the year, the Company has adopted a new
HKFRS 9 which required the unlisted investment
to be valued at fair value in according to HKFRS
9. As at 30 June 2019, the Company has 1.48%
equity interest in an unlisted investment, Co-Lead
Holdings Limited, details of which are set out in
Note 21 on pages 229 to 231 of this annual report.

For the year ended 30 June 2019, an independent
valuer has been engaged to provide an appraisal of
the fair value of 1.48% business equity of the
unlisted investment. The purpose of the appraisal
is to express an independent opinion on the fair
value of 1.48% business equity of the unlisted
investment from a non-controlling perspective.

Three generally accepted valuation approaches
have been considered by the independent valuer.
Under the income approach, the discounted cash
flow method will be used. The income approach
relies on explicit forecasts with a lot of subjective
assumptions which will not be available to the
Company as the Company has an insignificant
equity interest in the unlisted investment.
Therefore, the income approach is not applied. An
adjusted net asset value method under asset-based
framework has been adopted by the independent
valuer for the valuation of the fair value of the
unlisted investment. The market approach has also
been adopted for certain assets.
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The management account of the unlisted
investment is formed a major part of key inputs.
Major assumptions adopted are listed as follows:

(i) No major changes in the existing political,
legal, fiscal and economic conditions;

(i) No major changes in the current taxation law
in Hong Kong.

(iii) No material deviation or changes in the
industry trends and market conditions;

(iv) No material changes in effective tax rates,
exchange rates and interest rates;

(v) Retain key management personnel and staff;

(vi) No material unrecorded and/or contingent
liabilities; and

(vii) Certain items are assumed to be respective fair
values.

The Company has 1.48% equity interest in the
unlisted investment from a non-controlling
perspective.

The Company has performed detailed financial
review of the unlisted investment for the year
ended 30 June 2019 and has closely coordinated
with the management of the investee company in
order to safeguard the assets of the Group.

The Company has also engaged an independent
professional valuer to perform valuation of the
unlisted investment under the requirements of the
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
recognised a fair value change to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2019 accordingly.
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With the effort of the management and the Audit
Committee, the auditors have obtained supporting
documents during their field visits and met with
the management of Co-Lead. However, certain
supporting documents of the financial assets of
Co-Lead were not satisfied by the auditors on their
fair value assessment and audit work of Co-Lead.
As a result, an audit qualification was issued by
the auditors.

The Company considered that the carrying value of
the unlisted investment as at 30 June 2019
approximates its fair value.

Unauthorised occupation of an investment
property

Reference is made to the section headed “Property
investment” on pages 18 to 20 of this annual
report.

During the year, the Company decided to deal with
those unhealthy businesses, therefore, the
Company has sought a liquidator to handle those
unhealthy businesses properly. The advantages are
that the liquidator has its professional knowledge
and experience.

The Company has engaged an independent
qualified profession valuer to perform a valuation
of the Beijing Property and adjusted the fair value
of this property according to the valuation report
as at 30 June 2019.

The management has also engaged a PRC lawyer
to review and provide legal opinion on the
ownership and enforcement rights of the Beijing
Property. The legal opinion clearly stated that the
Group has owned the legal title of the property, the
right to use, the right to enforce an unknown
occupant to leave and the right to demand rental
payment and compensation for damage.
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At the date of this report, no progress report is yet
to be provided by the liquidator.

On 12 August 2019, Ernst &Young was appointed
as the liquidator to facilitate proper handling as
soon as possible. The Company considered that the
liquidator will exercise professional judgment to
deal with the Beijing Property on an independent
basis.

(iii) Material uncertainty relating to the going concern

During the year, the Company intended to enhance
its money lending business and trading in
securities and investments. By way of acquisition
of a brokerage company in the second-half of the
year, the Company was confident extend to its
money lending business and trading in securities
and investments to a fully integrated of finance
service provider. On the other hand, the Company
was able to obtain a revolving loan facility of
HK$100 million for a period of eighteen month.
The revolving loan facility has been secured by
debentures.

The Company received a notice from its Creditor
on 3 July 2019 that events of default have
occurred under the debentures granted by the
Company to the Creditor dated 25 January 2019,
and thereby the Creditor has appointed the
Receiver to all of the property and assets of the
Company on 3 July 2019. The Receiver is
appointed by the Creditor to enforce and preserve
the assets charged under the Debenture.
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On 28 June 2019, the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited has decided to suspend trading in
shares of the Company under Rule 9.04 of the
GEM Listing Rules and has commenced the
delisting procedures under Rule 9.14 of the GEM
Listing Rules (the “Events of Default”). On 4 July
2019, a receiver was appointed by the Creditor to
enforce and preserve the assets charged as Events
of Default have occurred. The receiver shall have
the powers conferred on him/she under the
debenture including but not limited to, among
others, (i) take possession of, or collect, and get in
all or any of the charged assets; and (ii) to sell or
otherwise dispose of all or any of the charged
assets.

Under the Receivership, the Company is operating
as usual. The Company also demonstrated to the
auditors of the Company that the Company was
able to pay interest on time and repaid from time
to time when the surplus of funds is available.
However, due to the powers of the Receiver under
the Receivership, and the net current liabilities and
loss for the year, the qualified opinion was issued
by the auditor.

The Events of Default was not caused by default
payments. In fact, the Company was able to pay
the monthly interest on a timely basis. On the
other hand, the Company is expected that further
dividends will be distributed from the clients’
liquidation accounts which is managed by the
liquidator. The Group is also taking measures to
tighten cost controls over various costs and
expenses with an aim to reduce overall expenses.

The Company’s proposed plan to address the audit
modifications disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2019 (the “2019 Consolidated Financial
Statements”) are as follows:
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Unlisted investment

The Company will try to explore any opportunity
to resolve the qualification, one of which would be
to dispose of the unlisted investment. On such
basis, it is expected that the qualification shall be
resolved in the next year’s audited financial

statements.

Beijing Property
Following the commencement of the Voluntary

Winding-Up on 12 August 2019, Power Elite
Group, where the Beijing Property was held be one
subsidiary under Power Elite Group, will cease to
be subsidiaries of the Company and effectively be
carved out from the Group. The financial results
and position of Power Elite Group will then be
deconsolidated from those of the Group. On such
basis, it is expected that the qualification shall be
resolved in the next year’s audited financial
statements.

Going Concern
The Company is optimised that future dividends

from the liquidations would bring in additional
funds to the Group for repayment of the
outstanding loan amount. Upon the full repayment
of the loan to the Creditor, the Receivership shall
be ceased. On the other hand, the Board has also
taken measures to tighten the operating cash
outflows through cutting costs and capital
expenditures, these measures included (i) freezing
headcount of the Group by pausing recruitment of
new employees and replacement of resigned
employees; (ii) slowing down settlement of
operating costs by fully utilising the credit period
granted by fully utilising the credit period granted
by service providers; and (iii) slowing down
capital expenditures.
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Taking into accounts the above considerations and
the 2019 Consolidated Financial Statements still
showed net assets of HK$126.5 million, the Board
was of the view that the Group would be able to
continue as a going concern and it is appropriate to
prepare the 2019 Consolidated Financial
Statements based on a going-concern basis. The
Board considered the views of the auditors that
these measures were not concluded and
implemented by 29 November 2019, i.e. the report
date of the 2019 Consolidated Financial
Statements, and the outcomes of these measures
are not within the control of the Board. The Board
understood the consideration of the auditors in
arriving their view towards the audit qualification.
Should the Group be unable to continue as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to the
2019 Consolidated Financial Statements to adjust
the value of assets to their recoverable amounts, to
provide for further liabilities which might arise
and to reclassify non-current assets and non-
current liabilities as current assets and current
liabilities, respectively. The effect of these
adjustments has not been reflected in the 2019
Consolidated Financial Statements.

During the course of annual audit of the Company’s
financial information for the year ended 30 June
2019, a number of Audit Committee’s meetings
were held by the Audit Committee together with the
auditors and the management of the Company. The
followings were the progress meetings:

— On 11 June 2019, a preliminary meeting
together with the auditors of the Company
was held in relation to those unhealthy
businesses such as food and beverage,
properties, logistics, health care, ex-money
lending operation and investment in an
associate;

— On 24 September 2019, a progress meeting
with auditor regarding the audit matters;
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— On 10 October 2019, an Audit Committee
meeting with auditors was held in respect of
audit procedures, including but not limited to
(1) going concern, (ii) fair value assessments
and/or adjustments on certain financial assets,
(iii) review of professional judgment and/or
assumptions for investment properties; and
(iv) certain audit procedures to be performed
by auditors;

—  On 1 November 2019, an Audit Committee
meeting with auditors was held in respect
audit procedures, including but not limited to
(1) going concern, (ii) fair value assessments
and/or adjustments on certain financial assets;
and (iii) certain audit procedures to be
performed by auditors; and

—  On 27 November 2019, an Audit Committee
meeting with auditors was held to discuss the
financial information of the Company and
respective audit qualifications.

The management and the Audit Committee of the
Company have taken pro-active approach to deal
with audit issues on valuations on financial assets
and properties as well as the audit qualifications.
Regarding the audit qualifications, the
management has provided information and
reported to the Audit Committee on their views
and assumptions on the major areas of the unlisted
investment, the Beijing Property and the going
concern issue. Based on the information provided
by the management and after several meetings and
discussions with the auditors and the management,
the Audit Committee agreed with the
management’s position on these major areas.
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Unlisted investment

The Audit Committee noted that the Company has
only 1.48% equity interests in Co-Lead Holdings
Limited (“Co-Lead”), the unlisted investment,
which is classified as financial asset at fair value
of other comprehensive income under HKFRS 9.
The Company has engaged an independent
external valuer to perform a fair value assessment
of Co-Lead using adjusted net asset value method.
Based on the fair value assessment, the Group
recognised a fair value loss of approximately
HK$2,292,000 on Co-Lead for the year ended 30
June 2019. The Audit Committee held a number of
meetings with the auditors regarding the valuation
of Co-Lead and the auditors requested to obtain a
number of supporting documents in relation to the
key inputs and assumptions adopted by the
management in their fair value assessments. With
the effort of the management and the Audit
Committee, the auditors have obtained supporting
documents during their field visits and met with
the management of Co-Lead. However, certain
supporting documents of the financial assets of
Co-Lead were not satisfied by the auditors on their
fair value assessment and audit work of Co-Lead.
As a result, an audit qualification was issued by

the auditors.
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Beijing Property
The Audit Committee noted the Beijing Property

that was suspected to be occupied by any occupants
with or without consideration. In this regard, the
Company has sought a legal opinion from a PRC
lawyer regarding the right to use the property, the
summary of which is disclosed in pages 18 to 20 of
this annual report. Subsequent to the Company’s
announcement dated 12 August 2019, the Company
has engaged professionals with relevant experience
to be the liquidator of Power Elite Group in order to
liquidate and recover the value of Power Elite
Group, of which the Beijing Property is held. The
management reported to the Audit Committee that
the liquidator of Power Elite Group will issue a
legal letter to the occupants regarding the
unauthorised occupancy issues. After several
meetings with auditors, the auditors agreed that the
Group has a legal title and right of the Beijing
Property, but they have doubt on the present ability
to direct the use of Beijing Property and present
ability to receive rental income and prevent other
parties from directing the used of the Beijing
Property. As a result, an audit qualification was
issued by the auditors.
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Going Concern
With reference to the Company’s announcement

dated 4 July 2019, the Company has received a
notice from its Creditor that events of default have
occurred under the debentures, and thereby the
Creditor has appointed a receiver to all of the
property and assets of the Company on 3 July
2019. Under the terms of the debenture, the
receiver has power to take possession of, or
collect, and get in all or any of the Group’s
property and assets and sell or otherwise dispose
of all or any of the Group’s property and assets.
The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed
the powers of the receiver with the management
and the auditors. The management reported to the
Audit Committee that the Company was able to
reduce the utilised amount under the revolving
loan facility after 30 June 2019 and the Company
will continue to repay from time to time when the
surplus of fund is available. However, after several
meetings with auditors, an audit qualification was
necessary due to the receivership situation and the
Group resulted a net current liability of
approximately HK$18.1 million and loss for the
year of approximately HK$152.1 million.

Overall

In the course of approving the 2019 Consolidated
Financial Statements, the Audit Committee had a
meeting with the auditors. During the Audit
Committee Meeting, it was reported by the
auditors to the Audit Committee on the basis of the
audit qualifications. The Audit Committee
reviewed the findings and report by the auditors,
and considered the information provided by the
Directors in relation to the measures taken to
improve the receivership and solvency position of
the Group and the 2019 Consolidated Financial
Statements still showed net assets as at 30 June
2019, the Audit Committee was of the view that
the Group would be able to continue as a going
concern and it was appropriate to prepare the 2019
Consolidated Financial Statements based on a
going-concern basis.
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The Audit Committee understood the view of the
auditors, i.e. those measures for the unlisted
investment, Beijing Property and going concern
were not concluded and implemented as at the date
of the Audit Committee Meeting, i.e. 29 November
2019, the report date of the 2019 Consolidated
Financial Statements, and the outcomes of these
measures are not within the control of the Board,
in arriving their view towards the audit
qualification. The Board would further work with
auditors on the Company’s proposed plan in order
to resolve the audit qualifications in the next
year’s audited financial statements.

AUDITOR

Elite Partners CPA Limited has acted as auditor of the
Company for the past three years including the Year.

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint
Elite Partners CPA Limited.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Suen Yick Lun Philip
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 29 November 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

elite
- partners

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

TO THE MEMBERS OF CELEBRATE
INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(In Receivership)

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial
statements of Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”)
set out on pages 121 to 265, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30
June 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group. Because of the
significance of the matters described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we have
not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on
these consolidated financial statements and whether the
consolidated financial statements have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Fair value measurement of an unlisted investment

As disclosed in note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements, as at 30 June 2019, the Group has
financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income of approximately
HK$42,525,000 (“Financial Assets”). Management
has engaged an independent external valuer to
perform a fair value assessment of the Financial
Assets using adjusted net asset value method. Based
on the fair value assessment, the Group recognised
a fair value loss of approximately HK$2,292,000 on
the Financial Assets for the year ended 30 June
2019.

For the purpose of our audit, we were unable to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence we
considered necessary to assess or corroborate the
appropriateness of the key inputs and key
assumptions adopted by management in their fair
value assessments, including but not limited to
verifying (i) the financial information of Financial
Assets as at and for the year ended 30 June 2019;
and (ii) other key assumptions adopted in the
valuation, which would impact the results of the
fair value assessment of the Financial Assets.

Given the above scope limitation, there were no
other satisfactory procedures that we could
perform to determine whether any adjustments to
the fair values of the Financial Assets of
approximately HK$42,525,000 and the corresponding
fair value loss of approximately HK$2,292,000
recognised for the year then ended were necessary.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
(Continued)

2.

Unauthorised occupation of investment
properties

As disclosed in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements, as at 30 June 2019, the Group held an
investment property in Beijing, the PRC (“Beijing
Property”) with fair value of approximately
HK$28,445,000, such fair value has been arrived at on the
basis of a valuation carried out by an independent external
valuer. As represented by the management, during the year,
Beijing Property was suspected to be occupied by
unknown party without the authorisation of the Group
(“Suspicion”). Accordingly, the Group was unable to
provide sufficient information, including but not limited to
(i) existing condition of Beijing Property; and (ii) tenancy
agreement relating to Beijing Property that was suspected
to be occupied by any occupants with or without
consideration. Under this circumstance, we were unable to
determine whether the Group has, during the relevant
period of Suspicion, (i) present ability to direct the use of
Beijing Property; and (ii) present ability to receive rental
income and to prevent other parties from directing the use
of Beijing Property.

Given the above scope limitation, there were no other
satisfactory procedures that we could perform to
determine whether the fair value of Beijing Property
of approximately HK$28,445,000 stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30
June 2019 were free from material misstatement.

Material uncertainty relating to the going concern

As discussed in Note 2 in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group incurred a net loss
of approximately HK$152,303,000 for the year
ended 30 June 2019 and, as of that date, the
Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current
assets by approximately HK$18,086,000.

3 37 A% B ¥ o

AR R A ()

2.

P& PSRRI B4

%5 A W85 2 B 5 18 BT i 8%
AE—JUESNHA=TH, &%
B A — AR B R
2T EHE] A FHH
28,445,000 IC » 5%~ TH )5 5L iR
— 4 8 ST AN BE A (R R A AT R A (E
fEE - PREME RS NI Y
EWEREY— B RMALRE &
AL AR RE AL (M BB D) I
o BEEE KRR R E R
A1 45 5 R BR A ()AL 5= W 2 1 B
iR RGi) A B R BE g AE NG
(A A2 A5 $ A ) iy db i 2
PIFHE ek - FEULIE VLT > 5% 1%
R E AR A AH B AR
ERHAOBRILEmEREDN
BART 5 KGR & A &
B 1k Hofth A EF5 Rt i 2E A&
() B BE

Bl o [ R o 4 A ] A
T HAb R SRR U ER %
—JLAEANHA =+ H &6 %R
W BT AL st WA TFEA
28,445,000 JC & 5 ANAEAEH KK
BBk -

A7 B e 20 A0 A R KA Wl

g A BB R B s R 2 o E A 0 B
EFEE—NEANHA=ZFTHIEE
E, BEBEELEAERFHRL
152,303,000% st H # % #%
Ho> 4 00 I B & 8 R
& E4718,086,000% ¢ °

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 4 #t

117




118

B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited

(2% ) (In Receivership)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

3 37 A% B ¥ o

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
(Continued)

3.

Material uncertainty relating to the going concern
(Continued)

On 3 July 2019, the Company received a notice
from its creditor, Citizens Money Lending
Corporation Limited (“Creditor”) that events of
default have occurred under the debenture granted
by the Company to the Creditor dated 25 January
2019 (“Debenture”), and thereby the Creditor has
appointed Mr. Tang Shing Tung as the receiver
(the “Receiver”) to all of the property and assets
of the Company.

Under the terms of the Debenture, the Receiver has
power to take possession of, or collect, and get in all
or any of the Group’s property and assets and sell or
otherwise dispose of all or any of the Group’s
property and assets.

This condition indicates the existence of material
uncertainties which may cast significant doubt
about the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If the Receiver exercises his power to
realise the Group’s property and assets, it may not
be able to continue to operate as a going concern,
and adjustments would have to be made to write
down the carrying values of the Group’s assets to
their recoverable amounts, to provide for any
further liabilities which might arise and to
reclassify non-current assets and non-current
liabilities as current assets and current liabilities.
The consolidated financial statements do not
include any of these adjustments.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountant (“HKICPA”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued
by the HKICPA and to issue an auditor’s report.
However, because of the matter described in the Basis
for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we
were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on
these consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Leung Man Kin with
practising certificate number P07174.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

10/F., 8 Observatory Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon,
Hong Kong

29 November 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

f B 1R A B L th 2 i WL 2

For the year ended 30 June 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollar)  #F —3=—AFAH = HIFFEE (LiBToln)

2019 2018
“ENE O FE )\
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
B 5T T# 7t T-HE T
Turnover e 7 98,932 145,847
Revenue W A 7 19,365 41,399
Cost of sales B A (7,881) (29,269)
Gross profit EBHM 11,484 12,130
Other income HAtb s A 9 13,591 24,125
Administrative expenses ATEB X (28,872) (52,650)
Other operating expenses HoAth 2875 BH =2 10 (145,230) (138,097)
Loss from operations =g F ] (149,027) (154,492)
Finance costs Rl AR 11 3,276) (2,171)
Share of loss from an associate M — [HI & 28 7] 2 5 18 - (740)
Loss before taxation B % i s 18 (152,303) (157,403)
Income tax credit Fr 5 B K e 12 = 2,210
Loss for the year A 4R 13 (152,303) (155,193)
Other comprehensive NG R T
income/(expense) for the (P 3Z)
year
Item that may be reclassified 1] GENS F14% B 70 B £ 18
subsequently to profit or wmZHH -
loss:
Exchange difference on A 5 TR A
translation of financial SRR
statements 2,461 (894)
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% ) (In Receivership)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
fo 7 18 i B L Al 2 i WAL i R

For the year ended 30 June 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollar) # % —Z—JLFANH =1 HILFEE (LiETEI1nR)

2019 2018
e F\UE
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
Pt 51 T# T T
Item that will not be NERHEEHN LA
reclassified subsequently to  # ZJHH :
profit or loss:
Fair value change on H Al R A RS A 42
revaluation of financial TR A i A 2 485 Pl
asset at FVTOCI N H ) (2,292) -
Other comprehensive ARAEJE HA A T i 25
income/(expense) for the (B 32)
year 169 (894)
Total comprehensive AR AR BE 2 1H B S AR
expense for the year (152,134) (156,087)
Loss attributable to: JE AN M5 48 -
Owners of the Company EN/NEIE7 ZEDN (152,301) (155,179)
Non-controlling interests M4 ) (14)
(153,303) (155,193)
Total comprehensive JRE A 2 Th B S AR -
expense attributable to:
Owners of the Company EN/NEIE ZEDN (152,132) (156,073)
Non-controlling interests R 4 ) (14)
(152,134) (156,087)
Loss per share attributable <2 ®] #EfG A REAY 1%
to the owners of the & 18
Company
~ Basic and diluted — FEA 16 (HKS$0.103#78) (HK$0.10%7T)

The notes on pages 129 to 265 form part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A
(Tn Receivership) ( #% %% )

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
fo 7 JA 5 IR 8 3

At 30 June 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) & —Z—FAH="1H (LIi#cilr)

2019 2018
s —F\E
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
It 51 T# 7t THTC
Non-current assets Ik Ui B B
Property, plant and equipment 43 ~ &5 K s A 17 2,516 15,650
Investment property i8¢/ ES 18 28,445 30,462
Investment in an associate Mg AR Z B E 19 — -
Loan receivables JRE B R 26 13,269 -
Financial assets at fair value %/ V- £8 Ho At 4 a7 U #5
through other comprehensive AN ([ #%& 2 P 8 H At
income (“FVTOCI”) WA 2 &/
HE 21 45,525 -
Available-for-sale investments FJ fit Hi 8 8 & 21 - 48,632
Deposit paid EENE 22 55,411 10,075
Intangible assets Y & 23 - -
Goodwill [ S 24 — -
145,166 104,819
Current assets B
Trade and other receivables  MEWUIRF S HABMENGRIE - 25 13,332 36,234
Financial assets at fair value &/ T-HF IR AR ([ 1%
through profit or loss APFHERBHAR]) 2
(“FVTPL”) 4 RiE 27 112,633 164,476
Bank balances and cash SRATH AT S 28 9,851 22,032
135,816 222,742
Current liabilities WE) R
Margin payables JREASHFF 2 B 29 30,099 -
Trade and other payables JREAST Rk B oA EAST E 30 22,626 27,292
Promissory note JRAT E 31 _ 19,354
Borrowings & & 32 100,000 156
Obligations under finance Pl AR B KA
leases 33 399 502
Tax payable JRE A A T 34 778 778
153,902 48,082
Net current (liabilities)/assets i B ( 115 ), & &S (18,086) 174,660
Total assets less current A8 7 U B £ R
liabilities 127,080 279,479
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited

(2% ) (In Receivership)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

f B B B SIR Dt

At 30 June 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) & —ZE—FANH="1H (LIi#cilr)

2019 2018
“F2hE F U
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
B 5T T# 7t T-HE T
Non-current liabilities é_‘ﬁﬁfiﬁ |
Obligations under finance Rl A B R
leases 33 538 803
Deferred tax liabilities R ol TE A ] 34 _ -
538 803
NET ASSETS A 126,542 278,676
Capital and reserves JBe AR R Gt i
Share capital Jie A 35 153 153
Reserves fiti i 36 70,466 222,598
Equity attributable to owners A7 FI A A MEAL 1 25
of the Company 70,619 222,751
Non-controlling interests FE T R 2 55,923 55,925
TOTAL EQUITY HARE AR 126,542 278,676

These consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
29 November 2019 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Woo Eddie
W R e Ak

Chairman

S

The notes on pages 129 to 265 form part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Executive Director
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A
(In Receivership) (445 #)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
fo 7 B £ 5 B 3%

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #E —Z—JL4FAH =+ HILFBE

Tnvestment Non-
Share Share  Exchange revaluation  Capital Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium  reserves  reserve  reserves losses Total interests  equity
B

Bk RBER ERRE B RARE RHER A REREE  MER
HKS0N  HKS0N  HKS0N  HKS00  HKS00  HKS'00  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
T TG T TR T TR T T Tibn

At1Tuly 2017 RF-tELA-H 153 138937 316 S IR6 (L70H)  ITRM S99 4476
Loss for the year KEEER - - - - - (IS5 (155179) (14 (1519)
Other comprehensive expense AR AMAHEL :
for the year:
Exchange differences on translation R RFEE L
of financial tatements EiEH - - (894) - - - (s - (804)
Total comprehensive expenses A AHF AR
for the year - - (894) - - (155179)  (156,073) (14 (156,087)
At30 June 2018 REE-NERA= TR 153 158957 (578) - 1586 (1382223 ML 5595 278676
Inital Application of HKFRS 9 B WCIE A ia ik it

ok - - - se) IR - - -

At Tuly 2018 (Restated) REF-NELA-H(KE
jil 153 13957 (%) (U6 1586 (LJ606%5) M5 595 278676

Lossfor the year KEERE - - - - - (18301 (152,300) (1) (15309
Other comprehensive expense AR HMAHEL :

for the year:
Fair value change on revaluation B A FEER AT

of financil AR 2REEZ

asset at FVTOCI LTSS - - NN - A AL
Exchange diferences on translation S SRS kA 2 B

of financial statements 1] - - 2461 - - - 2461 - 2461
Total comprehensive expenses A AHF AR

for the year - - 2461 (2299) - (15300 (15013 (/IIOAKY)
Rechssificaion on disposalof ~ tHERATEEL AR

financial aset AR S REER

atFVIO0CI Efin - - - 16385 - (1638) - - -
At30 June 2019 REF-ERA=HH 155 1589373 1888 (0475 15826 (1LS29341) 0619 593 126542

The notes on pages 129 to 265 form part of these 53129%265H Z Misk M A L: & B4 TS
consolidated financial statements. Rz —HB
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% ) (In Receivership)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
fk 7 B AR

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #% —F—LFANH =1 HIFFE

2019 2018
e S5 i SNE
HKS$°000 HK$’000
T Tt
Cash flow from operating activities ~REEHZHERE
Loss before tax R B il e 4 (152,303) (157,403)
Adjustment for: CLEL T IIE E AR R
Interest income FEMA (1) (53)
Interest expenses k=Y ba 3,276 2,171
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEE - BRE Rk 2
and equipment (334) (3)
Loss on disposal of financial assets HERATHEHRGARZ 2
at fair value through profit or loss FERE 2 kR 95,376 5,181
Impairment loss on trade and other JRE SRk B L A RE S T 2 36
receivables {Hks 1 19,374 8,880
Impairment loss on loan receivables TR Bk 2 (A 1 231 72,680
Impairment loss on investment in an i — [ /A R4 & 2 W (E
associate [ - 3,525
Impairment loss on available-for-sale A fikH &4 & 2 Wik 1R
investments - 16,392
Impairment loss on goodwill T W (e 1 = 13,876
Impairment loss on intangible assets ¥ & 2 Wl (H 18 - 10,094
Depreciation of property, plant and VESY NS P
equipment 4,303 6,497
Amortisation of intangible assets TV B 2 B - 2,431
Share of loss of an associate T A — [R5 2 7] 2 e - 740
Loss on early redemption of HLIEER RS vd
promissory note - 126
Fair value change on financial assets /AT ESBEARZ S E
at fair value through profit or loss B2 A TS - (13,834)
Fair value change of investment BEMEZNTEES)
property 2,017 3,933
Fair value change on the contingent FRE 2 AP E)
consideration (5,000) (9,497)
Gain on disposal of investment fund ~ H/EREHES 2 Its (239) -
Dividend income from liquidating A BT R A R 2
subsidiary A (8,000) -
Loss on liquidating a subsidiary — [t B8 2wV A s 1R 12,447 -
Written off on disposal of property, B - R RS
plant and equipment 9,149 -
Loss on financial assets at fair value /A T-EZBREARZ SME
through profit or loss e¥d i° 5,593 3,410
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A
(In Receivership) (445 #)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
iy Bl R

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #E —Z—JL4FAH =+ HILFBE

2019 2018
e S5 CEN\E
HKS$°000 HK$’000
T Tt
Operating loss before changes in BEESEHH 2 KEkH
working capital (14,111) (30,854)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and B 3 B EA RE i
other receivables Wb/ () 6,356 (22,659)
Increase in loan receivables JRE WS B 8 T (13,500) (14,446)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and B Ao B B LA B AT 0
other payables (Kmm),/ Wb (5,141) 7,958
Decrease in inventories FEWY - 996
Proceed from disposal of financial HERATESHEG ARS
assets at fair value through profit SR T R0A
or loss 79,567 104,448
Purchase of financial assets at fair B AT HEREARZ
value through profit or loss SRR (128,693) (120,777)
Increase in margin payable T 7 SR 30,099 -
Net cash used in operating activities A& EHITH 2 B A FH (45,423) (75,334)
Cash flow from investing activities ~ HEEBEZHER R
Interest received RALEiD:N 1 53
Additions to property, plant & INEWE - BE Kkt
equipment (232) (269)
Proceed from sale of property, plant & W13~ Bifs Mkt 2 Bt
and equipment TH 379 20
Net cash effect of acquisition of R O A R 2 TR BB
subsidiaries (594) (6,430)
Purchase of financial assets at Bl B A T 08 A 2 T W
FVTOCI ARZ &G RE (3,000) -
Deposit paid for acquisition of IREWE - B Lz e
property, plant and equipment fa (5,000) -
Deposit paid for acquisition of W RO A R 2 2 AR
a subsidiary (40,740) -
Dividend income from liquidating AT R A R 2 TS
subsidiary A 8,000 -
Net cash outflow from disposal of HEERME AR 2B S
liquidating subsidiary ViR (10,719) -
Deposits paid for investments REz ke - (216)
Net cash used in investing activities 1% & EH TR 2 B4 T 5 (51,905) (6,842)
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% #) (In Receivership)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
fk 7 B AR

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #% —F—LFANH =1 HIFFE

2019 2018
ZE M e SN
HK$’000 HK$°000
T T
Cash flow from financing activities ~— B EBZHERE
Interest paid A FE (1,950) (288)
Proceed from borrowing UGS¢ 100,000 -
Settlement of obligation under A E G R
finances (368) (759)
Repayment of borrowing AR (156) (357)
Repayment of promissory note BRI R (15,680) (2,000)
Net cash generated from/(used in) MR/ () 2 B aF
financing activities # 81,846 (3,404)
Net decrease in cash and cash Bl K% W B4 9H B Wb 3
equivalents (15,482) (85,580)
Effect of foreign exchange rate ISR B B 2 B
change 3,301 (1,070)
Cash and cash equivalents at ERBERERBSHA
beginning of the year 22,032 108,682
Cash and cash equivalents at ERBERERMBSHA
end of the year 9,851 22,032
Analysis of cash and cash Bla REFBLEEE 4 B
equivalents
Bank and cash balances WITRB & 9,851 22,032
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A

(Tn Receivership) ( #% %% )

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f B 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability. The address of its
registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands. The address of its principal place of business
is Room 1503-1511, 15th Floor, China United
Centre, 28 Marble Road, North Point, Hong Kong.
The Company’s shares are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set
out in note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.

These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”),
the collective term of which includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange (“GEM Listing Rules”).

— & R

AN SR 2 B S sE o 2 A
PR W] o A2 m) 2w M o o Bl A6
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands > 22/ £ B A7
A kL A 15 B A28 5F e BE 0o 1 S
1503-1511°% o A4 7] 2 We iy it 7 it
B 55 22 5 B A1 BR 2w (T W8 22 e )
GEM([GEM ) Eifi

AN ) oy G I ) o b
[ UNGIOESR 37 R )iy s wegiin 4
WA EE20 -

W AR A MBS R DL T 241 BR
PR R LR ARN S o P aR Ok
FIRARITHY T o

H L 5L e
(a) BHEW

AMBMECRIERG S
NIRRT R A S
& 1) A 2 BT A A A
A i 2 E R (T 7 o 8 3
R | AR BT A
Z AR R A A o e R
e ah () F GG
A ]) KRR ) DA K A s S mAR
1 2 % &% B A Y o AN 5 45
A B i 3 AT B 22 TGEM
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited

(2% ) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 7 S 5 A M R

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % —~F—JLFNH =1 H ILFZ

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b) Basis of measurement

(©)

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost basis
except for the valuation of certain financial
instruments and investment property, which
are measured at fair value, as appropriate.

The preparation of consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain key assumptions
and estimates. It also requires the Directors to
exercise their judgment in the process of
applying the accounting policies. The areas
involving critical judgment and areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to
these financial statements, are disclosed in the
financial statements.

Going concern

As at 30 June 2019, the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by
approximately HK$18,086,000 and the Group
continued to incur a loss for the year of
approximately HK$152,303,000. These
conditions indicate that there may exist a
material uncertainty which may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

In addition, on 3 July 2019, the Company
received a notice from its creditor, Citizens
Money Lending Corporation Limited
(“Creditor”) that events of default have
occurred under the debenture granted by the
Company to the Creditor dated 25 January 2019
(“Debenture”), and thereby the Creditor has
appointed Mr. Tang Shing Tung as the receiver
(the “Receiver”) to all of the property and assets
of the Company.
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A

(Tn Receivership) ( #% %% )

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f B 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(¢) Going concern (Continued)

Under the terms of the Debenture, the Receiver
has power to take possession of, or collect, and
get in all or any of the Group’s property and
assets and sell or otherwise dispose of all or any
of the Group’s property and assets.

The Directors have given careful consideration to
the right of the Receiver to realise the Group’s
property and assets in assessing whether the Group
is able to continue as a going concern.

If the Receiver exercise his power to realise the
Group’s property and assets, it may not be able to
continue to operate as a going concern, and
adjustments would have to be made to adjust the
carrying values of the Group’s assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for any further
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-
current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities. As such, the Directors
have closely communicated with the Receiver
about the Group’s property and assets, and current
operations. Accordingly, the Directors are of the
opinion that it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis. The consolidated financial
statements does not include any adjustments
relating to the carrying amount and reclassification
of assets and liabilities that might be necessary
should the Group be unable to operate as a going
concern.
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% ) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f  B 5 e A BB

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % —~F—JLFNH =1 H ILFZ

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3.

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(a) Impact of new and revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and
revised HKFRSs that are first effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2018. Of these, the following developments
are relevant to the Group’s consolidated
financial statements:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments; and

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for
the current accounting period.

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of HKAS 39
that relate to the recognition, classification
and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities, derecognition of financial
instruments, impairment of financial assets
and hedge accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance
with the transition provisions set out in HKFRS
9, i.e. applied the classification and
measurement requirements retrospectively to
instruments that have not been derecognised as
at 1 July 2018 (date of initial application) and
has not applied the requirements to instruments
that have already been derecognised as at 1 July
2018. The difference between carrying amounts
as at 30 June 2018 and the carrying amounts as
at 1 July 2018 are recognised in the opening
accumulated losses and other components of
equity, without restating comparative
information.
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A

(Tn Receivership) ( #% %% )

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f B 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a) Impact of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

Accordingly, certain comparative information
may not be comparable as comparative
information was prepared under HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement.

The adoption of HKFRS 9 resulted in the
following changes to the Group’s accounting
policies.

(i) Classification

From 1 July 2018, the Group classifies its
financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

*  those to be measured subsequently at
FVTOCI or FVTPL, and

. those to be measured at amortised
cost.

The classification depends on the
Group’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual terms
of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains
and losses will either be recorded in
profit or loss or other comprehensive
income. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading,
this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the
time of initial recognition to account for
the equity investment at FVTOCI.

3.
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited

(2% ) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f  B 5 e A BB

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % —~F—JLFNH =1 H ILFZ

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a) Impact of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii) Measurement

The Group reclassifies debt instruments
when and only when its business model
for managing those assets changes.

At initial recognition, the Group
measures financial assets at their fair
value plus, in the case of financial assets
not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial assets. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVTPL are
expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded
derivatives are considered in their
entirety when determining whether their
cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the
asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Group classifies
its debt instruments:
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A

(In Receivership) (445 #)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o £ S 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a) Impact of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii) Measurement (Continued)

Amortised cost: Assets that are held
for collection of contractual cash
flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at amortised
cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in other
income using the effective interest rate
method. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognised directly in
profit or loss and presented in other
gains/(losses), together with foreign
exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line
item in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% ) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f  B 5 e A BB

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % —~F—JLFNH =1 H ILFZ

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3.

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a) Impact of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii) Measurement (Continued)

e FVTOCI: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows
and for selling the financial assets,
where the assets’ cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVTOCI.
Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest
revenue and foreign exchange gains
and losses which are recognised in
profit or loss. When the financial
asset is derecognised, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is
reclassified from equity to profit or
loss and recognsied in other gains/
(losses). Interest income from these
financial assets is included in other
income using the effective interest
rate method. Foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in other
gains/(losses) and impairment losses
are presented as separate line item in
the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A

(In Receivership) (445 #)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f B 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a) Impact of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii) Measurement (Continued)

*  FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the
criteria for amoristed cost or
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL. A
gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at
FVTPL is recognsied in profit or loss
and presented net within other gains/
(losses) in the period in which it
arises.

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in
other comprehensive income, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains
and losses to profit or loss following the
derecognition of the investment. Dividends
from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income
when the Group’s right to receive payments
is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVTPL are recognised in other gains/(losses)
in the statement of profit or loss as
applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVTOCI are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited

(2% ) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f  B 5 e A BB

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #;F =& —JL4FEANH =1 H ILF %

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a) Impact of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

(iii) Impairment

From 1 July 2018, the Group assesses on
a forward looking basis the expected
credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies
the simplified approach permitted by
HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from
initial recognition of the receivables.

Set out below is the impact of the
adoption of HKFRS 9 on the Group.
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A

(Tn Receivership) ( #% %% )

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f B 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a) Impact of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

The following table and the accompanying
notes below explain the original measurement
categories under HKAS 39 and the new
measurement categories under HKFRS 9 for
each class of the Group’s financial assets as at
the date of initial application (i.e. 1 July

3. WERHUAT R ARG T A ok B B
7 Y S0 (T 78 ol S 5 e oy Y U )
(%)

(a) BT B KA ] 7 ol B0 5 i o e
W Z 5% 8 (#1)

7 S S B9 BE &
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7 MR R A s & nt A I R399
i 400 i w A A S AR A
S i At A RS 9 SR B BT i

2018). B -
Carrying Carrying
Classification Classification amount amount
under under under under
Financial assets Note HKAS 39 HKFRS 9 HKAS 39 HKFRS9
MERFE  HESE
R o it WIEFEME  aatEl MERE
A9 EMENEONE  SE39UEM  HEHISEONE
S Bt s (ipig: (ipig] MR BRI
HK$°000  HKS$’000
T IT THIT
Unlisted equity (i) Available-for-sale ~FVTOCI 48,632 48,632
investments investments
b R E (i) At ERE N AR H A2
[LLESUN:
Trade and other (i1) Loans and Amortised cost 36,234 36,234
receivables receivables
REYC IR S BRI (i) B RBNGRIE SR
Loan receivables (i1) Loans and Amortised cost - -
receivables
FE WK (i) EREEYIE R
Listed equity securities (iii) FVTPL FVTPL 164,476 164,476
bR R IR (i) BAPEE ARG HATFEKSHEE
NS N
Bank balances and cash (iv) Loans and Amortised cost 22,032 22,032
receivables
WATHA LB (iv) EHBMEUCHIAE A
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% ) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f  B 5 e A BB

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % —~F—JLFNH =1 H ILFZ

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3.

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a) Impact of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

Notes:

(i) These unlisted equity investments represent
investments that the Group intends to hold for the
long term for strategic purposes. The Group elected
to present in OCI changes in the fair value of these
investments because these investments are held as
long-term strategic investments that are not
expected to be sold in the short to medium term. As
a result, assets with a fair value of approximately
HK$48,632,000 were reclassified from available-
for-sale financial assets to financial assets at
FVTOCI on 1 July 2018. Impairment losses made
against the investments previously classified as
available-for-sale investments of approximately
HK$21,368,000 were reclassified from the
accumulated loss to the FVTOCI reserve on 1 July
2018. Unlike HKAS 39, the accumulated fair value
reserve related to these investments will never be
reclassified to profit or loss.

(ii) Trade and other receivables and loan receivables
that were classified as loans and receivables under
HKAS 39 are now classified at amortised cost
under HKFRS 9.

(iii) Listed equity securities held for trading are required
to be held as FVTPL as under HKFRS 9. There was
no impact on the amounts recognised in relation to
these assets from the adoption of HKFRS 9.

(iv) Bank balances and cash that were classified as loans
and receivables under HKAS 39 are now classified
at amortised cost under HKFRS 9. There was no
impact on the amounts recognised in relation to
these assets from the adoption of HKFRS 9.
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A

(Tn Receivership) ( #% %% )

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f B 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a) Impact of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

The Group has adopted HKFRS 9 using the
cumulative effect method (without practical
expedients), with the effect of initially
applying this standard recognised at the date
of initial application (i.e. 1 July 2018).
Accordingly, the information presented for 30
June 2018 has not been restated — i.e. it is
presented, as previously reported, under
HKAS 39 and related interpretations.

The measurement categories for all financial
liabilities remain the same. The carrying
amounts for all financial liabilities as at 1 July
2018 have not been impacted by the initial
application.

For assets in scope of the HKFRS 9 impairment
model, impairment losses are generally
expected to increase and become more
volatile. The Group has determined that the
application of HKFRS 9 impairment model
requirements at 1 July 2018 did not have
impact upon the initial application.
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% ) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f  B 5 e A BB

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % —~F—JLFNH =1 H ILFZ

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3.

HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(a) Impact of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with
customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive
framework for determining whether, how much
and when revenue is recognsied. It replaced
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and related interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively
with the cumulative effect of initially applying this
standard recognised at the date of initial
application, 1 July 2018. Any difference at the date
of initial application is recognised in the opening
retained profits (or other components of equity, as
appropriate) and comparative information has not
been restated. Furthermore, in accordance with the
transition provisions in HKFRS 15, the Group has
elected to apply the standard retrospectively only
to contracts that are not completed at 1 July 2019.
Accordingly, certain comparative information may
not be comparable as comparative information was
prepared under HKAS 18 Revenue and the related
interpretations.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 resulted in the
following changes to the Group’s accounting
policies.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when
control of the commodities has transferred,
being when the goods are delivered to the
customers and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer’s acceptance of
the goods.
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A

(Tn Receivership) ( #% %% )

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f B 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Impact of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with
customers (Continued)

A receivable is recognised when the goods are
delivered as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only
the passage of time is required before the
payment is due.

Revenue from provision of services is
recognised at the point in time when services
performed to the customers.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 does not have
significant impacts on the amount of revenue
recognised.

New and revised Standards and Interpretations
issued but not yet effective

HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019

HK(IFRIC) 23 Uncertainty
over Income Tax
Treatments

1 January 2019

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015 -2017
Cycle

1 January 2019

Amendments to HKAS 28
Long-term Interest in

1 January 2019

Associates and Joint
Ventures
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% ) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f  B 5 e A BB

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % —~F—JLFNH =1 H ILFZ

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3.

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New and revised Standards and Interpretations
issued but not yet effective (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these
amendments and new standards is expected to
be in the period of initial application. So far the
Group has identified some aspects of HKFRS 16
which may have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements. Further details
of the expected impacts are discussed below.
While the assessment has been substantially
completed for HKFRS 16, the actual impacts
upon the initial adoption of the standards may
differ as the assessment completed to date is
based on the information currently available to
the Group, and further impacts may be
identified before the standards are initially
applied in the Group’s interim financial report
for the six months ending 31 December 2018.
The Group may also change its accounting
policy elections, including the transition options,
until the standards are initially applied in that
interim financial report.

Other than the recognition of lease liabilities and
right-of-use assets, the Group expects that the
transition adjustments to be made upon the
initial adoption of HKFRS 16 will not be
material. However, the expected changes in
accounting policies as described above could
have a material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements from 2019
onwards.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 4 #

VOB L 6T B 48 065 5T 7 s A 5
7 Y S0 (T 78 ol S 5 e oy Y U )
(%)

(b) T A AH i AR A R Z BT B 8
i w4 B e i B ()

A 4R H O AE BEAL R S B R K
3 e RIS T Uk E AR 30 R TE A
e S Bk AR
B 5% B s P i v A
551655 (1355 4 5 T R BE ¥ 4
B B S i R N K o T
5 2 ) — b R G R A
T o £ A 3 A U AR i e
SE165E R R B A SE N 5
T OUER AN R B R R R
Al REAR[A] SRR R 2 A B 1k 58
B REAL T BN AR E BLA
R > 7E 5% R TR A AR
LEBE _F—-NANFT_H
=+ —H 1S A B R
5 AT AT AR A
2 o 7E 5% R 1 U R R
B S S AT > AR B R ] B
s OB EEA &r HEUR > S
iR R A o

iR A B R A
FE A 5 A 2 [ FE 0 B O BR AN
w5 A 5 i e B 2R 1697 1R 1
VEH B R A AT R - R
M > b SCAr & s BUR Y TE
BETREAERA -F
—JUE RN & A M B kR
CEPNZ T




Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A

(In Receivership) (445 #)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f B 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below.

(a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

(1) has power over the investee;

(ii) is exposed, or has right, to variable
returns from its involvement with the
investee; and

(iii) has the ability to use its power to affect
its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it
controls an investee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from
the date the Group gains control until the date
when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% #) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S 5 e B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #;F =& —JL4FEANH =1 H ILF %

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FZEHHBOE (4)

(Continued)

(a) Basis of consolidation (Continued) (a) ZFEMRH AR (4)
Profit or loss and each item of other = BN e a5 1]
comprehensive income are attributed to the JH H BB R A A R A N K
owners of the Company and to the non- FEHE R ME 2 o B A 7 2 AT
controlling interests. Total comprehensive W 4 A8 A B R AR N B A
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the N B ¥ Tt 4 - B 0 B 2
owners of the Company and to the non- B IE 45 A £ 1 B RS 4t 4 6% o

controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit

balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the LIRS SR i 2§ P/A i)
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring Bk T AE R DS Hast
their accounting policies into line with the SR B A 42 1B 2 & ST UK —
Group’s accounting policies. e

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, LN A F 2 BT A B R A
income, expenses and cash flows relating to LB E N FZ BIETZS
transactions between members of the Group ZEERAME S A
are eliminated in full on consolidation. B = K B4 i & R AR A IR

ERSEISEE
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A
(In Receivership) (445 #)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o £ S 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEEFBKR(4)
(Continued)

(b) Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (b) JETE & 2 (FEBRA)

Intangible assets acquired separately are
measured on initial recognition at cost. The
cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or
indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each
financial year end.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives as
follows. The amortisation expense is
recognised in profit or loss and included in
administrative expenses.

Customer relationship 3-5 years
Brand name 15 years

R A R ) R O T ) U
FRE R IRF % A R o (2 S
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% ) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S 5 e B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #;F =& —JL4FEANH =1 H ILF %

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(©)

(@)

Acquisition of assets

For the acquisition of assets effected through
a non-operating corporate structure that does
not constitute a business, it is considered that
the transactions do not meet the definition of
a business combination. Accordingly, the
transaction is accounted for as the acquisition
of an asset. In such cases, the Group shall
identify and recognise the individual asset
acquired and liabilities assumed. The cost of
group of assets shall be allocated to the
individual assets and liabilities on the basis of
their relative fair value at the date of
purchase. Such a transaction or event does not
give rise to goodwill.

Associate

Associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence. Significant influence
is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policies of an entity but is not
control or joint control over those policies.
The existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing
whether the Group has significant influence.
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A
(Tn Receivership) ( #% %% )

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 7 S 5 A M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEEFBKR(4)

(Continued)
(d) Associate (Continued) (d) WA w(HE)
Investment in an associate is accounted for in R E ARz HERH

the consolidated financial statements by the
equity method and is initially recognised at
cost. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the
associate in an acquisition are measured at
their fair values at the acquisition date. The
excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the

fE o TR AR B B R A
M - Sl A0 AP i A TR R WA
Wi 7 > W IRF 2 T R E
BRSOl B 2 A
(B R o WSO A A S A
A5 T ) AT B
B2 A EZBEI R

associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is P o AR R ARG IR T
recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is A A A Rl B &S R IR &
included in the carrying amount of the BLEE 5 BUR 808 WU(E R 5[]

investment and is tested for impairment
together with the investment at the end of
each reporting period when there is objective
evidence that the investment is impaired. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of acquisition is recognised in
profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

The Group’s share of an associate’s post
acquisition profits or losses is recognised in
profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, and its share of the post-acquisition
movements in reserves is recognised in the
reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group’s
share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate, including
any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate. If the associate
subsequently reports profits, the Group
resumes recognising its share of those profits
only after its share of the profits equals the
share of losses not recognised.
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% ) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 7 S 5 A M R

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % —~F—JLFNH =1 H ILFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Associate (Continued)

(e)

Unrealised profits on transactions between the
Group and its associate are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the associate.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of the associate have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentational currency

Items included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities measured
using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional
currency”’). The financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is
the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency on
initial recognition using the exchange
rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange
rates at the end of each reporting period.
Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A

(In Receivership) (445 #)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f B 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEEFBKR(4)
(Continued)

(e) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(i1)

(iii)

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured at
fair values in foreign currencies are
translated using the exchange rates at the
dates when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary
item is recognised in other comprehensive
income, any exchange component of that
gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a gain or
loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, any exchange component of that
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all
the Group entities that have a functional
currency different from the Company’s
presentation currency are translated into
the Company’s presentation currency as
follows:

Assets and liabilities for each statement
of financial position presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of
that statement of financial position;

(e) AMUHEE(4)
(i) K5 ERBEREZEZ LS

R 5B (4H)

PAON W 2 - 5 2
B W TE O AT A
{8 H 2 HEFIRE -

il IF B W TH B 2 i 48 51
s 1800 T He At A T i i
N BRERD, A% WA BT 1H 2
AT a7 BE 5 350 0 3 7 H At
e T Wi 4 R RS, < i T B
T H 2 Wi 50k 1875 7R
18 45 K H At 4wk 4R
RS > "2 ik Bl 1R 2 A
a7 BE 52, %8 70 I A 48 48 %
LA 2 TR W 4 R

BREHRA Z S

il A 4 FHE T A R
Z R B WA R AR
F 2 RO A
Lo B 5 50K DL 2R #5240 J7
B0 W B YN A
B

RG-SR NS
BI| 2 EE RS B
T B B IR LR O 2 ik
W HE R H

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 4£#

151




B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% ) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S 5 e B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #;F =& —JL4FEANH =1 H ILF %

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEEFBKR(4)
(Continued)

(e) AMUHEE(4)

(e) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) %A MR H 2 1 (48)

(iii) Translation on consolidation (Continued)

152

Income and expenses for statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not
a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the
exchange rates on the transaction dates);
and

All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in the foreign currency
translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of the net
investment in foreign entities and of
borrowings are recognised in the foreign
currency translation reserve. When a
foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as
part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on the acquisition of a foreign
entity are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A
(Tn Receivership) ( #% %% )

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 7 S 5 A M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEEFBKR(4)
(Continued)

() Property, plant and equipment (OEEZE XY W Ed

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised in
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
is calculated at rates sufficient to write off
their cost less their residual values over the
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis.
The principal annual rates are as follows:

27% — 35%
10% — 25%
Computer equipment 17% — 30%
Office equipment 25% —30%
Motor vehicles 30%

Leasehold improvements
Furniture and fixtures

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% ) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S 5 e B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #;F =& —JL4FEANH =1 H ILF %

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEEFBKR(4)
(Continued)

(g) Investment property (g) BEWE

154

Investment property is land that is held by
owner for capital appreciation. These include
property held for a currently undetermined
future use which satisfy the definition of
investment property and carry at fair value.

Investment property is stated at fair value at
the end of the reporting period. Any gain or
loss arising from a change in fair value is
recognised in profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. The fair value of
investment property is based on a valuation by
an independent valuer who holds a recognised
professional qualification and has recent
experience in the location and category of
property being valued.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefits are expected from its
disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset is included in profit
or loss and other comprehensive income
during the reporting period in which the item
is derecognised.
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A
(Tn Receivership) ( #% %% )

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 7 S 5 A M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEEFBKR(4)
(Continued)

(h) Lease (h) &

Leases are classified as finance leases
whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are
recognised as assets of the Group at their fair
value at the inception of the lease or, if lower,
at the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The corresponding liability to the
lessor is included in the statement of financial
position as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between
finance expenses and reduction of the lease
obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance expenses are recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless they are
directly attributable to qualifying assets, in
which case they are capitalised in accordance
with the Group’s general policy on borrowing
costs (see the accounting policy below).
Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses
in the periods in which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term, except where another systematic basis is
more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed. Contingent rentals arising
under operating leases are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are
incurred.
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% ) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S 5 e B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #;F =& —JL4FEANH =1 H ILF %

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Lease (Continued)

In the event that lease incentives are received
to enter into operating leases, such incentives
are recognised as a liability. The aggregate
benefit of incentives is recognised as a
reduction of rental expense on a straight-line
basis, except where another systematic basis
is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A

(Tn Receivership) ( #% %% )

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f B 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEEFBKR(4)
(Continued)

@

()

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (Continued)

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial instrument

All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace. All recognised financial assets are
measured subsequently in their entirety at either
amortised cost or fair value, depending on the
classification of the financial assets.
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% ) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 7 S 5 A M R

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % —~F—JLFNH =1 H ILFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEEFBKR(4)

(Continued)

(j) Financial instrument (Continued) () &Rt TH(#H)
Debt investments B HE
Debt investments held by the Group are A A N EBRE S 5
classified into one of the following PIFRtEEZ — -

158

measurement categories:

e amortised cost, if the investment is held
for the collection of contractual cash
flows which represent solely payments of
principal and interest. Interest income
from the investment is calculated using
the effective interest method.

*  FVTOCI - recycling, if the contractual
cash flows of the investment comprise
solely payments of principal and interest
and the investment is held within a
business model whose objective is
achieved by both the collection of
contractual cash flows and sale. Changes
in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the
recognition in profit or loss of expected
credit losses, interest income (calculated
using the effective interest method) and
foreign exchange gains and losses. When
the investment is derecognised, the
amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled from
equity to profit or loss.

« FVTPL if the investment does not meet
the criteria for being measured at
amortised cost or FVTOCI (recycling).
Changes in the fair value of the
investment (including interest) are
recognised in profit or loss.
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A
(In Receivership) (445 #)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 7 S 5 A M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEEFBKR(4)
(Continued)

() &mTHE)

(j) Financial instrument (Continued)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified
as FVTPL unless the equity investment is not
held for trading purposes and on initial
recognition of the investment the Group makes
an election to designate the investment at
FVTOCI (non-recycling) such that subsequent
changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Such elections are made
on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may
only be made if the investment meets the
definition of equity from the issuer’s
perspective. Where such an election is made, the
amount accumulated in other comprehensive
income remains in the fair value reserve (non-
recycling) until the investment is disposed of. At
the time of disposal, the amount accumulated in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is
transferred to retained earnings. It is not
recycled through profit or loss. Dividends from
an investment in equity securities, irrespective
of whether classified as at FVTPL or FVTOCI,
are recognised in profit or loss as other income.

Policy prior to 1 July 2018

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. These assets are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method
(except for short-term receivables where
interest is immaterial) minus any reduction for
impairment or uncollectibility. Typically trade
and other receivables, loan receivables,
pledged bank deposits and bank and cash
balances are classified in this category.
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% ) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S 5 e B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #;F =& —JL4FEANH =1 H ILF %

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

@

(k)

Financial instrument (Continued)

Policy prior to 1 July 2018 (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are either investments classified as held
for trading or designated as at fair value
through profit or loss upon initial recognition.
These investments are subsequently measured
at fair value. Gains or losses arising from
changes in fair value of these investments are
recognised in profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group
has an unconditional right to receive
consideration. A right to receive consideration
is unconditional if only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration
is due. If revenue has been recognised before
the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration, the amount is presented
as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less allowance
for credit losses.
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A
(In Receivership) (445 #)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o £ S 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEEFBKR(4)
(Continued)

O ERER

(I) Loan receivables

After initially measured at fair value, loan
receivables are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation and the
loss arising from impairment is recognised in
profit or loss.

(m) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by the
Group entity are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance to the
substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% ) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S 5 e B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #;F =& —JL4FEANH =1 H ILF %

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4., FEGFIEOR (4)

POLICIES (Continued)

(m) &/l &R BAR T H(H)

(m) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

162

(Continued)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade and
other payables, borrowings, promissory note
and convertible bonds) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest income over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees on
points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition. Interest expense as recognised on
an effective interest basis.
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A

(Tn Receivership) ( #% %% )

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f B 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEEFBKR(4)
(Continued)

(n) Trade and other payable

(0)

Trade and other payables are stated initially at
their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when control over a
product or service is transferred to the
customer, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes
and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised
when control of the goods has transferred,
being when the goods have been shipped to
the wholesale’s specific location (delivery).
Following delivery, the wholesaler has full
discretion over the manner of distribution and
price to sell the goods, has the primary
responsibility when on selling the goods and
bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in
relation to the goods. A receivable is
recognised by the Group when the goods are
delivered to the wholesaler as this represents
the point in time at which the right to
consideration becomes unconditional, as only
the passage of time is required before
payment is due.
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% ) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 7 S 5 A M R

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % —~F—JLFNH =1 H ILFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEEFBKR(4)
(Continued)

(o) Wi R (4)

(0) Revenue recognition (Continued)

164

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit
impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate
is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying
amount net of loss allowance) of the asset.

Policy prior to 1 July 2018

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and when the revenue can be measured reliably,
on the following bases:

(i) From the sale of goods, when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership
have been transfer red to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor
effective control over the goods sold;

(ii)) From rendering of services, recognised
when the services are rendered;

(iii) Interest income from bank deposits, loan
receivables and convertible bond, on an
accrued basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or
a short period, when appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial assets; and

(iv) Dividend income from listed investments is
recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A

(In Receivership) (445 #)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f B 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEEFBKR(4)
(Continued)

(p) Employee benefits

1)

(ii)

(iii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service payments are recognised when
they accrue to employees. A provision is
made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service payments as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until
the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined
contribution retirement schemes which are
available to all employees. Contributions to
the schemes by the Group and employees
are calculated as a percentage of
employees’ basic salaries. The retirement
benefit scheme cost charged to profit or
loss and other comprehensive income
represents contributions payable by the
Group to the funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised
when, and only when, the Group
demonstrably commits itself to terminate
employment or to provide benefits as a
result of voluntary redundancy by having
a detailed formal plan which is without
realistic possibility of withdrawal.
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% ) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 7 S 5 A M R

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % —~F—JLFNH =1 H ILFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEEFBKR(4)
(Continued)

(p) Employee benefits (Continued) (p) RE®A(4)

(iv) Share-based payments

(iv) ARG I ZEBEZ 13K

The Group issues equity — settled and AL B ) A TR B AR
cash — settled share — based payments to MR E LB eaEAE
certain employees. Equity — settled share LB A5y 25 HE B8 2 A o i
— based payments are measured at fair fi &5 A DLy 2y BB 2
value (excluding the effect of non- A5 ¥ e A B A 7
market-based vesting conditions) of the H 2 P EEE CREE
equity instruments at the date of grant. VNE IRy P Y
The fair value determined at the grant J§ A 2 5 B ) o A HE 2R
date of the equity-settled share-based & DR O 2y Bl 2 A

payments is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on

AR H W E 2 A
{6 > T fieh o 30 [ 4 A 2

the Group’s estimate of shares that will B Al 5t 4 B B 2 Ik 1y
eventually vest and adjusted for the effect DL SR R E S WA
of non-market-based vesting conditions. I i i By Ay LR 2 BB
oA 2 5 A R o
(q) Borrowing cost (q) fEBHA

PRI ~ A Y AR
FE (7 1A — Bed= iy ] J7 fiE 722 B
Hofit e R s 5 ) T E %
AR Z R RAB A ZEE
FEZ A AR HE G EE
KL ] A A SREE
g B R 2 A o G 1
T3 B B R

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets,
until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary M AF 22 6 8 4% T R 2
investment of specific borrowings pending WERATIRATBERER 2
their expenditure on qualifying assets is R AR AR o

deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.
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(Tn Receivership) ( #% %% )

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f B 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEEFBKR(4)
(Continued)

(q) Borrowing cost (Continued)

(r)

To the extent that funds are borrowed
generally and used for the purpose of
obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is
determined by applying a capital is at ion rate
to the expenditures on that asset. The
capitalisation rate is the weighted average of
the borrowing costs applicable to the
borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made
specifically for the purpose of obtaining a
qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
in the reporting period in which they are
incurred.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current
tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit recognised in profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

(q) fEERA (4)

(r)
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% ) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 7 S 5 A M R

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % —~F—JLFNH =1 H ILFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEEFBKR(4)
(Continued)

(r) Taxation (Continued) (r) BiIE(#)

168

Deferred tax is recognised on differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses or unused tax
credits can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and associate
except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.
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(Tn Receivership) ( #% %% )

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f B 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEEFBKR(4)
(Continued)

(r) Taxation (Continued)

(s)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rate that
are expected to apply in the period when the
liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, except when it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the deferred
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority
and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Related parties

(1) A person or a close member of that
person’s family is related to the Group if
that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i1) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent
of the Group;
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEEFBKR(4)
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(1) The entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others);

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member);

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

(v) The entity is a post — employment
benefit plan for the benefit of the
employees of the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a);

(vil) A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity
or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity);
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 7 S 5 A M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEEFBKR(4)
(Continued)

(s) Related parties (Continued) (s) PAHEDT (4)

(2) An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions applies:
(Continued)

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part provides key
management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

(t) Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible
and intangible assets except goodwill to
determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of any impairment loss.
Where it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEEFBKR(4)
(Continued)

(t) Sl A ()

(t) Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

172

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-
generating unit is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the impairment loss is treated as
a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset or
cash-generating unit is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of amortisation or
depreciation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset or cash-generating
unit in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, unless the relevant asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the reversal
of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase.
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A
(Tn Receivership) ( #% %% )

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 7 S 5 A M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEEFBKR(4)
(Continued)

(u) 45l 2 a1

(u) Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses on trade and other
receivables and loan receivables. The amount
of expected credit losses is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition of the respective
financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for
trade receivables. The expected credit losses on
these financial assets are estimated using a
provision matrix based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current
as well as the forecast direction of conditions at
the reporting date, including time value of
money where appropriate.

For loan receivables and other receivables, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition. However, if the
credit risk on the loan receivables and other
receivables has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group measures
the loss allowance for that loan receivables
and other receivables at an amount equal to
12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit
losses that will result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a loan
receivables and other receivables. In contrast,
12-month ECL represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events on a loan receivables and other
receivables that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % —~F—JLFNH =1 H ILFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the
reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the
date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. Forward-looking information
considered includes the future prospects of the
industries in which the Group’s debtors
operate, obtained from economic expert
reports, financial analysts, governmental
bodies, relevant think-tanks and other similar
organisations, as well as consideration of
various external sources of actual and forecast
economic information that relate to the
Group’s core operations.

In particular, the following information is
taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition:

« an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

* significant deterioration in external

market indicators of credit risk for a
particular financial instrument;
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A

(In Receivership) (445 #)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f B 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEEFBKR(4)

(Continued)
(u) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

+ existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

* an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor;

* significant increases in credit risk on
other financial instruments of the same
debtor;

* an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in
the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days
past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f  B 5 e A BB

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #;F =& —JL4FEANH =1 H ILF %

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has
not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if:

(1) The financial instrument has a low risk of
default,

(i) The debtor has a strong capacity to meet
its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term, and

(iii) Adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term
may, but will not necessarily, reduce the
ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have
low credit risk when the asset has external
credit rating of “investment grade” in
accordance with the globally understood
definition or if an external rating is not
available, the asset has an internal rating of
“performing”. Performing means that the
counterparty has a strong financial position
and there is no past due amounts.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEEFBKR(4)
(Continued)

(u) 45l 2 D1 (4

(u) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as
constituting an event of default for internal
credit risk management purposes as historical
experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not
recoverable.

e when there is a breach of financial
covenants by the counterparty; or

* information developed internally or
obtained from external sources indicates
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f  B 5 e A BB

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % —~F—JLFNH =1 H ILFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Detfinition of default (Continued)

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group
considers that default has occurred when a
financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one
or more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of that
financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

» significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or the counterparty;

e a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

* the lender(s) of the counterparty, for
economic or contractual reasons relating
to the counterparty’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the counterparty a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

* it is becoming probable that the
counterparty will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation; or

*  The disappearance of an active market for

that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEEFBKR(4)
(Continued)

(u) 45l 2 D1 (4

(u) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the debtor
is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, including when
the debtor has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or
in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are
recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of expected credit losses is
a function of the probability of default, loss
given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default
and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information
as described above. As for the exposure at
default, for financial assets, this is represented
by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the
reporting date.
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 #;F =& —JL4FEANH =1 H ILF %

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEEFBKR(4)
(Continued)

(u) 45l 2 D1 (4

(u) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

180

Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is
estimated as the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the original effective
interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance
for a financial instrument at an amount equal
to lifetime ECL in the previous reporting
period, but determines at the current reporting
date that the conditions for lifetime ECL are
no longer met, the Group measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL at the current reporting date, except for
assets for which simplified approach was
used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments with a corresponding adjustment
to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A
(In Receivership) (445 #)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o £ S 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4., FEGFIEOR (4)

POLICIES (Continued)

(u) 45l 2 D1 (4

(u) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Policy prior to 1 July 2018

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible
and intangible assets except goodwill to
determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of any impairment loss.
Where it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a
pretax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% ) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S 5 e B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #;F =& —JL4FEANH =1 H ILF %

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4., FEGFIEOR (4)

POLICIES (Continued)

(u) 45l 2 D1 (4

(u) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

182

Policy prior to 1 July 2018 (Continued)

Loan and receivables are assessed for indicators
of impairment at the end of each reporting
period. Loan and receivables are considered to
be impaired when there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows
of the financial assets have been affected.

For loan and receivables, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

»  significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or counterparty; or

e breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-
organisation.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the average credit period of 30
days to 90 days, observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A
(Tn Receivership) ( #% %% )

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 7 S 5 A M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEEFBKR(4)
(Continued)

(u) 45l 2 D1 (4

(u) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Policy prior to 1 July 2018 (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future
cash flow discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or
loss. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost,
if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the investment at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

B E - ONFEEH - HATHY

HOR ()

S5 49 4 9 A B R 2 <
HE S - Ml EE R &
R EE 2 MR T E B DL g
B O B R R A B A
R B 4 U R B (E 2 [ Y 2
% o

IRCE AN - Ry EiCY-]
He R & R A EE 2 MR T (E P AR
HH AT o M TR R B ER A
e TH L 725 20 1 T 995 45 B A 1)
FI o 158 R A 1T (. 58 B 7
1R 4 RS o 4 — T B IO 3K
WA 7 SR WS JI A 488
TS o 2 i 2 AR B SR OE
Il i AR o

SF A 49 0 B A 2
BRET & - il 95 (B 4R 2 2
Ji LA S T 980 > i % 9 2D mT
711t DL e R (AR M B 2
HOA B HPE T O RS 2
(L i 48 B 725 20 48 2 495 [0 7R
B AE H > B R AR (A
A B Sl A i R (E
A o

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 4£#

183




184

B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% ) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 7 S 5 A M R

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % —~F—JLFNH =1 H ILFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

)

(W)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditures
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non- occurrence of one or more future events
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group’s
position at the end of the reporting period or
those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting
events and are reflected in the financial
statements. Events after the reporting period
that are not adjusting events are disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements when
material.
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A

(Tn Receivership) ( #% %% )

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f B 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

CRITICAL JUDGMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

In the process of applying the accounting policies,
the Directors have made the following judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and underlying assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affect
both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

(a) Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful
lives, residual values and related depreciation
charges for the Group’s property, plant and
equipment. These estimates are based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives
and residual values of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions.
The Group will revise the depreciation charge
where useful lives and residual values are
different to those previously estimated, or it
will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold.

CEF W ER T

ARG FECRER S ERC Y
oK E 725 8 At 2R R e E 2 E K
A SR R LR B R R
B o %l MO B i TS DA
A8 B e A AR T A B 2 TR
HLUE o TR &5 R T REAT B i 45 ik
it e

IG5 Al BT B AH BB S A & RR A AR
HASET o B FHAGFHE B ST ¢
TEMCSE Al SHATAE T A ] (B R T 1
BN s AE T A ] A R 2k 1A
] (CEAEHT 52 2 B IRy TR A B )
T LAHERR -

AR 75 A7 b8 A L gt 2B S5O 2 B I
A 2 B R B R R B
HERABZAR KK EER
B> LB ik AR A S B B A
R HA A -

(a) W3- Wb B i DA B ¥ 25

AL Ty LW~ RS B
JREE A A o A0 R B AR
{6 KA Bl 785 3t - A At
AFEAL TR 2 D RE R 4 36 ~ i
5 R AR BT B AT T 4 O
Lo 70 5 158 (L 0 38 1 8 B 5 O
HE o ik AT {11 4 309 R AR 1
AR SR BT A > AR
A AT T B S > RO
B T R L K
£ 5 A IR S S

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 4£#




B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% ) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 7 S 5 A M R

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % —~F—JLFNH =1 H ILFZ

5. CRITICAL JUDGMENTS AND KEY 5. [ SRR B R B EAE(H)

ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b) W J 3k e L il I8 Witk JEL 22 9K

(b) Impairment loss for trade and other receivables

186

Prior to the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 July 2018,
the management of the Group assesses at the end of
each reporting period whether there is any objective
evidence that trade receivables are impaired. The
provision policy for bad and doubtful debts of the
Group is based on the evaluation of collectability
and aging analysis of accounts and on
management’s judgement. A considerable amount
of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of trade receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of
each customer. If the financial conditions of
customers of the Group were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional allowance may be required.

As at 30 June 2018, the carrying amount of trade
receivables is HK$4,745,000 (net of allowance for
doubtful debts of HK$3,826,000).

Since the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 July 2018, the
management of the Group estimates the amount of
impairment loss for ECL on trade receivables based
on the credit risk of trade receivables. The amount of
the impairment loss based on ECL model is
measured as the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition. Where
the future cash flows are less than expected, or being
revised downward due to changes in facts and
circumstances, a material impairment loss may arise.

As at 30 June 2019, the carrying amount of trade
receivables is nil (net of allowance for doubtful debts
of approximately HK$6,743,000).
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A

(In Receivership) (445 #)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f B 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: foreign currency risk, price risk,
credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The
Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(a) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate due to changes in
foreign exchange rates.

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign
currency risk as most of its business
transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
functional currency of the Group. Accordingly,
no foreign currency risk analysis has been
presented. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy in respect of
foreign currency risk. The Group will monitor
its foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

(b) Price risk

The Group’s financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period.
Therefore, the Group is exposed to equity
security price risk. The Directors manage this
exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk profiles.

The loss after tax for the year would decrease/
increase as a result of gains/losses on equity
securities classified as at fair value through
profit or loss.
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited

(2% ) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 7 S 5 A M R

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % —~F—JLFNH =1 H ILFZ

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b) Price risk (Continued)

(¢

At 30 June 2019, if the share prices of the
investments increase/decrease by 10%, (2018:
10%) loss after tax for the year would have
been approximately HK$11,263,000 lower/
higher (2018: HK$16,448,000 lower/higher),
arising as a result of the fair value gain/(loss)
of the investments.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the
counterparty to a financial instrument would
fail to discharge its obligation under the terms
of the financial instrument and cause a
financial loss to the Group.

The carrying amount of the bank and cash
balances, trade and other receivables and
financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, included in the statement of financial
position represents the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to the
Group’s financial assets.

The Group only trades with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. As at 30 June 2019,
the Group has no concentration of credit risk
(2018: 47%) of the total trade receivables.
However, receivable balances are monitored
on an ongoing basis, the Directors review the
recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt and loan regularly to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are recognised for
irrecoverable debts. In this regard, the
Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk
is significantly reduced.
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A

(Tn Receivership) ( #% %% )

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f B 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(©)

Credit risk (Continued)

As at 30 June 2019, the Group has
concentration of credit risk as 15% and 60%
(2018: 12% and 44%) of the total loan
receivables was due from the Group’s largest
debtor and five largest debtors, respectively.
However, receivable balances are monitored
on an ongoing basis, the Directors review the
recoverable amount of each individual loan
debt and loan regularly to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are recognised for
irrecoverable debts. In this regard, the
Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk
is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on bank balances is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high
credit-ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at
30 June 2019

The table below shows the credit quality and
the maximum exposure to credit risk based on
the Group’s credit policy, which is mainly
based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or
effort, and year-end staging classification as at
30 June 2019. The amounts presented are
gross carrying amounts for financial assets.
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% ) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S 5 e B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #;F =& —JL4FEANH =1 H ILF %

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. BB JE Ba A PE (4)
(Continued)
(c¢) Credit risk (Continued) (c) fr Bk (4)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at W ZE—NFENH =1 HZ R
30 June 2019 (Continued) 157 J i e 4 AR S e B ()
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12 A M
FRER FRYENGERER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total

BB FaRR WaMR WiR st
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
T T#x  T#x T#x  Ti#x

Loan receivables* FE B 13,269 - - - 13,269
Financial assets included in 5T AT FUR & 4&
prepayments, deposits and ~ RILAMEILHIEZ

other receivables SHEE 13,332 - - - 13,332
Cash and cash equivalents B4 RERHEEE
- Not yet past due — A d 9,851 - - - 9,851
36,452 - - - 36,452
* For loan receivables to which the Group applies * A S R R PR — PO 12 NI R
general approach for impairment, and is disclosed B BB i 2 B R 2648 22 11 JE Ui
in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements. £ e
The Group has policies in place to ensure that 7S A5 B 5T A B3R DA A 1) 8
sales and loans are made to customers with an LB ERELB 2R S
appropriate credit history. Sy M AR o
The credit risk on financial assets at fair value WA TFHEHKEIEAEZ SR
through profit or loss is limited because the EEZASEREA R > K A
counterparty is a well-established securities ¥ TR B
broker firm in Hong Kong. ) F8 5 40 AT o
(d) Liquidity risk (d) WHE L E B
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will TR & 4 R B A S AR ) 8
not be able to meet its obligations associated BEMEE S AEERE
with its financial liabilities. AT 1 JEL B o
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A
(Tn Receivership) ( #% %% )

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 7 S 5 A M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. BB JE Ba A PE (4)
(Continued)
(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) (d) B & k()
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor AL 2 BUK By 2 5k H
current and expected liquidity requirements to A R 2 i E & Wk
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of PRICORFE 78 2 Bl i - DARE
cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the A5 HO A DA ROBCR 1 2
short and longer term. B aTEK -
The maturity analysis of the Group’s financial AR ) 4 b A 2 B A
liabilities is as follows: ST
Total
Less than Between Between undiscounted ~ Carrying
Iyear 1land2yeas 2and3years OverSyears  Cash flow amount
ARBB S

“iEN O CFERE O OREERE  @RRE RERE WER
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
T T#n T#n T#n T TiEx

At 30 June 2019 REE-0E
AAZTA
Margin payables TR 30,099 - - - 30,099 30,099

Trade and other payables  FEfi i B L MAE ff
L

Ry 12,626 - - - 22,026 12,626
Obligation under finance &l E4E

leases ‘ 448 359 209 - 1,016 937
Borrowings B 1875 100,518 - - 108,393 100,000
01,048 100,877 209 - 162,134 153,662

Total
Less than Between Between undiscounted Carrying
lyear land2yeas 2andSyears OverSyears  Cashflow amount

KIS

—ER O -FERE OWEELF O BRRF  REBAE RaER
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
e Tbx  Tkr bt TR fiEx

At 30 June 2018 REF-NE
AA=TH
Trade and other payables  FEFTHe st R L ARE (T
R 27,092 - - - 27,292 27,09
Obligation under finance A& E AL
leases 574 880 - - 1454 1,305
Promissory note LT 20,680 - - - 20,680 19,354
Borrowings [ir& 156 - - - 156 156

48,702 880 - - 49,582 48,107
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% ) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 7 S 5 A M R

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % —~F—JLFNH =1 H ILFZ

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. SV JEL B AT PE (4)
(Continued)

(e) IR Bx

(e) Interest rate risk

192

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the
fair value or cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. The interest rates and
terms of repayment of the borrowings which
are subject to fixed interest rates are disclosed
in Note 32. The Group currently does not
have any interest rate hedging policy,
however, the Directors monitor interest rate
change exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate change exposure
should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for non-derivative instruments at the end
of each of the reporting period. The analysis
is prepared assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting periods
were outstanding for the whole of each of the
reporting periods. A 50 basis points increase
or decrease in the market rates is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points
higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s post-tax loss for the
year ended 30 June 2019 would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$500,000
(2018: nil). This is mainly attributable to the
Group’s exposure to the borrowings.
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A
(Tn Receivership) ( #% %% )

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o £ S 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. SV JEL B AT PE (4)

(Continued)

) LT HER

(f) Categories of financial instruments

2019 2018
o —F\4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T Tt
Financial assets: SRVE E -
Financial assets at FVTOCT 4%/ V(B 8 HoAth 4> i
Wi ai AR 2 4 il
HE 45,525 -
Available-for-sale investments ~ AJ {t i B - 48,632
Financial assets at FVTPL/ &/ PHAE @A
held-for-trading IR/ FHEREZ
<5 112,633 164,476
Financial assets at amortised  JZ 485 AR ABR 2
cost B RE A 36,452 -
Loans and receivables B S ME K TH
(including cash (B9 B 4 S SRAT &5
and bank balances) 1) - 58,266
194,610 271,374
Financial liabilities: R
Financial liabilities at T AT IR 2
amortised cost e 3=N 153,662 48,107
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% ) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S 5 e B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #;F =& —JL4FEANH =1 H ILF %

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. SV JEL B AT PE (4)
(Continued)

() A At

(g) Fair value measurement

194

The following presents the assets and
liabilities measured at fair value or required to
disclose their fair value in these financial
statements on a recurring basis at 30 June
2019 across the three levels of the fair value
hierarchy defined in HKFRS 13, Fair Value
Measurement, with the fair value
measurement categorised in its entirety based
on the lowest level input that is significant to
the entire measurement. The levels of inputs
are defined as follows:

(i) Level 1 (highest level): quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the
Group can access at the measurement
date;

(ii) Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices
included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly;

(iii) Level 3 (lowest level): unobservable
inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
into and transfer out of any of the three
levels as of the date of the events or change
in circumstances that caused the transfer.
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A
(In Receivership) (445 #)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o £ S 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. SV JEL B AT PE (4)

(Continued)

(g) &~ PAERHE (4)

(g) Fair value measurement (Continued)

Assets measured at fair value

As at 30 June 2019:

o HER R EE

REE-NIEAA=1TH:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B1E W2)E ®3E At
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
Tt Tt Tt Tt
Investment property &% = = 28,445 28,445
Financial assets ¥ NV 28 HoAth 4>
at FVTOCI T ABR 2 4
il = - 45,525 45,525
Financial assets at N EEEE A
FVTPL Wz 4 fle
— Equity — R E
investments 112,633 - - 112,633
Total HEE 112,633 - 73,970 186,603
As at 30 June 2018: W=F—/)NFEANH=1H:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
H1E $20E %30 st
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000
Tt T¥TT T Tt
Investment property X &EHZE - - 30,462 30,462
Financial assets at e N E SRR A
FVTPL W 2 45 il
— Equity investments ~— & 164,476 - — 164,476
Total HEE 164,476 - 30,462 194,938

All of the Group’s fair value measurement

were revalued at the end of the reporting

period.

A 9 A7 (R
0 B A A
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited

(2% ) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f  B 5 e A BB

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #;F =& —JL4FEANH =1 H ILF %

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. SV JEL B AT PE (4)

(Continued)

(g) Fair value measurement (Continued)

Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value

based on level 3:

(g) &~ PAERHE (4)

BRI A EA R E
7 R

Financial

assets at Investment
FVTOCI  properties

A FAER

H: Ay 2

Wi AR Z

B E A B’EWE
HK$’000 HK$’000
THTC THETT

At 1 July 2017

At initial recognition
Total gains or losses

recognised
— in profit or loss

— in other comprehensive

income

At 30 June 2018

Adoption of HKFRS 9

At 1 July 2018
Additions
Redemption

Total gains or losses

recognised
— in profit or loss

— in other comprehensive

income

At 30 June 2019

WoE—t4ELH—H
R/

B ERR 2 Ui i3 B 1R

Ha g

— A

— Ji HoAth 4 v i 2

T — J\4E
ANH=1H

R 40 7 A T s A v )
ok

W _F—/\FE-EH—H
Ham
i [
EL RS 2 i 43 Bl 1R
g
=k
— i A A T A £

# The total gains or losses recognised in profit or loss
including those for assets held at end of reporting
period are presented in net gain on fair value
changes on asset in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A

(Tn Receivership) ( #% %% )

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f B 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(€3]

(h)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

Valuation process used by the Group and
valuation techniques and inputs used in fair
value measurements regarding the investment
property and financial assets at FVTOCI are
disclosed in note 18 and 21 respectively.

Capital managements

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern and to maintain
healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The capital structure of the Group consists of
debt and equity attributable to owners of the
Company. Debt includes margin payables,
trade and other payable, promissory note
borrowings and obligations under finance
lease. Equity attributable to owners of the
Company comprising issued share capital and
reserves.

The Directors of the Company review the
capital structure periodically. As part of this
review, the Directors of the Company consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the Directors of the
Company, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through adjusting the new
share issues and the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt to reduce debt.

St 5 Dl B P ()

(2)

(h)

AP ()

A K B G ) 2 AR AT
H #8 Hofth 2 T Uk 45 A BR 2 &
Al & 7E T 2 AG R R T S
AR BT A 2 Al (E BT
i A BOEE 2 Al B R 18 K21
Pz

BARE

AEBEEARERZ TEEM
o DR A S I A A6 DA FF A AR
B KA TR &
AHAR S DSRS0
T IAR A (E -

A ) 2 B A K M AL A RS
AL B HEA N REAG 4 - 15
B LA A 1 8 0H - REA AR
A B At BE A BROE - R A SR
5~ LR E A R - R
N B N EAG R 4 LA B
AT A e St Al

A w3 E W ke E A A
o AE R a i — 3R A w
EHEESREARMENE
A RAS B Ja gt o MRIEAS 2L A
BB R AL EER
o8 BT BB AT B AT R RS
B [ BLA B AR WD R
B o 0 T T 47 R AR A
1
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% ) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f  B 5 e A BB

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #;F =& —JL4FEANH =1 H ILF %

7. TURNOVER AND REVENUE 7.

An analysis of the amount of each significant
category of turnover and revenue from principal
activities during the year is as follow:

e S YL E

CHNP NS s S ]
BRI < BB AT

2019 2018
“E2hE FN\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
T T
Revenue from contracts with T s B 15 s MR R 2B 15 9%
customers within the scope of HEANKBEFGHZ
HKFRS 15, disaggregated by Wi (3% 3 2 5 sl IR
major products or services lines  #% #4))
Revenue from trading of food &l LB E 5 2 W4
and beverage - 8,415
Revenue from health FRABER B 2 W 2
care services 286 974
Revenue from logistic services YR RS 2 Wi 2,869 16,790
3,155 26,179
Revenue from other sources B U T A R )56 15 95%
outside the scope of HKFRS 15: #i[E4hsk { HAhA T 2
Wt
Interest income from P DSV N
money lending 1,716 15,220
Dividend income from il R B A
listed securities 14,494 -
16,210 15,220
Revenue I i 19,365 41,399
Proceeds from sale of HE TR
listed securities REEL 79,567 104,448
Turnover [ ) 98,932 145,847
At a point in time A — Iy [H] B 2,869 -
Over time T e — IRF [ B 286 -
3,155 -
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A

(Tn Receivership) ( #% %% )

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f B 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

SEGMENT REPORT

For management purposes, the Group is organised
into business units based on their products and
services and has six (2018: six) reportable and
operating segments as follows:

(a) Trading of food and beverage segment is a
strategic business unit which is engaged in the
provision of quality food and beverage;

(b) Money lending segment provides funds to
clients and receives loan interest income in
return;

(c) Health care services operates a health centre
for the provision of hot stone spa and health
related services;

(d) Securities investment and trading is engaged
in purchase and sale of securities and
investment;

(e) Logistic services provide general services in
palletization, receiving and delivery, custom
clearance for both air and ocean cargoes, and
warehousing; and

(f) Property investment is engaged in investment
in properties.

The accounting policies of the operating segments
are the same as those described in the Financial
Statements. Segment profit or loss does not
include interest expenses and income, share of loss
from an associate, impairment loss on interest in
an associate, fair value change on contingent
consideration, dividend from a liquidating
subsidiary, loss on loss of control of a liquidating
subsidiary, loss on cessation of a subsidiary, other
corporate income and expenses. Segment assets do
not include investment in an associate, property,
plant and equipment for corporate use, deposits
paid for corporate use, and bank and cash balances
for corporate use.

Zg b

WUE BRI > AR IR PR E b MR
5 1 81 73 605 AL - A LU SR
(= F— \4E = Nl ZH S S &8
B

(a) B XA S o B 5 PR
%Fﬁ%&%%z%%%%
AN

(b) JfE A B & P A& 4 DL
HERUR A B A

(c) 4 f AR s 46 % — R AR fd o o>
DA 4 2 M S R B AR
% s

d) BHEBUEREERELTHE
=" MRE

(e) W M 5 $2 f — % ¥ i Ak
B IR R 2 AT
D K 72 38 i 5 ) 19 3 B
KERE K

() VB EREYREBE -

KEB oy I 2 8 UK BB ok
Jir 2t 5 AR TR o 3 KRR 4 A G4 FILEL
BH SC MO ~ TEAG — [ B 24 Rl 2
e AR ~ T — [H] g 2 ) E i 2 (L
Ji 8~ SR MUE 2 AP (EE ) - A
H— ] 2 B8 o~ R 2 e Sl
N~ 22— ] 5 A R ] Y £
2 B 18 ~ A 1k — [ B B 2 7] 2 Js
18 > DACH A A SE WA B B S - 4y
MEAEAQRER —HBEELFZ
P& MERER R Z Y3 s &
s~ S R e A 2 H s L
LAl M 2 SRAT BB S 4547 -
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% ) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 7 S 5 A M R

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % —~F—JLFNH =1 H ILFZ

8. SEGMENT REPORT (Continued) 8. JrEERE ()
Segment liabilities do not include other payables SEAEAEREAER TR i
for corporate use and promissory note. JREAST K T B 7 A S 4
Segment revenues and results g L&Y ES
The following is an analysis of the Group’s LN AU A S SE S Ei s B
revenue and results by segment: mr -
For the year ended 30 June 2019 BEF-NEAA=ZTHILESEE
Reportable segment
R
Securities
Food and Money  Health care  investment Logistic Property
beverage lending services  and trading services  investment Total
o408

SR Wi RRERE B Wil sk it
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'O000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000
T T#n T#n T#xm T#n T#x T

Tumover BER - 1,716 286 94,061 2,869 - 98932
Segment revenue ielien - 1,716 286 14,494 2,869 - 19,365
Segment loss MR (5,501 (10,980) (18,162) (87,871) (2,768) @01y (127,383)
Fair value change o~ SAMIEZ

contingent ATFEES

consideration 5,000
Dividend income from a 4 F — & &t

liquidating BARZIRE

subsidiarity 1N 8,000
Corporte bk

administration costs (21,856)
Loss on loss of control ~ Hk—El3 M

of a liquidating L UNGLiEs

subsidiarity [ 74 3 (12,447)
Loss on cessation of a X1 — IR 24

subsidiarity Al Z 8 (1,043)
Unallocated finance A /MACA UK

cost (2,604)
Loss before taxation BB R (152,303)
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A
(In Receivership) (445 #)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o £ S 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

8. SEGMENT REPORT (Continued) 8. JrEERE ()
Segment revenues and results (Continued) g L € ES S )]
For the year ended 30 June 2018 BE —F— ) UFNRNH=THIEFE
Reportable segment
RREMR
Securities
Food and Money  Healthcare  investment Logistic Property
beverage lending services  and trading services  investment Total
#AHER

R KB W GRS HE WRRE fRek it
HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKS'000
Tr T TEx  Tx T T T

Turnover BEH 8415 15,020 974 104,448 16,790 - 145,847
Segment revenue el 8,415 15,220 974 - 16,790 - 41399
Segment loss kR (19,027) (12,352) (18,930) (11,673) (20,106) (4789)  (146,877)
Corporate income RFRA 515
Share of loss from an ~ JEf—FBE

associate AZE# (740)
Tmpairment loss on 1 [FIHFE A

investment in an ot

associate ba 1i:| i (3,525)

Fair value change on AR EZ A
the contingent TEEH

consideration 9,497
Corporate BETBHA

administration costs (16,273)
Loss before taxation ~ FRE{ iR (157403)
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% ) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S 5 e B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #;F =& —JL4FEANH =1 H ILF %

8. SEGMENT REPORT (Continued) 8. JrEERE ()
Segment assets and liabilities sEEE AR
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets AW 2 G N AR o S A
and liabilities by segment: e
As at 30 June 2019 REF—JUEAA=1H
Reportable segment
ESYE
Securities
Food and Money  Health care  investment Logistic Property
beverage lending services  and trading services  investment Total
AR E R

B Wi RERE HE Wilks $ss it
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'O000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000
T T#n T#n T#xm T#x T T

ASSETS B

Segment assets NEEE 4,174 16,006 62 137,793 2,541 38,529 199,105
Unallocated assets K7L &R 81,877
Total assets BEAE 280,982
LIABILITIES fifk

Segment liabilities M {8 4,49 9 1378 30,500 203 71 39,090
Unallocated liabilities /& {8 115,350
Total liabilities AEEH 154,440
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A
(Tn Receivership) ( #% %% )

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o £ S 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

8. SEGMENT REPORT (Continued) 8. JrEERE ()
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) oy JEE e B R ()
As at 30 June 2018 A \NSEARHA=1H
Reportable segment
Gty
Securities
Food and Money  Healthcare  investment Logistic Property
beverage lending services  and trading services  investment Total
#AHER

R KB W GRS HE WRRE fRek it
HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKS'000
Tr T TEx  Tx T T T

ASSETS K

Segment assets MEERE 6,556 10,785 34,006 177,020 4,088 40,840 273,495

Unallocated assets K7L E 54,066

Total assets BEME 327,561

LIABILITIES fifk

Segment liabilities ~ 7MSIEfE 7406 1 2,929 30 3270 459 14,095

Unallocated liabilties /ML f% 34,790

Total lsbilities & 4% 48,885

For the purpose of monitoring segment performance i B 5o JE 3R B DA KA A FE 2 [

and allocating resources between segments: SrECERIN S

(a) all assets are allocated to operating segments (a) BT A & E Yo T RE g
other than cash and bank balances for JH > MERRAT BUT & 2 B4 JaR
administrative purpose and other assets T EAF » DL R A & (R4
including other receivables, prepayments and At R R ~ TR AT SR S AR
deposits of head office. WER i 2 4% 4 ) BRAb o

(b) all liabilities are allocated to operating (b) BT H B AfE T o BT R g
segments, other than other payables and B A RS ETBURA 2 H
accrued expenses in relation to corporate At JRE AT R I B ME ST BA SCBR AP o

administration costs.
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% ) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S 5 e B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #;F =& —JL4FEANH =1 H ILF %

8. SEGMENT REPORT (Continued) 8. JrEERE ()
Other segment information Hofth 43 5 & B
For the year ended 30 June 2019 BEZZ-NEAH=THILEE
Reportable segment
(ESVE ]
Securities
Food and Money Health care investment  Logistic  Property
beverage  lending  services and trading  services investment Unallocated Total
Wi ER

R RHR M IRBER HU hiERE  #Esk AR AW
HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000
T T Tl Tin TEn T T T

Amounts included in  FTEMFRA]/

the measure of I ZAEE

segment profit/(loss)  EERALEL

or segment assets  #AL
Additions to property, 415 % Rt fi

plant and equipment 2R & 15 - 3 - - - 781 799
Loss on disposal of ~ ti &A%

financial assets at fair 4 AR 2

value through profit %7 2 f5 8

or loss - - - (95,376) - - - (95,376)
Depreciation it (391) - (3,178) - (391) - (343) (4,303)
Tmpairment loss on ~ JEUGRAZ Wi (8

receivables B (2,639) (31) (50) - (228) - (16458)  (19,605)
Finance costs MERA - - - (579) 93) - 60 (3276)
Tnterest income FEIA - - - - - - 1 1
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A
(Tn Receivership) ( #% %% )

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o £ S 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

8. SEGMENT REPORT (Continued) 8. JrEERE ()

Fo At 53 JE R (4

Other segment information (Continued)

For the year ended 30 June 2018 BE L — /FEANH =T HIERE

Reportable segment
REENR
Securities
Food and Money Health care ~investment ~ Logistic ~ Property
beverage  lending  services andtrading  services investment Unallocated Total
R R
RMENR i R HE  WRRE WERE AR it
HKS$'000  HK$’000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS000

T Téx  Tix T T#x  TEx  TEx  Tix

Amounts included in  FHEKTRA /
the measure of (B8 A8
segment profit/(loss)  EEREHEZ

or segment assets 7

Additions to property, 415 % Rt

plant and equipment ~ Z IR E 1,407 - 1430 - - - - 18
Lossondisposal of & ATESH

financial assets at fair 4 ABeZ B

value through B

profit or loss - - - (5,181) - - - (5,181)
Tmpairment loss on i fFT&E Al Y

investment in REZHAER

an associate - - - - - - (3,529) (3,525)
Depreciation i (1.760) S B - @) S (64
Impairment loss ~ MENCEURZ B/

on receivables B# - (81560) - - - - - (81,560)
Share of loss from ~ FE{fi— il E A Al

an associate bd 7| - - - - - - (740) (740)
Finance costs HERA - - - (210) (74) N ) A )]
Interest income HBMA | | | - | - 49 53
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% ) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S 5 e B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #;F =& —JL4FEANH =1 H ILF %

8. SEGMENT REPORT (Continued) 8. JrEERE ()
Other segment information (Continued) HoAth 43 JE & B (4
Geographical information: i1 R
All the Group’s income and results are derived A A B A S EBR TR B R
from operations carried out in Hong Kong. The s RO 2 B o AR L A8
Group’s non-current assets, other than financial FRA B # o 0 JF T (AT
assets at FVTOC]/available-for-sale investments, EHEHMEmEARZ &G
allocated based on geographical location regarding FE /] 4t B R B AN ) RE I A
its operation is detailed below: o
2019 2018
2 F—)\UE
RMB’000 RMB’000
T# T T
The PRC R 38,116 40,537
Hong Kong s 61,525 15,650
99,641 56,187
Information about major customers FRFEERZER
Included in revenue amounting to approximately TE R g S ) A 4R
HK $4,600,000 in 2018 represents sales to the REF 8% 2 I 4 %)4,600,000 %5
Group’s largest customer. JC °
Revenue from customer contributing over 10% of PLTF 2545 B b B Bk B o A
the total sales from trading of food and beverage is M 10% 2 Kt
as follows:
2019 2018
“EoE FE N
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# 5t T#IT
Customer A' HF A - 4,600
! From food and beverage segment ! A B il SR A B
There is no customer contributing over 10% of the A AE FE N M % AL HE i A5 R
total revenue during the year. 10% -
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A
(In Receivership) (445 #)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o £ S 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

9. OTHER INCOME 9. HAttWt A
2019 2018
“FE —FN\EF
HK$’000 HK$°000
T TH T
Bank interest income SRATRLE WA 1 53
Gain on disposal of property, B WE SR
plant and equipment P& 334 3
Fair value gain of financial N PEES RS AR
assets at FVTPL Rl 2 A FE
Wt - 13,834
Fair value change on the SRAMEZ AT EEH)
contingent consideration 5,000 9,497
Distribution from a liquidating — — [H]{l B [ B A v 2
subsidiary 73K 8,000 -
Gain on disposal of investment & &I 4 2 Ui t5
fund 239 -
Sundry income HETEUSCA 17 738
13,591 24,125
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited

(2% ) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f  B 5 e A BB

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #;F =& —JL4FEANH =1 H ILF %

10. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

10. Hfth 8 85 B 5%

2019 2018
R F - UE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T THIT
Impairment loss on investment & — [H] B2 A & (1 % &
in an associate Z WA R = 3,525
Impairment loss on trade and JRE Wi M A B At E i
other receivables FIE 2 WE 1R 19,374 8,880
Impairment loss on JRE W B K 2 W AE e 1R
loan receivables 231 72,680
Impairment loss on MY & 2 W E 1R
intangible assets - 10,094
Impairment loss on goodwill [k PRI i - 13,876
Impairment loss on available- IR S - g A
for-sale investments g = 16,392
Loss on disposal of financial BE AT ELES A
assets at FVTPL W2 4 Rl & 2 2 18 95,376 5,181
Loss on early redemption of it I O I R A SRR 2 M
promissory note iz = 126
Loss on loss of control of a 2 e — ] A B B 2 )
liquidating subsidiary ¥ I HE 2 s 18 12,447 -
Loss on cessation of Ak — [R] B 2 w) 2 e
a subsidiary i} 1,043 -
Written off on disposal of HEWE - KE K&
property, plant 3 AR TR Al
and equipment 9,149 -
Fair value loss on BBV EZ N T EER
investment property 2,017 3,933
Fair value loss/loss on N FEKES ARZ
financial assets at FVTPL EMEEZAFHE
[ Fis Ve i 5,593 3,410
145,230 138,097
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12.

Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A
(Tn Receivership) ( #% %% )

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o £ S 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

FINANCE COSTS 11. Bl A
2019 2018
ZERJUE ZE N\
HK$’000 HKS$°000
T THIT
Interest on bank loan SRITRRZ LS 10 28
Interest on margin financing TR RLE 2 FE 579 210
Interest on obligations under FilE AR B RYE 2 RIS
finance leases 83 50
Interest on promissory note AR SRR 2 FLE 1,325 1,883
Interest on revolving loan IR B 2 FLE 1,279 -
3,276 2,171
INCOME TAX CREDIT 12. P # B K S
Hong Kong Profits Tax provided at the rate of T R A5 Bl B F AL 1 RE SRR i A
16.5% on estimated assessable profit is as follows: M16.5%Z BIRIBMH T -
2019 2018
o —F)\4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T THE T
Current tax Rl T = (247)
Deferred tax PEHERLIA = 2,457
- 2,210
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% #) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S 5 e B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #;F =& —JL4FEANH =1 H ILF %

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued) 12. i3 BE B £ (%)

The reconciliation between the income tax credit JT 15 B 4K S B B B I g 18 e DL A
and the loss before tax multiplied by the Hong A 15 BB R TG O 2 R
Kong Profits Tax rate is as follows: mr -
2019 2018
“FE —EF N\
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt THETT
Loss before taxation R Hi s 4R (152,303) (157,403)
Tax at domestic income tax FEAS Hh iy 15 B %6
rate of 16.5% (2018: 16.5%)  16.5%( . —/\4F :
16.5%) w13 2 BiIH (25,130) (25,971)
Difference in overseas tax rate [ FMEL R 725 146 243
Tax effect of income not k28 3B A 22 BB
taxable b2 (2,136) (2,467)
Tax effect of expenses and AN AT B S K 1R 2
losses that are not deductible BB 5 2 24,242 7,958
Tax effect of tax losses and I e 520 TE s 18 K AT 40
deductible temporary b T R 22 B 2 o 5 2
differences not recognised 2,878 18,027
Income tax credit T 5 LR - (2,210)
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A
(Tn Receivership) ( #% %% )

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o £ S 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

13. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 13. ARG E
The Group’s loss for the year is stated after A [ 2 AR AE B s 4R R AR N 81
charging the followings: HIHR IR -
2019 2018
“EFE FEUE
HK$’000 HK$°000
T# T THIC
Depreciation e 4,303 6,497
Amortisation of intangible Y & 2 HEE
assets — 2,431
Auditors’ remuneration A2 BT 4 660 600
Operating lease expenses FSE gt 5,225 5,091
Staff costs including directors” B T A A ( 1 $§ % H
emoluments P <)
— Salaries, bonus and — ¥~ fEAL G
allowances 7,694 15,100
— Retirement benefits — R RAE R FE AR
scheme contributions 259 812
Total employee benefit i B A F] B S A
expense 7,953 15,912
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited

(2% ) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f  B 5 e A BB

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #;F =& —JL4FEANH =1 H ILF %

14. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’

EMOLUMENTS

14. EHEREEH &

The emoluments of each director were as follows: KHEFZMEWT
For the year ended 30 June 2019 BRE_FZ-NEAA=ZTHILE
B
Salaries, Contribution
allowances to retirement
Directors’ and benefits ~Share-based benefit
fee in kind payments scheme Total
Ba-wmk  Uktk  BKEA
e EWNE  ERME s At
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000 HKS$000 HK$000
T T T T T
Executive Directors UTES
Woo Eddie (Note 1) SRR (35D 125 = S S 125
Au Wai June (Note 2) fife () 03 - - - 63
Suen Yik Lun Philip (Note 3) ~ #Rat B¥ (Jif3+3) 900 - - 18 918
Ng Kwok Wing Michael SIS (W E4)

(Note 4) - - - - -
Independent Non-executive B k7 #S

Directors
Chow Chi Wah Vincent A4 (WF3LS)

(Note 5) 201 - - - 201
Chow Mun Yee (Note 6) B (H5Eo) 201 - - - 201
Ma Ka Ki (Note 7) R H(5E7) 240 - - - 240
Wong Lai Na (Note 8) # B (fEs) 20 B - - 20
Tse Yuen Ming (Note 9) At B (i 3E9) 20 - - - 20

1,770 - - 18 1,788
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A
(Tn Receivership) ( #% %% )

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o £ S 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 14. #J0E B4 (4])
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2018 BE ZF— /) 4FARH =T HIEFE
Salaries, Contribution
allowances to retirement
Directors’  and benefits  Share-based benefit
fee in kind payments scheme Total

ek MmGE B
ERe O EUME  ERZMER s At
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
T T T T T

Executive Directors WiESR

Leung Wai Kuen Cerene R (H3E10)

(Note 10) 450 58 - ) 520
Law Wai Ching (Note 11) BRE (W31 480 58 - 15 553
Lo Sik Yin (Note 12) EEE (k1) 479 - - 15 494
Kwok Ka Chung (Note 13)  #B/E (H3E13) 79 - - 5 84
Wang Dequn (Note 14) TR (W3E14) - - - - -
Ng Kwok Wing Michael SIS (W E4)

(Note 4) - - - - -
Suen Yik Lun Philip (Note 3)  ##i % (H5t3) 25 15 - - 240
Independent Non-executive B T &S

Directors
Wong Lai Na (Note 8) IR (HES) 120 - - - 120
Sit Bun (Note 15) I (T 15) 91 - - - 9]
Tse Yuen Ming (Note 9) A (W3E9) 120 - - - 120
Ma Ka Ki (Note 7) B (k) 64 - - - 64

2,108 131 - 47 2,286
Note 1: Mr. Woo Eddie was appointed as an Executive Director BGEL : SRR B —F — LR H
on 24 May 2019 and re-designated as Chairman on 28 = ‘|‘ VU H AT AT 5
May 2019. W ZE—JLERA =+ /VH # AT
By R
Note 2: Mr. Au Wai June was appointed as an Executive MisE2 : MR e B —F —JLAFEHH
Director on 24 May 2019. Zh Y RETAT AT E S
Note 3: Mr. Suen Yick Lun, Philip was appointed as the BEE3 @ R 2 BESE B =& — \4E A
Executive Director on 30 April 2018. S+ HEZRTAENTES -
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% ) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S 5 e B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #;F =& —JL4FEANH =1 H ILF %

14. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 14. EFREEME (H)

214

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Note 4: Mr. Ng Kwok Wing, Michael was appointed as an Bifpka © R BIAESE R - F— NE=H
Executive Director on 26 March 2018 and resigned on A NHERT AT ES
28 May 2019. R ZFEJUERH A VHBHE -

Note 5: Mr. Chow Chi Wah Vincent was appointed as an BfeEs © B R e RN & — VE A
Independent Non-executive Director on 31 August 2018. S BRI TE R

Note 6: Ms. Chow Mun Yee was appointed as an Independent f5E6 = 86 &L Sl /N IH R = F — VAR A H
Non-executive Director on 31 August 2018. = HERAT A AT

$ﬁ o

Note 7: Mr. Ma Ka Ki was appointed as an Independent Non- Bek7 « BaEatseEn —F— NE=H

executive Director on 26 March 2018. oS B RAT B S IR AT
$ﬁ o

Note 8: Ms. Wong Lai Na resigned as an Independent Non- ks © BB L Lot =& — N4E A
executive Director on 31 August 2018. =t HEHEBL AT E S -

Note 9: Mr. Tse Yuen Ming resigned as an Independent Non- Bk - difam Bl SR i =& — N4EUH
executive Director on 31 August 2018. =t HEHEBL AT E S -

Note 10:Ms. Leung Wai Kuen, Cerene resigned as an Executive Mfsr1o @B &+ - F— N4E A
Director on 28 February 2018. ZHNHBHES T #E S -

Note 11:Dr. Law Wai Ching resigned as Executive Director on Bbnl B E L F — A4 H
30 April 2018 =T HBHERATES

Note 12:Mr. Lo Sik Yin Ching resigned as Executive Director Btak12 - B 2 e A —F— NE A
on 30 April 2018 =T HBHERATES

Note 13:Mr. Kwok Ka Chung resigned as an Executive Director BRI B e AEC BRI ESH A
with effect from 19 September 2017. ZELENA T ILHRAER

Note 14:Mr. Wang Dequn was appointed as an Executive Mkl R AN _F—LH LA
Director on 19 September 2017 and resigned on 25 TIHERTARATES BT
January 2018. W ZE— )\ —H - H BT -

Note 15:Mr. Sit Bun resigned as an Independent Non-Executive BEEELS cBRIESE AR = F — NENA =H

Director on 3 April 2018.

There was no arrangement under which a director
or the executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year.
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A
(In Receivership) (445 #)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o £ S 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 14, FH LR B (4)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
The five highest paid individuals in the Group A% B T 4F N T4 B B N L L AR
during the year included 1 (2018: 1) director(s) P ZF— ) \F: — ) EE > HM
whose emolument is reflected in the analysis BN ESCEINZ BT - g~
presented above. The emoluments of the remaining WA (—ZF— )4 Ug) N2
4 (2018: 4) individuals are set out below: M
2019 2018
R E F U
HK$’000 HK$°000
T THIC
Basic salaries and allowances FEAT A SR 2,307 2,604
Retirement benefit scheme AR A E R
contributions 74 48
2,381 2,652
The emoluments for the 5 highest paid individuals A B ] 044 S5 e B N L i B 2 T
in the Group fell within the following band: AR
2019 2018
—E2UE —F )\
HK$’000 HK$’000
T THTT
Nil - HK$1,000,000 E%1,000,0008 T8 5 5
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the A B [ A AF A I R ) AT ] B S Bl
Group to any of the Directors or the highest paid ¢ e B L ST AT B < > F 2
individuals as an inducement to join or upon A A S B S A A 4 8 IR 2 4
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of JEl A 2 e i A 1
office.
15. DIVIDEND 15. K8
No dividend was paid or proposed during the year BE_E—LFEANH=1HIEFE
ended 30 June 2019 (2018: Nil). No dividend has JE TR 3N 4 R A s R R IR (
been proposed since the end of the reporting — AR - J) o ¥t 0[] 45 R AR R
period (2018: Nil). EREIR IS (R — )\4F « fE) o
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% #) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S 5 e B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #;F =& —JL4FEANH =1 H ILF %

16. LOSS PER SHARE 16. #5518

(a) Basic loss per share (a) FWBEAEE
The calculation of basic loss per share is based g e B A e 1R R R IR A A A
on the loss for the year of approximately HEA N AL AR R A
HKS$152,301,000 (2018: approximately 152,301,000% 7o ( — &% — N
HK$155,179,000) attributable to owners of the A #1155,179,000% 70) K 4R
Company, and weighted average of N BB AT 28 R 2 T 1
1,533,654,788 (2018: 1,533,654,788) ordinary #1,533,654,788 /% ( —~FE— )\
shares in issue during the year. F01,533,654,7881% ) 5 & o

(b) Diluted loss per share (b) 5 I 48 v M 4
The Group had no dilutive potential ordinary AL N E ZF—ILER
shares for both years ended 30 June 2019 and ZE = NEAA=1THIEW
2018. I8 45 JE 7 Jie 2L YRR A S 05 2

Z R o
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A
(In Receivership) (445 #)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o £ S 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. % - W57 K ik

Leasehold Office  Computer Furniture and Motor
improvement  equipment  equipment fixtures vehicles Total
HEWEEE  BAERE  ERRE KRRER gt it
HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000
Tl Tl T T T T

COST: A :
At 1 July 2017 “E-tELA-H 17,887 779 LIn 1,264 4,556 25,638
Additions KE 11,785 m 78 - - 12,635
Additions from acquisition (R iR — Rt 2 I i
of a subsidiary hE - - - 202 - 202
Disposal i3 (2461) - - (29) - (2490)
Exchange difference EER (153) 9) (1) 18 - (143)
At 30 June 2018 and RZF— A&
1 July 2018 AETER
“F-NELA-H 27,058 1,542 1,49 1,455 4,556 35,860
Additions RE - 2 07 3 - 23
Additions from acquisition XY — Rt 2 i
of a subsidiary hE - - - - 567 567
Disposal hE - (274) - - (1,003) (1277)
Disposal of subsidiaries iy i /Al - - - ) - ()
Written off sk (24299) (728) (85) - - (25,112)
Exchange difference B EH (448) (1) (4) (20) - (503)
At 30 June 2019 REZF-NE
AAZTH 2311 511 1,387 1,435 4120 9,764
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% #) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f  B 5 e A BB

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #;F =& —JL4FEANH =1 H ILF %

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT  17. ¥ 2% - W57 K i (%)

(Continued)

Leasehold Office
improvement  equipment

LVES S S VT |
HKS000  HKS'000

Computer Furniture and Motor

equipment fixtures vehicles Total
Al EEREE R it
HKS'000 HKS"000 HKS"000 HK$°000

T T T T T T

ACCUMULATED Zithi
DEPRECIATION:
At 1 July 2017 RZF-tELA-H 12331 429 781 700 1,974 16215
Charge for the year FERiE 4917 0 240 289 78 6,497
Disposal if:4 (2.461) - - (12) - (247)
Exchange difference i ER (21) 2 (1) () - (29)
At 30 June 2018 and RZZ— N\
1 July 2018 ~ZTER

“Z-NELH-H 14766 750 1,020 97) 2,702 20,210
Charge for the year ERiE 3,039 230 158 194 682 4303
Written off s (15,682) (251) (30) - - (15,963)
Disposal ik - (229) - () (1,003) (1,235)
Exchange difference R (59) (6) - 2 - (67)
At 30 June 2019 RZZ-NE

AAZHA 2,064 494 1,148 1,161 2381 7,48
NET CARRYING R
AMOUNT:
At 30 June 2019 REZ-NE

AAZTH 7 17 239 274 1,739 2,516
At 30 June 2018 REZ— N\

AAZA 1292 792 29 483 1,854 15,630

The carrying amount of motor vehicles held under
finance lease at 30 June 2019 was approximately
HK$636,000 (2018: approximately HK$901,000) as
disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A

(Tn Receivership) ( #% %% )

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f B 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 18. & W#E

2019 2018
“F-hE S FN\E
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
T T-# 0

At fair value: YN TE
At 1 July wEtH—H 30,462 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries WA B i J2 2 ) - 34,395
Fair value change N TAE S H) (2,017) (3,933)
At 30 June WNH=1+H 28,445 30,462

The Group’s investment property held to earn
rental income or value appreciation is classified
and accounted for as investment property.

The investment property is located at Beijing with
medium lease term.

During the reporting period, the property, which
was originally a self-owned property of the vendor
as defined in the Company’s announcement dated
23 June 2017, was subsequently sold to the
Company on 23 June 2017. According to the
supplemental agreement dated 18 January 2018,
the balance in the sum of HK$10,200,000 will be
paid by cash within twelve months after
completion. The Company paid HK$2,000,000
within the twelve-month period. During the year,
the Company suspected to be occupied by
unknown party without the authorisation of the
Group.

The fair value of the Group’s investment property
as at 30 June 2019 has been arrived at on the basis
of a valuation carried out by Jones Lang LaSalle
Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited, an
independent qualified professional valuer not
connected to the Group.

A 4 TR A B IR < Wi A B8
Z R B B A BRI B
k-

BeEW AR H A
# o

AN ZYWERLSE T (8
FRANFABAWE - F—LFEN
HZt=HzZAH WBaaEwE
BN FE—LHFEANA T =H B
WETARA - REAWE -F
— /\4E—H+/\HZ Wik ik
#10,200,0007 7T 4 i 58 1% + =
i R DABE 4 AT o AR Rl 2R %
A8 A W1 RS2 A12,000,0009
JC o AR N AN ERBE AL E R
RN R KA E A HE T AL F

BEEIUEAA=TH AL
BEEW 2 A5 A R AT 4
ST AL B AT R ] (BELAS 4R 1
O S0 ) 2 2 BB S 5 B M R (E
fill) AT 2 Al (B 7 E o
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% ) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S 5 e B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #;F =& —JL4FEANH =1 H ILF %

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Continued)  18. #t& W ¥ (#)

220

In estimating the fair value of the investment
property, the highest and best use of the property
is its current use.

The entire amount of fair value measurement of
the Group’s investment property is categorised as

level 3 hierarchy defined in HKFRS 13.

Information about level 3 fair value measurements

G FHRCE Y 2 AN TEIE Y
3 T Mo fE i 2y HE T A
% o

AEEBEY RN EFEZ 2
HS <5 L U A U SV i A
BIRAEZ T =R -

A BASE =8 A PR Z R

Relationship of

Valuation unobservable input(s)
Technique(s) Unobservable input(s) to fair value

AT B i A\ b
A 18 B 1l 0 ] L5 i \ B 2 BR 2

Investment property

LAY ER 24 ¥

The fair value of investment property is
determined using direct comparison approach to
value the property in its respective existing states
and uses on the market basis assuming sale with
immediate vacant possession and by referring to
comparable sales evidence. The valuation
considers the characteristic of the property which
included the location, size, floor level, year of
completion and others factors collectively. Higher
premium for property with better characteristic
will result in a higher fair value measurement.
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A
(Tn Receivership) ( #% %% )

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o £ S 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

19. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 19. R —HBEEAFZRE
2019 2018
“EhE
HK$’000 HK$°000
T TH T
Unlisted shares, at cost FE TRy HE AR 47,041 47,041
Share of post-acquisition loss JREE Aok A M 15 e 18 K%
and other o Ath 4 1T BH 52
comprehensive expenses (1,428) (1,428)
45,613 45,613
Accumulated impairment loss — [Hl & A w2 Bt
for an associate (B 15 (45,613) (45,613)
Total Hast - -
Particulars of the associate of the Group are set out PUR 25 A S B v 8 ) 2w
below:
Name of associate: Baron’s School of Music WalAAsal: NRFEERAR
Limited (“Baron”) Vel ¢k 3:¢ 2 3730
Particular of issued capital: ~ HK$1,000 CEATRATER ©  1,00087T
Place of incorporation: Hong Kong AR FE
Proportion of interest held: ~ 49% Fres g bl - 49%
Principal activities: Provision of professional FEER RUERELEHH

music education
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited

(2% ) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f  B 5 e A BB

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #;F =& —JL4FEANH =1 H ILF %

19. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

(Continued)

Summarised financial information of an associate

The summarised financial information below
represent amounts shown in the associate’s
financial statements in accordance with HKFRSs.

The associate is accounted for using the equity

19. A —HEE AR Z81E (4)

— T 5 20 ) 2 B R
B B R M B4 8
AR5 75 1 R 0 ) B
Je P TR 1 4

W o w1 DARE £ % 72 A B 85

method in these financial statements. FHALE -
2019 2018
“EhAE T N\F
HK$’000 HKS$’000
Tt T
Non-current assets I i 61 303
Current assets T E 8,191 9,649
Non-current liabilities FEmiE A A = -
Current liabilities b UN=K (19,661) (18,579)
2019 2018
ZE2 U =R\
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# 7t T
Revenue W i 5,580 5,641
Loss and total comprehensive A AE I s 48 M A T BH S
expense for the year HAER (2,783) (1,508)
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A
(Tn Receivership) ( #% %% )

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 7 S 5 A M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

19. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 19. R —HBBEARZREH)
(Continued)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial B BT A R L B RS i R
information to the carrying amount of the MR — B E AR ZEZ
investment in an associate recognised in the HRT(E R #HR I T

financial statements is as follows:

2019 2018
R F - UE
HK$’000 HK$°000
T T T
Proportion of the Group’s A A B W N R R AT
ownership investment in an REBCE Y LA
associate 49% 49%
The Group’s share of net A A B A W A R B
liabilities of associate A (5,590) (4,240)
Goodwill [ 47,041 47,041
Pre-acquisition liabilities not i 48 FRT o i T A B 7
accounted for an acquisition Wiy B 2,812 2,812
Accumulated impairment P BFHE
of goodwill (45,613) (45,613)
Unrecognised share of loss of A A BE R e w8 A —
an associate for the year g\ 2 1R 1,350 -
Total wm\%l‘ - -
Cumulative unrecognised share 2 5T 7 fil 52 M il — [H] B
of loss of an associate /NEIPA CEis 1,350 -
As at the date of completion in respect of the A B A A B 49% 1 i 2 5E
acquisition of 49% interest by the Group, Baron BUH B (45 e B AR
has net liabilities of approximately HK$5,741,000 #) 745,741,000 G > 1M A 4 [ 30
which was not accounted for by the Group as to its T o4 L Mo A 2 B BRI R A
proportionate share of net liabilities. Accordingly, I o e AR E R A
the Group recognised goodwill of approximately 47,029,000% 7T 2 2 - AR A
HK$47,029,000 which represents the consideration Wi B A 4% & 4% B2 B 1 49% i A HE
paid for the acquisition of 49% equity interests in fii 1M 2 SCAS AR -

Baron.
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% ) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S 5 e B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #;F =& —JL4FEANH =1 H ILF %

19. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 19. A —HIBEE AR ZREHE)
(Continued)
No impairment loss was recognised for the year H R A — B8 A Rl 2 B E B it
ended 30 June 2019 since the investment in an wE ZF - /FENH=ZTHIEFE
associate was fully impaired during the year ended JERTRWAE » B2 —F—JUERH
30 June 2018 (2018: HK$3,525,000). = B kAR S R e (R 1R
(Z=F— 4 : 3,525,000 7C)
20. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 20. M@ AWl 2 &R
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 30 June 2019 B oE—NEASAZTHZHE
are as follows: NEFEREWT
Place of Nominal value of
incorporation and issued and paid-up Percentage of equity attributable
Name operations share to the Company Principal activities
A MR RE S SR RA R RATEAGHER 2 A2 1 FEEH
2019 2018
“EhE “F- N\

Direct Indirect  Direct Indirect

HE W& A% FK

Power Elite Holdings British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary USS1 100% - 100% - Investment holding
Limited HREATE IR POER
Upfront Success Limited ~ British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary USS1 - 100% - 100% Investment holding
REE LR XL Btk
True Wonder Investments ~ British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary USS1 - 100% - 100% Investment holding
Limited HREATE IR POER
SuperB Luck Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary USS1 - 100% - 100% Investment holding
REE LR XL Btk
Grand Faith Finance Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - - - 100% Money lending
Limited i IR R iR
oA RAH
Shine Grand Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1 - 100% - 100% Food and beverage
BEAR AT il bomgilie Rl R
Absolute Asia Consultancy  Vanuatu Ordinary USS1 - - - 100% Investment holding
Inc.* [l 1E LR REHR
* The company has been struck off during the year. * BN LA AR BE 8
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A
(Tn Receivership) ( #% %% )

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o £ S 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

20. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 20. P 2 ) Z R4

(Continued)

Place of Nominal value of

incorporation and issued and paid-up Percentage of equity attributable
Name operations share to the Company Principal activities
hli bR RE S TR RA R A ARG 2 7 bt FEREH

2019 2018
“E0E “E-

Direct Indirect  Direct Indirect

HE W& A% K

Yu Man Holdings Limited ~ British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary USS1 - 100% - 100% Investment holding
REE LR XL Btk
Yu Man International Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1 - 100% - 100% Food and beverage
Food Limited Eit HE TR Rhn Kt
BWaNARAH
Colour Cosmo Holdings ~ British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary USS1 - 100% - 100% Investment holding
Limited HEEATE I EER BOER
Solar Dragon Global British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary USS1 - 100% - 100% Investment holding
Limited HEEATE IR BOER
Ace Champion Global British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary USS1 - 100% - 100% Investment holding
Limited HEEATE I EER BOER
Perfect Fit Holdings British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary USS1 - 100% - 100% Investment holding
Limited HEEATE I EER BOER
Sharp Elegant Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100% - 100% Health care
il bomgilie fRfg
Goldee Holdings Limited ~ British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary USS1 - 5% - 51% Investment holding
REE LR IETEEM Btk
Super Group Development  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - 51% - 51% Inactive
Limited i 10,0003 T &K BiEEs
HBRERARLA
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% ) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S 5 e B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #;F =& —JL4FEANH =1 H ILF %

20. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 20. B AR Z2 & RH(4])

(Continued)
Place of Nominal value of
incorporation and issued and paid-up Percentage of equity attributable
Name operations share to the Company Principal activities
hl bR B R RAUE R AR AR 2 v FEEH
2019 2018
“E0E “F-NE
Direct Indirect  Direct Indirect
HE R AR FE
Strategic Vision Holdings ~ British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary USS1 - 100% - 100% Investment holding
Limited HEEATE I EER BOER
Top Profit Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100% - 100% Investment holding
TG IR Eil bomgilie Btk
Ease Era Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary US$100 - 100% - 100% Investment holding
HEEATE 1003 TE K BOER
Hong Kong Street Food ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100% - 100% Investment holding
Entrepreneurship ik b3 il REHm
Foundation Limited
(B UNGIE 2 T
BRAHA
Fortune Link Global British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary USS1 - 100% - 100% Investment holding
Limited HEEATE IR POER
ACC Logistic Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - 100% - 100% Logistic services
REEWRARLA K 10,0008 7E E e
HE B EHE (BY))  People’s Republic of — Ordinary - 100% - 100% Property investment
ARAH China RMBS,500,000
PEARLAE  ARHSS500,000% ESIAS
iyl
BRI (L) AR People’s Republic of  Registered capital - - - 100% Health care
NI China (2018: RMBLO00.000) fRi
i \REAE g
(CE-N\E:
EH1,0000007C)
* The company has been deregistered on 4 January 2019. * WA R ZFE—JUE— A H #GE
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A
(Tn Receivership) ( #% %% )

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o £ S 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

20. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 20. B AR Z2 & RH(4])

(Continued)
Place of Nominal value of
incorporation and issued and paid-up Percentage of equity attributable
Name operations share to the Company Principal activities
hl bR B R RAUE R AR AR 2 v FEEH
2019 2018
“E0E “F-NE
Direct Indirect  Direct Indirect
HE R AR FE
Volk Favor Food Group ~ British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary USS1 - 100% - 100% Investment holding
Limited HEEATE I EER BOER
Volk Favor Food Company Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1 - 100% - 100% Investment holding
Limited i HE TRk BOER
REARARAT
RERHEE)AMAF  People’s Republic of  Registered capital - 100% ~100% Investment holding
China RMB27,505,000
PEARLAER  ARH27,505,000% BOER
g
VA ERHESHERAT  People’s Republic of  Registered capital - 100% ~100% Food and beverage
China RMB2,100,000
PEARSAAME  ARM2,1000007T Rhn K hh
g
Ample Talent Holdings ~ British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary USS1 - 100% - 100% Investment holding
Limited HEEATE I EER BOER
Key Success Enterprise ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1 - 100% - 100% Investment holding
Limited i HE TR BOER
B AR
R REBEAARAT  People’s Republic of  Registered capital - 100% ~100% Property investment
China RMB3,000,000
PEARLAE  ARHS,000,000% ESIAS
g

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 4£#}t

227




B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% ) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S 5 e B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #;F =& —JL4FEANH =1 H ILF %

20. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 20. B AR Z2 & RH(4])

(Continued)
Place of Nominal value of
incorporation and issued and paid-up Percentage of equity attributable
Name operations share to the Company Principal activities
4t REM B R A T RALR R AR ARG 2 it FEREH
2019 2018
“E0E “F-NE
Direct Indirect  Direct Indirect
HE W& ER R
Long Peace Group Limited  British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary HS$50,000 100% - - - Investment holding
ERELHS 50,000% ¢ Kt BOER
Dragonite Resources British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary US$15,000 - 100% - - Money lending
Limited
EREAHE 15,000 T A i
Advanced Charm Limited  British Virgin Islands  Ordinary US$30,000 - 100% - - Investment holding
ERE LS 50,0008 T & BUERM
Sure Concept Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1 - 100% - - Inactive
ik hiomiril ELS £
Infinite Border Limited  British Virgin Islands  Ordinary US$10,001 - 100% - ~ Investment holding
SRR 10,001 T B K BER
Mega Fun British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary USS1 - 100% - - Inactive
[nvestments Limited B
REARE IR EE R £
Glorious Gold British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary USS1 - 100% - - Investment holding
Holdings Limited B X
iRl 1E R Rk
Neo Great British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary USS1 - 100% - - Inactive
Holdings Limited B
B AT 1E LA ELS £
Nice Grow Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1 - 100% - - Inactive
FEARAT il b gl B
RYIREERAMRAR  People’s Republic  Registered capital = = - 100% Inactive
of China RMB1,000,000
FEARIHNE  ARA1,000,0007 L e
ik EA
IR (5 B el People’s Republic ~ Registered capital - 100% - - Investment holding
HRAHA of China RMB100,000
FEARAHE  ARE1000007 BERR
ik MEA
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AR 2
()

Celebrate International Holdings Limited % it 13 B ( 4% Jit )
(In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 7 S 5 A M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

21. $8 2 PR A8 3L Aib 2 i Wi 4 A\ R
ZEEE(CE )\

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTOCI (2018:
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE

INVESTMENTS) it 48 E)
- 2019 2018
U F—)\UF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# T# T
Unlisted equity investments at ;lFJ:ﬁfﬂiTg&ﬁ N
fair value (2018: at cost) (B (= —/\4E A
Co-Lead (Note a) Co-Lead (W.ﬁia) 50,000 50,000
Less: fair value change CATAHEEE)
(2018: impairment) gii—/\i AR (7,475) (5,183)
42,525 44817
Platform Asset (Note b) Platform Asset (Fif7b) - 20,000
Less: Impairment W - (16,185)
- 3,815
Simagi (Note c) Sima% (FffEc) 1,500 -
Era Bright (Note d) JRME (B 5Ed) 1,500 —
45,525 48,632

Notes:

(2)

On 31 July 2015, the Group completed the subscription of 155
ordinary shares of Co-Lead Holdings Limited (“Co-Lead”), at
a consideration of HK$50 million. The consideration was
satisfied by cash payment of HK$25 million and the issuance
of a 7.5% per annum promissory note in the principal amount
of HK$25 million by the Company. As at 30 June 2018, the
investment in Co-Lead was classified as available-for-sale
investment and measured at cost less impairment because the
range of fair value estimates is so significant that the Directors
are of the opinion that their fair value cannot be measured
reliably. After adoption of HKFRS 9, the investment in Co-
Lead was classified as financial assets at FVTOCI.

Co-Lead is a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands and is engaged in investment holding.

During the year ended 30 June 2018, the Group recognised
an impairment loss of HK$5,183,000 related to investment
in Co-Lead classified as available-for-sale financial assets
held as at 30 June 2018.

During the year ended 30 June 2019, the Group recognised a
fair value loss of approximately HK$2,292,000 in other
comprehensive income related to investment in Co-Lead
classified as financial assets at FVTOCI held as at 30 June
2019.

Wt
(a)

B

W E—RAELA =B AREED
1t 1550,000,000%5 7T 5% /& 52 HCo-Lead
Holdings Limited([ Co-Lead]) 155/
A o R E B2 D) B 4225,000,000% 7T
i b AR T AT 7R 42 825,000,000 70
AR 2RT.5% 2 HRAT SRR I AT < it
T E— )NFENH=FH > jRCo-Leadl)
BB AT RO A 2
WAEFT R > JEL 2 (B A 5 2 i
AR R - T SRR A ik v SE b g R
ST o BRAN A 1 B ot Y HI 2R 99
1% 5 xCo-Lead £ & 40 35 £y 1 A F-H
HEHA A S AR SRV o

Co-Lead % — [H] 7 U5 Ji )i 2 BF & 51 1
FRALZ ST RSB

WEE - HENA ST IREE
A 45 8 5 R Co-Lead M 8 & (i =&
—AENA Z+ AR Tk 4
il & ) e R (E B 155,183,000
o

BWEF—JEANH =T H IR
7R 45 H 5 X Co-Lead I & (it — %
— VIS A =1 H B B e A THE A
Al 2 i 5 A MR 2 & RiE ) i
il 2> TH YR 4R WE SR A P E R A
2,292,000%5 JC °
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% ) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 7 S 5 A M R

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % —~F—JLFNH =1 H ILFZ

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTOCI (2018:
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE

INVESTMENTS) (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(®)

In June 2017, the Group entered into a subscription
agreement with Platform Asset Management (Cayman
Islands) Limited (“Platform Asset”), to subscribe for the
interest with a committed capital contribution of HK$20
million in Pam Real Estate Opportunities Fund LP (the
“Fund”).

The Fund seeks to raise an aggregate commitment from
all the limited partners an aggregate capital commitment
up to US$80 million on 31 December 2017. The
investment objective and scope of the Fund is to generate
attractive streams of income and achieve long-term
capital appreciation. The Fund will have a term of 5 years
after all funds being collected, which may be extended
for up to 2 years after 5 years. For details, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 27 June 2017.

As at 30 June 2018, the investment in Platform Asset was
classified as available-for-sale investment and measured
at cost less impairment because the range of fair value
estimates is so significant that the Directors were of the
opinion that their fair value cannot be measured reliably.
After adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 July 2018, the
investment in Platform Asset is classified as financial
assets at FVTOCIL.

During the year ended 30 June 2018, the Group, with
reference to the financial information provided by the
administrator of the Fund, recognised an impairment loss
of HK$16,185,000 related to investment in Platform Asset
classified as available-for-sale financial assets held as at
30 June 2018.

During the year ended 30 June 2019, the Group had
redeemed the investment in Platform Asset and
recognised a gain on disposal of approximately
HK$239,000 in profit or loss.
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21. $8 2 PR A8 3L Aib 2 i Wi 4 A\ R
ZEEE(ZF )\
it i 3 ) (4)

(b)

TN AEE B Platform
Asset Management (Cayman Islands)
Limited ([Platform Asset|) %] 7 58
W &% DL #% M APam Real Estate
Opportunities Fund LP ([ %4 |) 2
gt B 2 IR £520,000,0007
T o

HeEmRp - Z—LtHE T+ A=+
H 1) i A7 47 BR A 6 N B4 48 ARG
4 % f: 280,000,0003 T » H 4 2 &
R R R S B B S| il A
AR SR B R RGN - G
% e B T AT LR B LA
AERFRIEERZ T - h 2
BIANFHWME & — LHEXH
B o Sl E /=

W NEXRHT =1 H R
Platform Asset/) % & 7 %8 £ ol ik
A1 5 Sl e A B 2% TRl (R R S
L A P (B w22 o [ o e - TG
R IS R SR B A (E -
AT N — H R i B 5
A HERIEE SRR - JAPlatform Asset
PR A3E 03 R 5 e Y A8 T At 4 T ik
i AR Z Al E

WE T NNFRNHA=THIEEE
AR ] 2 % 3 4 R HE R Y B S
Bl w it Platform AssetHI % & (A —
F— EANH =+ B8 At &
WA E ) Wl E R B 4H 16,185,000
Wt .

BE T JUEANA =+ H R4
A 4 [ 1 [ R Platform Assetfl) %
o A 8 £R WE RR R B U %5 £9239,000
Wt .




Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A

(Tn Receivership) ( #% %% )

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f B 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTOCI (2018:
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE

INVESTMENTS) (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

()

(d)

(e)

On 25 June 2019, the Group completed the subscription
of 300,000 ordinary shares of Simagi Finance Company
Limited (“Simagi”) represented 0.30% of the entire
issued capital of Simagi, at a consideration of HKS$1.5
million in cash. As at 30 June 2019, the investment in
Simagi was classified as financial assets at FVTOCI.
Simagi is a company incorporated in Hong Kong and is
engaged in provision of money lending services. Mr. Suen
Yick Lun, Philip is an Executive Director of the Company
and a director of Simagi.

On 26 June 2019, the Group completed the subscription
of 3,000 ordinary shares of Era Bright Limited (“Era
Bright”) represented 23.08% of the entire issued capital
of Era Bright, at a consideration of HK$1.5 million in
cash. As at 30 June 2019, the investment in Era Bright
was classified as financial assets at FVTOCI. Era Bright
is a company incorporated in Hong Kong and is engaged

in provision of money lending services.

The fair value of the Group’s financial assets at FVTOCI
as at 30 June 2019 has been arrived at on the basis of
valuation carried out by independent qualified
professional valuers not connected to the Group.

21. $% 2 PR A8 3L Aih 2 i WA 4 A\ IR
ZEMEE(ZE )\
it i B 3 ) (A1)

WERE - (48

(©)

(d)

(e

AT E—JUEARA TR E AR
5t W 78 WSimagi Finance Company
Limited ([ Simagil) 300,000/ & 45 /i
({hiSimagi & FB L 81T IR A170.30%) »
18 A5 7y Bl 4:1,500,000%5 J6° A &
—JUHENH =1 H > A Simagiy & &
G T F AT 8 A A T i 2R AR
Z A VB EE o Simagi 2 1A A W G M AL
SLZON T A SR SRR o R A
B 56 A By AR A W AT # K Simagi
Ho

ATEJUENA N H s AEE
SE BRI R AT BR A A (TR ) 3,000
T 2% 3 e (A = 4 L B AT AR Y
23.08%) - {15 74 Bl 42 1,500,000%5 ¢
R UEANA =T H s RRREW
PB4 JE Iy He N VB A8 At 2 T i 22
AR 2 & AT o JRME 2 s Vs S A
FRAL 2 A A > A AR A RS o

A A [ 4 P B A A TAT A 4 A IR
ZEMEER E—IJUEAA =+
B 2 T-(E > T B AR S T 7 408 ] ek
R H8 S M SRS A R AT A A (L
i AE ©

Relationship of
Fair value  Valuation Significant unobservable
Financial assets 2019 2018 hierarchy technique(s) unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
WA Al B\ B
SREE R CFE AVHER B A M BT Z 7
HKS$’000  HKS$’000
Tt T
Financial asset at 45,525 — Level 3 Adjusted net asset  Discount rate for lack of ~ The higher the rate,
FVTOCI value method marketability the lower the value
AR EA ] MIREEEFEE Z AR R HESE
XTI ETIN
ZEMEE

Net asset The higher the net asset
value, the higher the
value

EEEH G R (A MR R

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 4£#

231




232

B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited

(2% ) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S 5 e B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #;F =& —JL4FEANH =1 H ILF %

22. DEPOSIT PAID 22. Bft#&&
2019 2018
R E F
HK$’000 HK$°000
T# 5t TH#IT
Acquisition of a property W — T 2E (B 5Ea)

(note a) 9,671 10,075
Investment deposit (note b) BG4 (Fkb) 40,740 -
Deposit for acquisition of g2y e SN & ]

property, plant and equipment &4 5,000 -
At 30 June WARA=+H 55,411 10,075
Notes: R5E -

(a) In September 2016, the Group entered into an agreement (a) WFE—NEILH  AEERE HET

(®)

with vendor for the acquisition of a property located in
Hainan, the PRC.

The consideration is RMBS§,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$9,860,000) and will be satisfied by the
Group as to: (i) RMB100,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$116,000) by cash upon signing the
agreement; and (ii) RMB&,400,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$9,744,000) by cash on or before 31
October 2016. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 14 September 2016.

As at 30 June 2019, the acquisition was not completed as
the Company is currently waiting the title certificate to be
issued by the relevant PRC authorities.

In January 2019, the Group entered into an agreement with
the vendor for the acquisition of the entire issued share
capital of Hope Capital Limited. As at 30 June 2019, a
deposit of HK$10,000,000 has been paid to the vendor and
another deposit HK$30,740,000, which is the remaining
balance of the consideration, had been put into an escrow
account of a solicitor. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 28 January 2019.

The agreement for the acquisition was terminated in
August 2019. For details please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 23 August 2019.

The deposit of HK$40,740,000 was refunded to the
Group on 22 August 2019.
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(b)

7 Wk > AR — L I Y
/E S

A8 B AR H8,500,0007T (H0 i 4
9,860,000 7 ) S 1§ £ A 42 [ i T 4k
FAZAT - HARH100,00070 (F
R A1116,000%5 70 ) 174 5551 5% Ioh ke IRF A
B4 A s (i) A R 8,400,000 70
(FH B A 419,744,000 7T ) it — % —
NAETH = —H ez A LB 4
ffed B sMARNR A E =%
—ANESLATIAZ A -

BWEZEZ-IEAA =10 EF
T R SE I TR A AR W IE AR AF 1
AR e 2 0 1 A T A M

AR — A > A SR E B 5
W7 B A IR R 2B 81T
JEATT 3L — O 3k o it —F— JUAER
A=1+H>4##410,000,000% 5 & 3
778 7 > 5 AN AE 4230,740,00035
JE (A UERREE) EAEA BRI FEE IR
FowBamaMALNR A A %
—JUE—A =+ AN E -

WIS B TR = — JLAE N 6k o 5
TS AN AR =T —JUEN
AZtT=AMA% -

1% 4:40,740,000% 76 £ 7 —F — JLAE
ANH T HIBEFAREM -




Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A

(In Receivership) (445 #)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

f B 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

23. L& E

Customer
relationship Brand name Total
% P& i At
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
Ti#x T T
Cost A
At 1 July 2017 N E L
tH—H 8,500 - 8,500
Acquisition of a subsidiary it — [H] & 2>
(note a) ] (Fff&Ea) 1,492 3,100 4,592
At 30 June 2018 and A= — /U
30 June 2019 AA=Z1THRE
—ENE
AH=1TH 9,992 3,100 13,092
Accumulated g 3]
Amortisation
At 1 July 2017 it F LA
tH—H 567 - 567
Charge for the year AR 2,215 216 2,431
Impairment loss recognised T\ fE s Il {5 18
(note b) (Bt &Eb) 7,210 2,884 10,094
At 30 June 2018 and = — 4
30 June 2019 ANH=THK
—FIUE
ANH=1H 9,992 3,100 13,092
Net Carrying Amount: MR A
At 30 June 2018 and A =% — 4
30 June 2019 ARA=Z1THRE
—F-NEF
AH=1TH - - -
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% #) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S 5 e B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #;F =& —JL4FEANH =1 H ILF %

23. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(2)

(®)

Intangible assets of approximately HK$1,492,000
represent customer relationship and brand name of
approximately HK$3,100,000 were arising from the
acquisition of Volk Favor Group Holding Limited (“Volk
Favor”) during the year ended 30 June 2018.

The fair values of the customer relationship and the brand
name were determined by an independent professional
firm of valuers using the historical customer list with
consideration of the attrition rate and growth rate. The
customer relationship and the brand name are measured at
cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.

As at 30 June 2018, the Directors performed the
impairment assessment on intangible assets as detailed
below:

(i)  During the year ended 30 June 2018, ACC Logistics
Limited (“ACC”) has temporary suspended its
operation due to its storage had been forced to close
down by the landlord. Accordingly the customers of
the ACC had been lost and therefore, impairment loss
of HK$6,223,000 was charged to profit or loss.

(ii) During the year ended 30 June 2018, Volk Favor has
ceased its operation due to unfavourable economic
condition in the PRC. Accordingly, impairment loss
of HK$977,000 and HK$2,884,000 has been
provided for customer relationship and brand name
respectively for the year ended 30 June 2018.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 4 #

23. W& E(H)

BEEE - (4

(a)

(b)

BEZE— \FNH =T HIEEE
#11,492,0009 T 2 L EE IR K F
B4R M #13,100,000% 7C 2 i il 2
i Volk Favor Food Group Limited
([ Volk Favor]) °

5 B 2 VAL B
el L7 67 B £ 46 0% 1
B R A 5 © 5 F BAR 1
A8 S A 2 O 2
i -

BZF—NERA =+ H o SRR
T HE AT WAE AT A > RE R 08
T

(i) #WEZZ—/)FEARNA=ZTHI
AERE S R B R T B PR R
W ZE > A A WA BR A A
(TMeEE ) BB -
W S % 5 AR > WO (E
86,233,0003 0T H $E 45 H1IBR o

(i) #WE-F—/4EXH=THIE
AERE 5 R HP B AR IR DA F
Volk Favor & Ik 75 %H o [H It »
HEZEZ— )FEARNA=ZTHIE
FRECE P BAR K 4l
w12 8 (E HE $2977,0009 T M
2,884,000 T °




Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A
(In Receivership) (445 #)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o £ S 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

24. GOODWILL 24. W
2019 2018
“EE F N
HK$’000 HK$°000
T# T T
Cost AR
At 1 July wtH—H = 11,183
Acquisition of a subsidiary WS g — D o J 2 )
(note a) (Fff5Ea) - 2,693
Impairment loss recognised O AR el (B e 12 = (13,876)
At 30 June WAH=1H — -
Notes: BEGE
(a) During the year ended 30 June 2018, goodwill of (a) #HWE_F—N\FANH=ZTHIEFE,
approximately HK$2,693,000 was related to the #12,693,000%5 JT 2 P 2 L i Volk
acquisition of Volk Favor, and was allocated to the food Favorfi B » H O 70 i £ & il S AR
and beverage segment. Figs K

(b) Due to (i) the operation of ACC had been forced to suspend; (b)  E R0 789 B 0 T (50 5 (i)
and (ii) the operation of Volk Favor had been ceased, aggregate Volk Favor#% IE % #H > Bk {H fis 48 St
impairment loss of HK$13,876,000 was charged to profit or 13,876,000 7C L A il 2 —F — )\ 4F
loss during the year ended 30 June 2018. AHAZE+HIFEER A B -
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited

(2% ) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f  B 5 e A BB

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #;F =& —JL4FEANH =1 H ILF %

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

25. WE WO sk B 3L A B Wik JE

2019 2018
B e FUE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T TH T
Trade receivables JEE W 3K 6,743 8,571
Accumulated impairment loss  FEMCHRF 2 R FHBE
on trade receivables 15 (6,743) (3,826)
- 4,745
Other receivables, HC thy R i K TR A A K
prepayments and deposits T Je i s (Mt ika)
(Note a) 29,789 39,452
Accumulated impairment loss  FHAth fiE Yt 51 1H 2 2 5
on other receivables B 518 (16,457) (7,963)
13,332 36,234

Note:

As of 30 June 2018, included in other receivables was
approximately HK$16,181,000 due from Cosmic Lane
(“Cosmic Lane”) Limited, being the vendor for the
acquisition of Volk Favor.

As detailed in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements, the consideration for the acquisition of Volk
Favor was HK$20,000,000 which had been satisfied by
HK$1,000,000 in cash and issuance of promissory note
with principle amount of HK$19,000,000, subject to the
profit guarantee (“Volk Favor PN”).

During the year ended 30 June 2018, the Group has
settled approximately HK$15,181,000 of Volk Favor PN
as to HK$4,500,000 in cash and HK$10,681,000 by way
of assignment of loan receivables (“Settlements”).
However, under the circumstance that Volk Favor failed
to meet the profit guarantee, Volk Favor PN has been
cancelled. Accordingly, the cash consideration of
HK$1,000,000 together the Settlements of
HK$15,181,000 shall be refund to the Group.

During the year ended 30 June 2019, the management was
in the view that Cosmic Lane was not able to repay the
Settlement. Therefore, an impairment loss of
approximately HK$16,181,000 had been provided.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 4 #

(a) MIZE—/MEANHAZTH > HAE
B AL 35 E Ut Cosmic Lane Limited
(T Cosmic Lane])( R A7 B Uk B Volk
FavorZ B J5) Z K IH#116,181,000%
jno

WA B ES R M SR 38 B sl » Wit
Volk FavorZ 820,000,000 7t J5
Lh BL421,000,000%5 76 K 75 #8 9517 A
43 £519,000,00095 7T 2 7R AT 2245 4%
B MEZFE ST i AR RS ([ Volk Favor
AR -

BEE - JHENAZTHILEE
AREMEE 455 Volk FavorR A 224 2
#115,181,000% 7T > H #14,500,000%5
IG5 10,681,000 7043 Fll 375 38 B 4x I
e R i B RO A S (T3 ) - A
1M > B R Volk Favork fig 2 S0k A £
75> it Volk Favor/&R T ZZ458 O 5F 4
IR > 37 410 4E 1,000,0007 03 [ 4%
15,181,000 JCMEIR 42 T A S -

BWEZFE—JEANH =T H IR
EHE R E > Cosmic LanefE b 1815
BEOE o RIUL > B R I (L e FR A 4
16,181,000 7T ©




Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A

(Tn Receivership) ( #% %% )

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f B 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

The Directors consider that the fair values of trade
receivables are not materially different from their
amounts because these amounts have short
maturity period on their inception. The Group’s
food and beverage trading business and health care
business are mainly on credit basis with a credit
term of 90 days. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables.
Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by the
Directors. The aging analysis of trade receivables,
based on the invoice date at the end of each
reporting period, which approximates the
respective revenue recognition dates, is as follows:

25. W WSO sk B Lt R i sk 2 (4)

R B IR 3K 2 N T (i B
SREN MR KSR RN A% 4
FH H BRI R L T S 0] A E ) o AR
S8 2 B KRR 5 SR
f 267 2 B DAME S 1T > 1
AR B0 H o A 4 [ B M i
TR 8] 2 JRE e 3K IE o o 2 B
1 A8 A o A 5 R A T 4 AR
JRRE O B R 2 BEL A B i 25 e
PR H M) Z BRI AT IR

2019 2018

—“F2hEE F U

HK$’000 HK$’000

T THIT

0 to 90 days 0%£90H - 1,966
Over 90 days 90 H — 2,779
- 4,745

As at 30 June 2019, there are no trade receivables
(2018: approximately HK$2,779,000) which were
past due but not impaired. These relate to a
number of independent customers for whom there
is no recent history of default. The aging analysis
of these trade receivables is as follows:

R OE—LEANAZ=ZH
(=F— )\ £92,779,000%5 70 )
B i B R 25 2 7 A (E S (1 o L
EMRA T BN 2 2300 3 B 4
HEkZBALEF o IWERIURR Z
WRES BT T

2019 2018
—F-hE O EFNAE
HK$’000 HK$ 000

Tt T e

w iz =R A
a = N8 A

Up to 3 months past due

3 to 6 months past due

6 months to 1 year past due
Over 1 year past due

TR A — A

ENEH =4

- 1,477
- 519
- 190
- 593

= 2,779
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% ) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 7 S 5 A M R

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % —~F—JLFNH =1 H ILFZ

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25, W e I sk B L b JE W sk A ()

(Continued)

JE W R R S AR A S B T

Movement in the provision for bad and doubtful
debts on trade receivables are as follows:

238

2019 2018

B ZF—\UF

HK$’000 HK$°000

Tt THTT

Balance at beginning of year ENIA B 3,826 2,833

Provision for the year AF N A 2,917 993
Reversal of impairment loss on  #3 [B] BE ISR 3K 2 I (EL

trade receivables 18 - -

Balance at end of year R AL R 6,743 3,826

Included in the impairment loss on trade receivables are
individual impaired trade receivables with an aggregate
balance of approximately HK$6,743,000 (2018:
HK$3,826,000) in relation to the trading of food and
beverage, health care services and logistics services, the
recoverability of which are in doubt. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances.

Movement in the provision for bad and doubtful

JRE WA W R 2 M e 1R L 6 A R A
% 416,743,0009 JC (T — J\4E ¢
3,826,000% 7t ) A B £ i S BR G B
G~ AR A RS X ) T IR 2 AR Al 2
Jok R A 3 > L B A5 A [ A7 G o
A% B2 6] NI 0 R U A A R R A AT

PR A

JFC A 8 A T 2 R R A A 5 )

debts on other receivables are as follows: mr
2019 2018
“E R FE - UE
HK$’000 HK$°000
T# T#IT
Balance at beginning of year ENIR R 7,963 309
Provision for the year GRNE 21 16,457 7,654
Written off fi g (7,963) -
Balance at end of year EACEE R 16,457 7,963

Included in the impairment loss on other receivables are
individual impaired other receivables with an aggregate
balance of approximately HK$16,457,000 (2018:
HK$7,963,000).
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FF 45 B £16,457,0008 JT( &
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A
(In Receivership) (445 #)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o £ S 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

26. LOAN RECEIVABLES 26. WE W B %
The Group’s loan receivables arose from the A B2 [ 2 B SRR B TR S

money lending business.

Loan receivables are unsecured, bearing interest JRE B K A T HK A R R A B AR
rate at 10% per annum, and with credit periods, 10J8 > 5 &1 79 i 5T &9 07 3L [/ 1)
mutually agreed between the contracting parties. JE o L EF ARG RRE - Bl
Each customer has a credit limit. Overdue balances Ji& 5 B A w7 f R 2 A H 45 B
are reviewed regularly and handled closely by
management.
2019 2018
—“FE —EF—NA\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T
Loan receivables JREWS B K
— Non-current portion — FE TR B EB A 13,500 703
— Current portion — S By = 81,862
13,500 82,565
Accumulated impairment loss JE G B 3k 2 B R A
on loan receivables #H - (82,565)
Allowance for expected credit TG Sl R 15
loss (231) -
13,269 -
The loan receivables at the end of the reporting RS AR > BB EE A
period are analysed by the remaining period to FHZ BT T
contractual maturity date as follows:
2019 2018
“EhE F
HK$’000 HK$°000
T THETT
Repayable B R IIR
0 to 90 days 0290H = -
91 to 180 days 91%F180H - -
181 to 365 days 181%365H — -
Over 1 year A 14 13,500 -
13,500 -
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% ) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 7 S 5 A M R

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % —~F—JLFNH =1 H ILFZ

26. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued) 26. MEWCE K ()

240

Movement in provision for loan receivables is as FEISC B KBS B T
follows:
2019 2018
2 UE CF N\
HK$’000 HK$°000
T# T T
Balances at beginning of year EI &S R 82,565 9,885
Impairment loss on loan JRE WS B ER Z TR (s 4R
receivables - 72,680
Allowance for expected credit TG B 1R
loss 231 -
Written off due to loss of PR 2 2k — [H] B JBg 2 w1 Y
control of a liquidating 2 TR T
subsidiary (82,565) -
Balance at the end of year SERAEER 231 82,565

Due to the circumstance that Grand Faith Finance
Limited (“Grand Faith”), being a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Group engaged in the money
lending operation, was under a voluntary
liquidation process, the recoverability of the
related loan receivables with carrying value of
HK$82,565,000 was in doubt. Accordingly, an
impairment loss of loan receivables with the same
amounts have been charged to profit or loss for the
year ended 30 June 2018. On 24 July 2018, Grand
Faith was placed into creditor’s voluntary
liquidation, hence the previously provided
impairment loss of approximately HK$82,565,000
was written off.

The expected credit loss of approximately
HK$231,000 as at 30 June 2019 are estimated by
an independent external valuer using general
approach. The loss allowance is adjusted to reflect
the current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions as appropriate. Except for the
above impaired balances, none of the loan
receivables was either past due or impaired and
had no history of default.
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HNESG B ARAR ([FHH ]
Ly AR L EARE FEET 2 2 G
J& N F)) IE & B T B SR
T {E 482,565,000k 7T 2 AH B fE Uk
B2 AT i B M A7 A BE R o DRI
4 BHAH [R] 2 B i B 3k 2 I8 (A i 15
O zE - — /EXNA=TH
1EAEBE B IR F0BR o i = F— 4
CHZFWUH  FEHMEREA AR
TH AR > DR U R A O I
1 4782,565,000% o 84

W E—JLFENH =T HWEY
SRR £231,000 0 )5 — 44
T8 37 A0 BEAk (BRI 07 R E R — BTk
M5 - B R E M C 9% > LUk
HH R DL B 3 SR A £ 9 SR UL ) FE
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A
(Tn Receivership) ( #% %% )

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o £ S 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

27. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 27. MAPFHBHEBARZ EME

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 23
2019 2018
R E T
HK$’000 HK$°000
T# T T TT
Listed equity securities b RATE SR 112,633 164,476
Unlisted convertible bond I bR R
(note a) (FffiEa) 37,259 37,259
Less: fair value change on W TR RS 2 AF
convertible bond B3 H) (37,259) (37,259)
Market value of listed TR I R R R AR S
securities and convertible ZTifH
bond 112,633 164,476
The fair values of the listed equity securities were AR IR 2 A TE T B R E
determined based on the quoted market prices in R TIT 3 i Sl T A 7 E o T B 529
the active market. The Group has pledged all BT B 5% A5 4 P C A% RR T (H A
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 112,633,000% o ( — F — /U4
with carrying amount of approximately ) 2 AR AT ESEEARZ
HK$112,633,000 (2018: nil) to secure margin S R K o B R AT A R KRR
payables as disclosed in note 29. AR
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% ) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S 5 e B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #;F =& —JL4FEANH =1 H ILF %

27. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)

28.

Note:

(a)

In November 2015, True Wonder Investments Limited, a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company was registered
as a holder of the convertible bond in the principal
amount of US$7,000,000 (approximately HK$54,313,700)
with 2.0% coupon rate and maturity in 2020 issued by
Union Asia Enterprise Holdings Limited (“Union Asia”)
which is listed in the GEM of the Stock Exchange.

During the year ended 30 June 2019 and 2018, Union
Asia’s shares were still suspended from trading as at 30
June 2019, starting from 20 March 2017. The
management of the Group considered that the fair value
of the convertible bonds could no longer be reliably
estimated and that their recoverable amount to be nil as at
both 30 June 2019 and 2018.

During the year ended 30 June 2019, net realised loss
on disposal of listed securities of approximately
HK$95,376,000 (2018: HKS$5,181,000) was
recognised in profit or loss.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

27. A PR S AIRZ &6l %
7 (4)

(a)

W E-AFEF—H KRR R
[f} J& 2% ®True Wonder Investments
Limited ¥ R0 4% 5 80 b 3EPE A PR
Al ([ # 5L |- AR 22 IrGEM L1l ) Jir %
11 A& 4 # J37,000,0003%% JC( £
54,313,700# 70) it —F " RAFF W 2
2.0/ SR ARG S 2 R A -

BWE T UFERF— NFARHA
ST HIEFEE BRZREA ZF
—tH=A+AREYEERES R
R E LR H = B
T o AR 2 AT PRI ER B R TR RE ] 5
AR AT 0 AR 5 2 AT (R R
TR F—/NFEANH=ZTHZ
CIEQEER p e

WEE_FE—NFEASAA=Z1THIE
R e TR 2 BB R R
1 %8 £195,376,000% 70 ( —F — )\
4F:5,181,000% 70) T A 48 # fERE -

28. SRAT &7 R Bl &

2019 2018

2 hEE F—UF

HK$’000 HK$’000

T 0 THETT

Bank and cash balances AT MBI HE AT 9,817 14,498
Deposit in brokers’ account AR Hie 34 7,534
9,851 22,032
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A

(Tn Receivership) ( #% %% )

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f B 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

28. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

29.

(Continued)

As at 30 June 2019, the bank balances and cash of
the Group denominated mainly in Hong Kong
dollars. The analysis is as follows:

28. SATH A R B4 (A])

HEE-EARA=TH A%EH
H SRAT 45 A7 S B 4 2 2 DL TRt
{E o AT an R

2019 2018
ZEhE EFN\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T T
Bank balances and cash PIRH EHEEHE 2
denominated in: SRATEEAT B4 -
— Hong Kong dollar - #5JT 9,293 20,246
— United States dollar - % 19 19
— Singapore dollar — BT 9 9
— Renminbi - NR¥E 530 1,758
9,851 22,032
MARGIN PAYABLES 29. JWEfT 7 SR sk H

Margin payables represent margin loans arising
from the trading of listed investments which are
repayable on demand. No aging analysis is
disclosed in respect of margin payables. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, an aging
analysis does not give additional value in view of
the Group’s business nature.

JEAFF R R ERE N L&
FE PR ) 5 Ji B JH R BOR MR -
f7 08 9l R ST JR T R R 6 >
Bre AN A R0 0 BN AL
) S5 IR > MR 20 A Sl S A 41
{H
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% #) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f  B 5 e A BB

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #;F =& —JL4FEANH =1 H ILF %

30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

30. FE Ak R Ak B 3L A B £°F 5k JH

2019 2018
“EhE FN\F

HK$’000 HK$ 000

T T 0

Trade payables JEEAS HiR 3K 568 671
Other payables oAb A 3IH 13,753 21,734
Accruals JE St 2 8,305 4,887
22,626 27,292

The aging analysis of trade payables, based on the

JRE A B K B Wi B o F 0 2 MR i

date of receipt of goods is as follows: SRTIE
2019 2018
ZEF A CFNF
HK$°000 HKS$’000
T-#t T#7T
0 to 90 days 0290H = -
91 to 180 days 91 180H - 79
Over 180 days B 180 H 568 592
568 671
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A

(In Receivership) (445 #)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f B 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

31. PROMISSORY NOTE

31. AR

2019 2018
B e FUE
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#0 T T

Balance at beginning of year A4 R 19,354 19,345
Redemption of promissory ] 7 A S

note (15,680) —
Fair value change on the FORRE 2 AT EE)

contingent consideration (5,000) -
Early redemption of i 7 [ 7R A S 4

promissory note - (2,000)
Loss on early redemption of 2 17 ) R AT SRR 2

promissory note s = 126
Imputed interest SR 1,326 1,883
Balance at the end of year R R = 19,354

During the year ended 30 June 2017, the Company
issued a promissory note at rate of 5% per annum
in the principal amount of HK$21,800,000 as part
of consideration for the acquisition of the 100%
equity interest of ACC. The holder of the
promissory note is the sole director of the ACC.
The promissory note had a two-year term and
maturing on 24 February 2019. The fair value of
the promissory note was determined at
approximately HK$19,571,000 at the acquisition
date, based on an independent valuation carried
out by an independent professional valuer. The
effective interest rate of the promissory note was
determined to be 10.69% per annum.

HE_Z—ELtFEASH=Z1THISE
B> A& A AT K & B 5
21,800,000 JT ~ 4F F| % £ 5 ) 2 7
A5 ZE 55 - 1E F i T R 4 4 100% 1%
WEZ AR — &85 o AT SRR
AN Fy TR I ME— ¥ 5 o AR AT 52
BAMME R _F—FEA
o H B o R A SRR AT
AUl H O E £519,571,00085
TG > FE A — 24 M S B R (E AT T
{14 488 7 Ak L o AR AN SRR 0 B PR R %
i 7E 2 410,69 o

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 4£#

245




246

B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% ) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 7 S 5 A M R

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % —~F—JLFNH =1 H ILFZ

32.

33.

BORROWINGS 32. fHE
2019 2018
“EhAE R N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T

Guaranteed bank loans, HEMRRITER

repayable on demand JHE B R AR - 156
Revolving loan PRER K 100,000 -
100,000 156

The effective interest rates on the Group’s bank
borrowings is at 8.95% per annum (2018: 8.95% per
annum). The bank loans are guaranteed by the sole
director of a subsidiary.

The effective interest rate on the revolving loan is
at 7.88% per annum. It is guaranteed by the
Group’s property and assets.

The revolving loan was borrowed from a creditor,
which is a company incorporated in Hong Kong.
Mr. Chow Chi Wah Vincent, an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company, is also a
director of the creditor (resigned on 29 October
2019).

OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE
LEASES

It is the Group’s policy to lease motor vehicles
under finance leases. The average lease term is 3.4
years (2018: 3.5 years). Interest rates underlying
all obligation under finance leases are fixed at
respective contract dates at 3.5% (2018: 2% to
3.5%). The leases have no terms of renewal or
purchases options and escalation clauses. No
arrangements have been entered into for
contingent rental payment.
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33.

AAEBBITEEZ BEM R LA GE
8.95JH ( T — \4F: £F4E8.95H) o
A B ERA T B — P B g | 2
—EHPRAELR

16 BR B 3k 2 T WP A< I 45 4K 7.88
JE > DAAR SR B 3 B B A R

TRER &I — 2 AN R it
Ak M2 B 2\ A o AR F
ST JE AT g R AR EE S A O
AN ER(CR -F—LETA
LA BHE) -

il AL R ifE

A 4R 1B IR R AR R R A A
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A
(Tn Receivership) ( #% %% )

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o £ S 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

33. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE 33. il AL AR I (A7)
LEASES (Continued)
Minimum lease payments o AR AL B A ok 3
2019 2018
R F 4
HK$’000 HK$°000
T THTT
Amount payables under AR il B A B
finance leases:
Total balances M EE 1,016 1,454
Less: Future finance charges o SRR 2 (79) (149)
Present value of lease B RSS2 BUE
obligations 937 1,305
Less: Amount due for B R 121 N B A
settlement within 12 ERIRZWNE B
months shown under 2B
current liabilities 399) (502)
Amount due for settlement 1248 H 4% B &5 2
after 12 months x| 538 803
The Group’s obligation under finance leases is AR ) 2 R R B R A DA F A
secured by the lessor’s charge over the leased Z T E LR AR
assets with net carrying amount of approximately NZF-NEANA =T HZRME
HK$636,000 (2018: approximately HK$901,000) 1 H 4 £5636,000% 70 ( —F — )\
as at 30 June 2019. 4F 2 #9901,0009 7C) ©
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% ) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S 5 e B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #;F =& —JL4FEANH =1 H ILF %

34. TAX PAYABLE AND DEFERRED TAX 34. FEATBEIH B 3R AiE B JE £

LIABILITIES

(a) The movements in income tax payable during (a) MEAT I 13 B0 A 48 4F 1) &2 )
the year are as follows: wmr

2019 2018

R hE FUE

HK$’000 HK$°000

T# 5t T# T

At 1 July wtH—H 778 531
Provision for current tax for A4 3 R ] JE 135

the year - 247

At 30 June BARH=1H 778 778

(b) The components of deferred tax liabilities (b) %5 A BAHS AR UL 3% Hp il R
recognised in the consolidated statement of HIE B TE A Y AR AR o KA
financial position and the movements during EERZEWT
the year are as follow:

2019 2018
“EoE FENAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# T# T

At 1 July wEtH—H — 1,309
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi fi— ] PR JBS 2 ) - 1,148
Credited to profit or loss A AR B 41

during the year - (2,457)
At 30 June HAH=1H - -
Deferred tax liabilities arose from temporary R S i TH A U 5 W i — [H]
differences of intangible assets from W JE A R 2 R & E R R
acquisition of a subsidiary. FEHH -

(c) No deferred tax assets has been recognised in (c) HA m%ﬁ@u*ﬂ@{ﬁﬂ%ﬁ g
respect of the tax losses and fair value loss on @ﬁtﬂﬁﬁﬁ'ﬁﬁlﬁ%fﬁ&& i=¢7]
investment property due to the unpredictability %Zﬁ$ﬁ§ Tﬁﬁﬁﬁuﬁﬁﬁrﬁ
of future profit streams. The tax losses have no R o M BATBUB L] A
expiry date under the current tax legislation. B ol T Jl 10017 4 i I A o
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A
(In Receivership) (445 #)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o £ S 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

35. SHARE CAPITAL 35. A
Number of
ordinary shares Amount
HK$’000
@ e EX
T
Authorised: HEE
Ordinary shares 9 i
At 1 July 2017, o F L
30 June 2018, tA—H - ZF—NA
1 July 2018 and FARA=1H-
30 June 2019, &= ) FLtHA—H
at HK$0.0001 each R F—JUF
ANAZ+H
BT {E0.0001 5 7T 10,000,000,000,000 1,000,000
Number of
ordinary shares Amount
HKS$’000
S350 d §E] &H
T
Issued and fully paid: T T RBE
At 1 July 2017, WoF L
30 June 2018, tH—H =%\
1 July 2018 and FARA=TH
30 June 2019, ZF— )4
at HK$0.0001 each tH—H Rk =F—JUE
ANA=Z+H
M1 E0.0001 0 1,533,654,788 153
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(2% #) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S 5 e B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #;F =& —JL4FEANH =1 H ILF %

36. RESERVES 36. fifi fhi
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements AEFEFHHEEREHCNGS
therein are presented in the consolidated statement of 8 i B A 4 T A 3R K SR R
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and S E R 2T

consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Nature and purpose of reserves il il < PR B B Wy

(a) Share premium (a) JR i E
Under the Companies Law of the Cayman WHEH SRS L FAEZHE
Islands, the funds in the share premium o AN E B ERANZE
account of the Company are distributable to B PIR T AN A R - HE R
the shareholders of the Company provided BEEHRIRE H A% - AAFIHA
that immediately following the date on which REMERH W EF DM
the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the R -

Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

2 5 0 ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 4 #




Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A

(Tn Receivership) ( #% %% )

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f B 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

36. RESERVES (Continued)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(b) Capital reserve

Capital reserve arisen from the Group’s
reorganisation on 27 February 2002 and
represented the excess of the combined net
assets of the subsidiaries acquired over the
nominal value of the Company’s issued
shares.

(c¢) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies set
out in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements.

(d) Investment revaluation reserve

Investment revaluation reserve represents the
cumulative net fair value change in the
Group’s equity investments that had been
designated by the Group as at financial assets
at FVTOCI as at the date of initial application
of HKFRS 9 based on the specified
transitional provisions of HKFRS 9. This
reserve will not be reclassified to profit or
loss when the investments are sold, instead,
the amount will be transferred to the Group’s
retained earnings where the investments are
sold.

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company adopted a share option (“Options”)
scheme (the “Scheme”) on 20 November 2012 for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
the eligible participants who, in the sole discretion
of the Board, have contributed or may contribute
to the Group.

36. fiti i (48)
ol 6 2 R B H Y (48)
(b) EAM#
GARREMHE BT A
TR AL EEHNE

A AR BT IO 2 B 22\ Y
AFEEFEBRARFD
BEAT Ly 2 (B 2 S

(c) FESLAHAT

WEE 52 fik 445 P 49 0 90 A1 36 B
B i R E A 2 BT AT BE St 25 B
P ALK o o (el AR B AR 5 A5
¥ 22 B 4 BT R0 & BOR E
o

(d) REE

BEE A 4 95 AR A o
5 5 4 JU) 565 9 9 Y 4 1 AR U
R ST A i J 5 i ok Y R o 9
5% UCE I H Bl A 4
TE Ty F8 0% 1 A H Al 2 T U
i AR 2 4l A R 4
FHE B 2 R EH A T E)
R o BB B B I R Gl
AGER B ERE > ZE
R AE BCE B AR
LA PR B LA

37. DAI oy 7 B B 2 AF 3k

AR FE A
PR 94— IFU I (IR ) ot
B (T8 ) 5 £ 613 5 2 HERD
1872 2 1 S A o
B2 6 Feke & B R
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 7 S 5 A M R

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % —~F—JLFNH =1 H ILFZ

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 37. DAy 25 B 58 2> £+F 3k (%)

252

Under the Scheme, the maximum number of
unexercised Options currently permitted to be
granted under the Scheme is an amount equivalent to,
upon their exercise, 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue as at the date of the approval of
the Scheme or the date of the general meeting for
refreshing the 10% limit under the Scheme. The limit
on the number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding Options granted under the
Scheme must not exceed 30% of the shares of the
Company in issue from time to time. The maximum
number of shares issuable under the Scheme to each
eligible participant in the Scheme within any
12-month period is limited to 1% of the number of
shares of the Company in issue at any time.

The offer of a grant of the Options may be accepted
in writing within 21 days from the date of the offer,
upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in
total by the grantee. The exercise period of the
Options granted is determined by the Board and shall
not be more than ten years from the date of the grant
of the Options. The Scheme does not require a
minimum period for which the Options must be held
nor a performance target which must be achieved
before the Options can be exercised.

The subscription price will be determined by the
Board, but may not be less than the highest of (i)
the closing price of shares on the Stock Exchange
on the date of grant of the Options ; (ii) the
average of the closing prices of the Company’s
shares on the Stock Exchange for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant of
the Options ; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares on the date of offer.

There was no Option granted under the Scheme
since its inception and there was no Option held by
eligible participants as at 30 June 2019 (2018:
Nil).
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BATRMEEHZ 1% -
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HE21 H Al R B2 ST 5
AR 3t 13 T AR DL i X
A o ELAR 2 B IR 2 AT () i
FEEE > PR AT H
A AR A 4 o ST B R 2
R A7 M BBOHE 2 i IR TR SR
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A

(In Receivership) (445 #)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f B 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

For the year ended 30 June 2019

On 17 June 2019, the Group completed the
acquisition of 100% equity interests in Dragonite
Resources Limited (“Dragonite”) from an
independent third party, which was satisfied by
way of HK$500,000 in cash.

Dragonite engages in provision of money lending
services. The acquisition has been accounted for as
acquisition of assets and liabilities as Dragonite
has no operation upon completion of the
acquisition except for holding of a money lending
licence.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and

38. W i B g 2 Wl

BEF-NWEAA=THILEE

A E-JUEARATEH AL
A A R IVAR Nl
Dragonite Resources Limited
(IDragonite |) i) 2 ¥ 4 > DABL
500,000 7T 3 A

Dragonitefit 5 £& {It i fif Il %5 - i
A Dragonite i Y i 5¢ Ji IR BR 158 A
i A R HE A NI 4 58 > AT B AE U
W E AR

Dragoniteft A] sk il & 7 K £ 5

liabilities of Dragonite at the date of acquisition W AR 2 BT
are as follows:
Recognised
on acquisition
T W O
HKS$’000
T
Cash and bank balances Bla R trits 406
Deposit, prepayment, and other receivables Fe e TS HOR A R FOR 103
Other payables JL A REAT FOE )
Total identifiable net assets at fair value Fe N TAH B MR 2 AT v (AR 500
Consideration was satisfied by the fair value of: ~ fCEJILLFAIHE 2 A AT -
Cash paid in the financial year ended 30 June 2019 R#EE_ZF—JUFEAH =+ H IEMBUFEE 2
EfEE 500
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WO A 2 B T o R
Cash consideration paid ENBERE (500)
Cash and cash equivalents in the subsidiary Pl R A A7) 2 B B ] B T
acquired 406
%9
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% ) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S 5 e B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #;F =& —JL4FEANH =1 H ILF %

38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 38. WP & A v (4)

(Continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2019

On 21 September 2018, the Group completed the
acquisition of 100% equity interests in Glorious
Gold Holdings Limited (“Glorious Gold”) and its
subsidiary (“Glorious Gold Group”) from an
independent third party, which was satisfied by
way of HK$500,000 in cash.

Glorious Gold Group engages in investment
holding. The acquisition has been accounted for as
acquisition of assets and liabilities as Glorious
Gold Group has no operation upon completion of
the acquisition except for holding of a motor
vehicle.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and

BEZZ-AEAH =T HILEE

AT NENLA —H > AR

B 5 S ) — 4% 98 5L 55 = 7 Wi AR
SPERA RN A (24 1) B HKH
EPNEIE F% 1 B
HE > LAFH4:500,0004% 76 f] o

R R HBCEENERS o it
2 < B T A i S e BR R —
T SIS A WSRO
HERABAN-

5 4 42 1 A W ) EE B AR

liabilities of Glorious Gold Group at the date of W H IR A ER
acquisition are as follows:
Recognised
on acquisition
T W W O 2
HK$’000
T
Property, plant and equipment EN ST 567
Other payables oAt A R (67)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value A TE SR 2 ATk G VR (AR 500
Consideration was satisfied by the fair value of:  fXEJILURFHE 2 AFHELA
Cash paid in the financial year ended 30 June 2019~ AEZEZF—EAA =1 H IEMBUEE 2
EftiE 500
Net cash outflow used on acquisition: W T P 2 B4 U A R
Cash consideration paid EABeRE (500)
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(Tn Receivership) ( #% %% )

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f B 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

For the year ended 30 June 2018

On 7 July 2017, the Group completed the
acquisition of 100% equity interests in Volk Favor
Food Group Limited (“Volk Favor”) and its
subsidiaries (“Volk Favor Group”) from an
independent third party, which was satisfied by
way of HK$1,000,000 in cash and issuance of
promissory note amounting to HK$19,000,000.
More details were set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 7 July 2017.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and

38. Wl Bk & 2 W) ()

BEF)EAH=ZTHILEE

AE—LAEEHEH AREEE
A ] — 44 M8 57 5 = 7 IR B Volk
Favor Food Group Limited ([ Volk
Favor|) K& H B J& 2 & ([ Volk
FavorE [ |) 2 100%/8 2= #E £5
fRAE LA1,000,000%5 o0 B 4 & 8517
19,000,000%5 7T 22 7 A ZE 48 S f5) o
SRR AN A A
F—tHFEELAELHZA-

Volk FavorZ AJ i il & 2 & A 7R

liabilities of Volk Favor at the date of acquisition W H W2 AP EMT
are as follows:
Recognised
on acquisition
i Wi Iy i
HK$’000
Tt
Property, plant and equipment E N NG 202
Intangible assets (Note 23) I & (i EE23) 4,592
Cash and bank balances B S ARAT i AF 566
Inventory r8 996
Trade and other receivables JARE M R sk B L A JRE i T 5,221
Trade and other payables JRE A B K e HLAth R AT K TH (3,625)
Deferred tax liabilities EAERL I A 15 (1,148)
Total identifiable net assets at N PRSI AR 2 v] 5 Rl & i
fair value A 6,804
Goodwill (Note 24) 7 (B 5E24) 2,693
9,497

Consideration was satisfied by the fair
value of:

Cash paid in the financial year ended
30 June 2017

Contingent consideration
payable — Promissory Note (note b)

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:
Cash and cash equivalents in the
subsidiary acquired HH

FABETILA TSI F 2 AT

REE - F—LENAH=THIE
BB 2 BT B 4 1,000
JREASH B SR ARG — AR AT 2295 (B D)

8,497

9,497

W B 7 A B R
o B 2 ) 2 B M S T B

(566)
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% #) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S 5 e B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #;F =& —JL4FEANH =1 H ILF %

38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 38. WU B B 2 v ()

(Continued)

For the year ended 30 June 2018 (Continued) BE )N H =1 IRAEEE ()

The principal activities of Volk Favor Group is Volk FavorfE [ & 22 ¢ = fif] kL 4=

feed production, hog breeding, hog slaughtering B AR AR RREE

and hog farming as well as production and sale of 5 > DA KRB PR SRES A T Y R

pork products and processed meat products. This {18 A2 2 AN B o O T A T B A )

acquisition of subsidiaries has been accounted for O AR 5 A s B 5 i i M R 2B 3 A

as acquisition of business according to HKFRS 3. HRZ VF S5 Ui % o

Notes: R5E -

(a) At the date of acquisition, goodwill of HK$2,693,000 was (a) i Z H > ER$EVolk Favorfs [
determined based on the fair values of the identifiable 1) m] ik A i M B A I T 7 E T
assets and liabilities of Volk Favor. Group Goodwill arose 242,693,000 IC o Y I 7 AR 7 R N
on the acquisition because the acquisition included the 5 WA S = T A5 7 WS F T 2 R AR
benefit of future profitability as at the date of acquisition. FIRE T B # 45 ©

(b) Contingent Consideration (b) BIAE
Contingent consideration payable arising from business B E A 2 EAT s SR ACE ) 4
combination are initially and subsequently measured at HAAM A FE & R HE e
fair value, with changes in fair values in subsequent Wi 2 AN E(E S 8 R 1R 35 N TR o

accounting periods being recognised in profit or loss.
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(Tn Receivership) ( #% %% )

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f B 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

For the year ended 30 June 2018 (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(®)

Contingent Consideration (Continued)

According to the sale and purchase agreement of the
acquisition of Volk Favor (“Volk Favor Agreement”),
there was a profit guarantee pursuant to which the vendor
guarantees to the Group that the net profit after tax of
Volk Favor Group for the period within 12 months from
the completion date (i.e. 7 July 2018) is not less than
HK$3,000,000 (“Guaranteed Profit”). If the event that
Guaranteed Profit have not been met, compensation shall
be settled by the vendor to the Group (i) firstly by
cancellation of promissory note to be issued to the vendor
and (ii) secondly by cash. Subsequent to the end of the
reporting period, the actual profit of Volk Favor Group
has not been met with the Guaranteed Profit. Accordingly,
the promissory note with principle amount of
HK$19,000,000 issued to the vendor was cancelled and
the cash of HK$1,000,000 together with the settlement of
that promissory note made during the year was payable
by the vendor to the Group.

Since the acquisition, Volk Favor Group contributed
approximately HK$7,940,000 to the Group’s revenue and
a loss of approximately HK$4,519,000 to the Group’s
consolidated results for the year ended 30 June 2018.

38. Wl Bk & 2 W) ()

BEF ) UEAH =T HIRFE ()

(b)

s AR ()

I B Volk FavorZ H & fh ik ([ Volk
Favortih ik 1) M e — T i R 35 > 3%
B> By AL AR - Volk Favorde
B 1 SE R F (B = — 4R B A
L H ) R FE T AR R 2 BR B Al
F A 15K 123,000,000 76 (4 38 %
A1) o il A SR B R > R B 7 /A
(i) B 2 5 519 1) B O B AT 2 R A e 0
Fe(ii)He vk DLBL 4 1) A 4 A B R
i o A WK A% > Volk Favorde [ 2
B IR 38 1) A 2 PR RS A o UL > )
B AT 2 A B E 519,000,000 7T
ARSI RO RS HE AL
% % A} 1 41,000,000 7T 3 [7] 4F A
RS SRR 2 8

H Ik B > Volk FavorfEHE A E
T NEANA ST H I EEAREE
e A B Rk #97,940,0009 7€ K B AR 4R
M 2 %5 A 2E 41 E R 1H 494,519,000
WG o
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % —~F—JLFNH =1 H ILFZ

38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 38. WP & A v (4)

258

(Continued)

For the year ended 30 June 2018 (Continued)

On 18 January 2018, the Group completed the
acquisition of 100% equity interests of Ample
Talent Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
(“Ample Talent Group”) from an independent
third party, which was satisfied by the way of
HK$26,000,000 of cash and HK$8,200,000 to be
settled with cash within twelve month after the
completion date. More details were set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 18 January 2018
and 23 June 2017. The principal asset held by the
Ample Talent Group is a residential property
situated in Beijing. The acquisition of subsidiaries
has been accounted for as acquisition of assets and
liabilities as the Ample Talent Group has no
operation upon completion of the acquisition
except for holding an investment property.

BE_F ) UEAH =1 HILEE ()

AR NFE—HT/NH > REH
SE N T — & ML = 7 i B
Ample Talent Holdings Limited &
H Mt & /A 7 ([ Ample Talent3
B J) 2 100%80 A HE 75 > T 40 38 B
4:26,000,000%5 7T /28,200,000 7T
AR 58 B H B3R -+ AR A 8 RLB
AT e HEFER SN AT H
WheE —E—N\¥—H+/NH K
E—HLESNA T EZHZ A%
Ample Talent(E Flf¢ 5 2 T HE &
H— AR AR 2 E Y - W
PRI S BRI I E K B
BEARR > H AR —H g
Ak > Ample TalentE B it 52 B U
IR I 40 5 7 o

Assets and liabilities arising from the acquisition B EAE 2 G AN
are as follows:
HK$°000
T#T
Investment property i -C/E S 34,395
Cash and bank balances B S RAT A AT 4
Accrued liabilities FEST & fE (199)
Net identifiable assets ATk ) R 34,200

Total purchase consideration satisfied
by:

A R AUE A DL Oy S

Cash paid in the financial year ended
30 June 2017

Cash paid during the year

Cash to be paid within twelve months
of the completion day

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition

Cash consideration paid

Cash and cash equivalents in
subsidiaries acquired
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

39. LIQUIDATION OF A SUBSIDIARY 39. —[HI BB 2 vl vh

On 24 July 2018, the Group had placed an indirect A% NAEE A ;+IEI H > AR
B 1 — ] ] 4 2 O R o
T e N A R i ([ ) o i

wholly-owned subsidiary into creditors’ voluntary

liquidation (the “Liquidation”). Following the BEHA 75 - MBS 7 R 1 B AR 4N A
commencement of the Liquidation, the subsidiary M EHHE AT A AR 4 [
was ceased to be an indirect wholly-owned S A S NG S e AR
subsidiary of the Group and effectively be carved W& E R

out from the Group. The net assets of the
subsidiary on date of liquidation was as follows:

HK$’000
Tt
Other receivables A R i 3R IE 1,729
Cash and bank balance B4 RARIT &S AT 10,719
Other payables A JRE A K IE (1)
Net assets disposed of JT B VR E 12,447
Loss on e 15
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: WEEAZBSRATE
Less: cash and cash equivalents W B Bl N EE R B TE H
disposed of (10,719)
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % —~F—JLFNH =1 H ILFZ

40.

41.

42.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

During the year ended 30 June 2018, the Company
issued the promissory note with the principal value
of HK$19,000,000 as part of consideration for the
acquisition of the Volk Favor (“Volk Favor PN”).

On 22 March 2018, the Group has settled the Volk
Favor PN of approximately HK$10,681,000 by way
of the assignment of loan receivables with the same
amount.

LEASE COMMITMENTS

At 30 June 2019, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases
are payable as follows:

40.

41.

FHRIEBERH

REE T /ENA=ZTHIE
FE, KAARBITASEEL
19,000,000% 7T Z A& A 5245 > 1E &
I #E Volk FavorZ i3 Fe4E (T Velk
Favor&ff 4% |) -

WoE—NF=H T H > A%
] 975 i A ] < B 2 T
& B Volk Favork £ Z #% 4
10,681,000 JC °

LB R i
B EJAEARA = H AT

2 L O 2 AR 1 L
IR T -

2019 2018

“EFRE FUF

HK$’000 HK$’000

T#IT THETT

Within one year — AR 4,986 10,949
In the second to fifth years BN (UEEEM

inclusive ) 2,937 13,196

After 5 years TR - 2,285

Balance at the end of year IR EE R 7,923 26,430

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable
by the Group for certain of its offices. Leases are
negotiated for an average term of two to eight
years and rentals are fixed over the lease terms and
do not include contingent rentals.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 30 June 2019, the Group did not leave any
significant contingent liabilities (2018: Nil).
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 43. HEAN LR S
Loan receivables from the associate W W T 5 0 W) B
2019 2018
ZEZ I —FE— )\
HKS$’000 HK$000
T T T
Short term loan SR = 400

The loan receivable from the associate is
unsecured, charged at the rate of 12% per annum
and repayable in 3 months.

R WA T O ) R A AR A~ 1%
128 2 FE Rt B K iR 308 H 4%
fH3% -

Loan interest income from the associate K H B g A 6 2 B A BB A
2019 2018
“FE EFN\FE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T THE T
Loan interest income BRA S A - 48
Compensation of directors and key management HREAFEERABZHM
personnel
2019 2018
—“FE —EF N\
HKS$°000 HK$’000
T THTC
Short-term benefits AR R 1,788 2,661
Transactions with other related parties B A BN 222 5

Saved as disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group does not have any material
related party transactions (2018: Nil).

IR A o 5 ik 2% L At 3 403 P 48 B
G o A5 B NI A ] B R BR 2
Loy (ZF— )\ - ) o
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited

(2% ) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f  B 5 e A BB

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #;F =& —JL4FEANH =1 H ILF %

44. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE

44, KN 6l 2Z W E & B

COMPANY
2019 2018
“EhAE RN\
HK$°000 HKS$°000
Tt THTT
Non-current asset WA
Property, plant and equipment ~ #3 - Jﬂ%&%ﬂﬁ 210 1
Investments in subsidiaries R A R 2 & 230,012 1
230,222 1
Current assets B &
Prepayments, deposits and TR > $e i I
receivables HoAth FE Wik IE 7,218 3,000
Due from subsidiaries i I 2 ) - 344,032
Bank and cash balances %ﬁﬁ&fﬁémﬁ 4,557 91
11,775 347,123
Current liabilities wH A
Other payables At JE A R IA - 311
Accrued charges F’E‘JFB'ZEH 4,412 4,576
Amount due to subsidiaries JREASE B g 2 ] 74,151 82,900
Promissory note R R = 19,355
Borrowing & 100,000 -
178,563 107,142
Net current (liabilities)/assets  Fi @) (&), & & FEH (166,788) 239,981
Total assets less current MO E W ) AR
liabilities 63,434 239,982
NET ASSETS ¥ e T 63,434 239,982
Capital and reserves JBe A I Gt
Share capital JeA 153 153
Reserves (Note) fet it (B 5E) 63,281 239,829
TOTAL EQUITY AERE £ 63,434 239,982
Approved by the Board of Directors on 29 F-NNE+—AZt+ LA
November 2019. %5%5‘&/@
Mr. Woo Eddie Mr. Suen Yick Lun, Philip
WO e A4 # 4 B S5 A
Chairman Executive Director
B HfTEF
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A
(Tn Receivership) ( #% %% )

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o £ S 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

44. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 44, KA Z M E&EBH(#)
COMPANY (Continued)

Note: BFEE:
Movement in reserves ol i 52 )
Share Capital Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
B A3 4 1 BAGH it At

HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt TG T TG

At 1 July 2017 W oF—tHEELH—H 1,589,573 15,826 (1,179,782) 425,617
Loss and total comprehensive A4 B fis 48 & 4 i B ¢

expenses for the year AEE - - (185,788) (185,788)
As 30 June 2018 and W ZF— /XA =1TH

1 July 2018 K =F—)\HFLtH—H 1,589,573 15,826 (1,365,570) 239,829

Total comprehensive expense A4 Ji 42 1] Bl 3¢ A0 4H

for the year - - (176,548) (176,548)

As 30 June 2019 RoFE—NEANAH=+H 1,589,573 15,826 (1,542,118) 63,281
45. LITIGATION 45. Wik

On 30 May 2018, the Group received a writ of NoE - NFELHA=1H > AEH
summon from the High Court of the Court of First WS B T o 5 B A T RE R A
Instance of Hong Kong related to the dispute with Z AR W R AP E
former landlord of office premise amounting to T 2E £ 2 4 % £5310,000% 70 ([ R
HK$310,000 (the “Outstanding Amount”). kI ) 2 8%y o
The Group is actively seeking for legal advice on A B ] 1E 75 B A0 5 0K A B 0 S Y
the matter and actively negotiating with former AR S 7 AR b B 2 T Bh P R
landlord for possible settlement method of SAH AT ReRE E T K-

Outstanding Amount.
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(2% ) (In Receivership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 7 S 5 A M R

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % —~F—JLFNH =1 H ILFZ

46. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the Group had the following
significant event which took place subsequent to the
end of the reporting period:

(a)

(b)

On 28 January 2019, the Company entered into
a sale and purchase agreement (the
“Agreement”) with the vendor to acquire 100%
equity interest in Hope Capital Limited (“Hope
Capital”) and its subsidiaries (“Hope Capital
Group”) at a consideration of HK$40,740,000.
Hope Capital Group includes a licensed
corporation under the SFO to carry out Type 1
(dealing in securities) regulated activity.
Completion of the acquisition was conditional
upon the satisfaction of the conditions precedent
as detailed in the Agreement. Pursuant to the
Agreement, completion of the acquisition is
conditional upon certain conditions being
satisfied or waived. On 23 August 2019, as the
parties to the Agreement were of the view that
those conditions in the Agreement cannot be
fully satisfied. It has been mutually agreed to
terminate the Agreement on 23 August 2019.
The deposit of HK$40,740,000 previously paid
pursuant to the Agreement has been returned to
the Group. For further details, please refer to the
announcements dated 28 January 2019, 21
February 2019 and 23 August 2019.

On 3 July 2019, the Company received a notice
from its creditor, Citizens Money Lending
Corporation Limited (the “Creditor”) that
events of default have occurred under the
debenture granted by the Company to the
Creditor dated 25 January 2019 (the
“Debenture”), and thereby the Creditor has
appointed Mr. Tang Shing Tung as the Receiver
(the “Receiver”) to all of the property and assets
of the Company on 3 July 2019. The Receiver is
appointed by the Creditor to enforce and
preserve the assets charged under the Debenture.
For further details, please refer to the
announcement dated 4 July 2019.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 4 #

46. i W 1% 2 A

R A A B 5 i R HL At Hb 5 P 48
BB AN o A A ] A RO SR Y
ARAAERE 2 EEEFUT

(a)

(b)

BoFEUE-H A
AR BLE IR S — P““%
ik ([az ek 1) AU A 2 &
) K
%
b

/

ARARI(THEES )
AW%Aﬂr%%ﬁﬁ
Eﬂ 1) HﬁlOO%ﬁHﬁ ﬁﬁ 4t ﬁ%

ﬁ@%%

E%%%ﬁ@ﬁ%%%%m%
FA8 T ) Z KHLE T L o
Wi B S TE B A % o ek mE 2 1Y) O
PG R 32 AR 7 4 58 A o AR
Bz WIBEEASGAST
o A 32 B BV S R AR > T 4 e
oo A —FE—JUFENH =
Ho BN akel #1788 5
5 T vk A AR R R A
W & FE— L NH
s g = [ i B el S o
%w@mﬁ%&%%iﬁ%%
4:40,740,000% 0 £ 1R 32 T A
L HFEERS AR
AHEMAE —F—LFE—H

s AN = - ) - =
—t—HA R =F—ENA
ZH=H2Z A%

ATE—JUEELH=ZH AL

7&@@%AE%M%€@
ZcwE] (TEREN ) @z > B8
HEARNFERTEENWH Y
B E—JUF—H _+HH
ZIERER([ERER ) TEY
i WL BREACR F
—EELH=HZEHERKE
S BARN A M E RE
EMEENTEBEEN]) - #E
N HEE A RN 22 AT 5 i AT K
R IEEREBILTNE

E o A7 B — 5 S 2
Hm —F—JLELtAMA
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Celebrate International Holdings Limited 2 i [ [ (4 ik ) & R 2 A

(In Receivership) (445 #)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f B 5 e A B

For the year ended 30 June 2019 # % = F—JLiFANH =1 H ILFE

46. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD (Continued)

(c)

On 12 August 2019, the Company announced
that a direct wholly-owned subsidiary, namely
Power Elite Holdings Limited (“Power Elite”)
and its subsidiaries (“Power Elite Group”), was
placed into creditors’ voluntary liquidation.
Power Elite Group is a group of subsidiaries
principally engaged in investment holding and
property investment but with disappointing
financial performance since the first quarter of
the current reporting period. In order to reduce
the Company’s exposures over matters relating
to Power Elite Group, liquidators were engaged
to liquidate and recover the value of Power Elite
Group, and to further review books and records
including the previous transactions of Power
Elite Group. For further details, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 12

46. e W 4% 25 00 (B)

(c) M_FE—JNHENANATZH &K

NEVE M E AR E A
] (BPower Elite Holdings Limited
([Power Elite])) 5 H [} )& 2>
7] ([ Power ElitefH |) 91T
fEHE N HFEIS % - Power Elite
LG —HFEREREER
KRG E AR HB
AR T A2 — 2R B R B
£ o 2 W A2 B A BPower
ElitefE B S5 JH A9 A B - © &R 18
HB N LU Power EliteE [H
T I i ] LA - I — 2P
7 B HR M 2% 5 8k (AL FEPower
EliteE F 1 FAT28 5 ) o A B
— L5 AN F H
HBoE—NFEANATZHZA

August 2019. o
47. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL 47. ik s ek

STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were A MBWMER _F—LET—
approved and authorised for issue by the Board on H = U B i v A e
29 November 2019. Tl %% -
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B BB (FE ) A L2 A Celebrate International Holdings Limited

(2% #) (In Receivership)

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
W0 %5 B e 2
Year ended 30 June
BREANAZTHILEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
SR CEF )\ SRR CRRF SEAE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000

Tt T T T T
Turnover e 98932 145847 205669 116,907 42,509
Revenue i 4 19365 41399 15968 9,290 5270
Cost of sales B A (7881)  (29269) (16545 (10,059 (5,239)
Gross profit/(loss) EH/(E8) 11,484 12,130 (577) (769) 31
Other income HAbig A 13,591 24,125 13,597 62,418 39,164
Administrative expenses T (28872)  (52650)  (39,188)  (40691)  (25433)
Other operating expenses HAb AL (145230)  (138,097)  (82.843)  (36958) (11,603
Finance costs Ei %S (3,276) @,171) a7) (1,868) (1,921)
Share of (loss)/profit from an A — [HT B 2 )

associate (B8) /i #l - (740) (635) (707) 382
(Loss)/Profit before tax BRALHG (54, ti A (152303)  (157403)  (110423)  (18,575) 620
Income tax expense P8 b X - 2,210 23) - (261)
(Loss)/Profit for the year AL (B51R),/ (152303)  (155193)  (110446) (18,5575 359
Year ended 30 June
BREANHZTHILEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
2 SN DR DR SR T
HK$000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS$000

Tt  Tikc Tl Tl Tl
Total assets BEE 280,982 327,561 464,725 355072 422,056
Total liabilities BAE (154,440)  (48.885)  (29.962) (1419)  (150,316)

126542 278676 434763 347653 271,740
Equity attributable L/NGIE 2PN

to owners of the Company 70,619 222,751 378,824 291,708 110,436

Non-controlling interest MR A7 55,923 55,925 55,939 55,945 161,304

126542 278676 434763 347,653 271,740
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